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NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC., NEW DELHI

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) was set up in 1995 as a section 8 Company
(erstwhile Section 25 Company) under National Informatics Centre, Ministry of Electronics and
- Information Technology, Gevernment of India to provide total ICT solutions to Ministries,
3 Departments, Organizations in the Central Government, State Governments, UTsand P S Us.
Vision
"Achieve leadership position in the technology enablement of India and other developing countries
. thereby contributing effectively to accelerate socio-economic growth".

. Mission
To promote and provide transparent value added Information and Communication Technology on
. end to end solutions including procurement services and business solutions to customers at
. competitive prices with a focus on socio-economic development”.

Objectives
To provide the economic, scientific, technological, social and cultural development of India by
promoting the utilization of Information Technology, Computer-Communication Networks,
Informatics etc. by a spinoff of the services, technelogies, infrastructure and expertise developed by
the National Informatics centre of the Government of India including its computer-communication
network, NICNET and associated infrastructure and services. To promote further development of
services, technologies, infrastructure and expertise o supplement what NIC has developed, in order
to increase NIC's revenue earning capacity. To develop and promole value added computer and
computer-communications services over the basic infrastructure and services developed by NIC
including NICNET. In furtherance of these objectives, NICSI has been providing following Products &
services to Ministries, Departments, Organizations in the Central Government, state governments,
UTsand PSUsetc.:

= DataAnalytics

+  Website Development
= Rollout Services

* Manpower Services

* DataCentre Services
* Productization

» Video-conferencing

= LT.Consultancy

» CallCentre Services
* Training Services

NICSI is truly a Total ICT solutions
Company in the Service of the Nation.
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NICSI:

Is truly a total ICT Solutions Company
in the Service of the Nation.

Creating Synergy for Technology
Diffusion in e-governance.

Networks people in Government
Industry & academia to permeate the
technology benefits to the
remotest part of India.

Harnessing Information &
Communication Technologies.
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Chalrperson
Director

Company Secretary
Auditors

Registered Office

Bankers

Pan No NICSI
GSTN No NICSI
Website of NICSI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(As on 31-03-2024)

Shri Bhuvnesh kumar, IAS, Additional Secretary, MeitY

Shri Rajesh Singh, 1AS. JS & FA, MeitY

Shri Sanket Bhondve, 1AS, JS, Meity

Shri S. K. Marwaha, Scientist G and Group Coordinator, MeitY
amt Sunita Verma , Scientist G and Group Coordinator, MeitY
Shri VTV Ramana, Scientist-G, NIC

Dr. Susheel Kumar, Scie ntist-G, NIC

Dr. Shubhag Chand, Scientist-G, NIC

Shri Pramad Kumar Singh, Scientist-G, & SI0 (Gujarat), NIC
Ms. Jayanti S., Scientist-G, (Karnataka) NIC

Dr. Vinay Thakur, MD, NICSI

Shri Sunny Jain

Mis. J.N Mital & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

J-BS, 2nd Floor, Gulati Complex Rajouri Garden,

New Delhi-110027

Hall Neo. 2 & 3,6th Floor, NBCC Tower, 15th Bhikaji Cama
Place, New Delhi-110066

Union Bank of India, Bank of India, CGOD Complex Lodhi
Road, Union Bank Of India, Punjab Mational Bank, State Bank
of India, Bhikaji Cama Place. New Delhi and |CiC| Bank Lid,
safdarjung Enclave, New Delni, Canara Bank, Janpath
Branch.Axis Bank, Katwaria Saral Branch, IDFC Frist Bank,
Deer Park Branch, Indusind Bank Africa Avenue Brarnch.

AAACN2185d
07TAAACN2185J17E
WA, NiCsi.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(As on 30-09-2024)
Chairperson : Shri Bhuvnesh Kumar, IAS, Additional Secretary, MaitY
Director ! Shri Rajesh Singh, IAS, JS & FA, MaitY

Shri Sanket Bhandve IAS, JS, MeitY
Shri S. K. Marwaha, Scientist -G and Group Coordinator, MeitY
Smt. Sunita Verma, Scientist- G and Group Coordinator, MeitY
Shri Sandeep Kumar Singhal, I.1.5. Scientist- G, NIC
Dr. Susheel Kumar, Scientist-G, NIC
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29th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the Members of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI) that its
20th Annual General Meeting is scheduled to be held on Manday, 07th day of October, 2024, at 04:40 PM at
Sharter Notice at Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology.
Elactronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, to carry out the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account and the
Statement of Cash Flow of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as per Ind AS, along with the
Material Accounting Policies and Notes fo Financial Statements, the Directors' Report along-with the Auditor's
Reportand comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of Indiathereon, and

3 To Fix the Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Fi nancial Year 2024-25 appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under section 142 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Infarmatics Centre Services Inc.

Sdi-
(Sunny jain)
Company Secretary
(M. No. A31700)
Place: New Delhi
Date 18.09.2024

To,

1. Director General, NIC — Member
2. Ms. Rachna Srivastava — Member
413 Shri R. 8. Mani - Member

4. Ms. Alka Misra - Member

5. Shri Rajiv Rathi — Member

6. Shri LPS. 5ethi - Member

Also:

a Chairperson, NIGSI

2. The Board of Directors of NIC3I
And also:

L M/s J N Mital & Co., Statutory Auditor, NIGSI

™,




FORM NO. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the companies Act, 2013 and rule 10 (3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: UT4899DL1995NPLOT2045
Name of the company; National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated
Registerad office: Hall No. 2 & 3, 6th Floor, 15, NBCC Tower, Bhikaji Cama Place,

New Delhi-110066.

Name of the member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id: dg@nlc.in

Folio No/ Client 1d:

DP ID: S

I/We, being the member (s) of 199955 Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: . or failing him

I - 0 1
PBEIEES! s ol s e e o e mm e e
25 pin | s S
Signature:

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my/our behalf at the 28th Annual General
Meeting of the company, to be held on Monday, 07th day of October, 2024, at 04:40 PM at Shorter Notice at
Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolution as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account and
the Statement of Cash Flow of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as per Ind AS, along
with the Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Financizl Statements, the Directors’ Report along-
with the Auditor's Reporl and comments of the Comptraller and Auditor General of India therean, and

Comptroller and Auditor Gengral of India under section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. To Fix the Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2024-25 appointed by the
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Signed this ... Alfix Re. 1 ‘
Revenue

Signature of shargholder Stamp
yuk,a
Signature of proxy holder(s) ‘

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Twenty Ninth Annual Report on the business and
aperations of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (“the Company") with the Audited Statement
of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the Financial Yearended 31st March 2024,

Dear Shareholders,

The Summarized Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2024, as compared with the previous year
2022-23,are as under:

Financial Highlights (Rupees in Crore)
S.No. Description ___ _:____ 2023-24 | 2022.23]
|' Income; ‘ '
(A) | REVEHUEfrﬂI'I"IEpEFEIﬁOHS - It 222360 | 1604.18 |
[Otrericome ——— —————
L .I B - _—__ Total (A) 235785 ﬁgzﬂ'
|: Expenses: | |
| | Purchases of Stock-in-Trade || 35859 190,31 |
I_Seruices Support EKDE_ ses - | 153??32 1147.70 |
.| (B) || Employees BH&H—EEFES; _____:_i 1431 | _12.95
| | Finance Cost 8.02 | 9.05 |
| '_epreciatinn and am_orm a 33_54 _7-:93 “|
| | Other Expenses T el 69.41
B | ~ Total(B) LGei.sa | 1503.35
InE)meraas) before tax @ - (B) B __[ 265.92 II 200.36
B Tax sxpenses B | 6940  s08s

| | Inceme/(loss) for the year

N | 19682 1497g]
The revenue from operaticns has increased Dy 38.61% in FY 202324 in comparnson o FY 2022-23. The
Income forthe FY 2023-24 has increased by 31.41% i com parison to FY 2022-23.

(1) Operating Margin
The Board of Directors in lis 1215t & 122nd meeting held on 26.03.2022 and 03.06.2022 respectively had
approved the revised rates of NICSI's Operating Margin for Projects /Services as under:

|'_ Project Value (Amount in Rs.) - | Rate of Operating Margin
' Up to 50 Crores 9%
More than 50 Crores and upto 100 Crores ] 7%
More than 100 Crores i} - ] 5%
/\
— ——(&f% o e ———— o e



(2) Dividend

The Company is registered under Section 25 of the Companies Acl, 1956 and as per the provisions of the
Section, the Company is prohibited to pay any dividend to Its members.

(3)  Transfertoreserves

The Company has not transferred any amount [0 reserves i e. General Reserve, Capital Reserve, Capital
Rademption Reserve efc,

(4)  Gradingof NIGSIByDPE

— e ————

| Grading b; DPE as per Mnmf;pﬂsite

Financial Year Score based on Audited Data
202223 _____J__, "~ Good
e S| ~ Good
=== 20_22_21——_’_ = Exempted

— 2022-20 - Good
— 202218 T Ppoor -
ey a Far

. 2022:17 = Excellent

(5) Ongoing Projects/Activitiesin FY.2023-24
5.1 National Knowiedge Netwark (NKN Project)

|nitiated in March, 2010, NKN Project Is approved DY the Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology
(MeitY) for a period of 10 years at 2 cost of around Rg5.5980 crere. NIC is the Implementing Agency for this
project, while NIGSI is assisting in procurement and providing IT Su pport. The Project is to establish high speed
data communication network which would inte ~.connect institutions of higher jearning and research 10 gnable
creation, acquisition and establishing of knowledge resources amongst them. i would also facilitate
collaborative research, cou ntrywide classrooms etc by commissioning links to the inslitutions connectivily to
NIC District Centers, setting up Centers in the States/UTs. MeitY has extended the project for two year l.e. up ta
March 2022 and furtier sddendum of even number dated 20,04.2020, 30.03.2021, 95.02.2022, 22.03.2023 &
28.02.2024 conveying (ne approval for extension of project duration upta 31.03.2024. During FY.2023-24,
NICSI has received Rs.581.70 crore from MeitY for this project, with tatal fund received till 31.03.2024. NKN
Project has been further extended by MeitY by one more year l.e.up to March, 2025.

5.2 Integrated Road Accident Database (IRAD):

Today, “Road Safety" is ane of the biggest public health issues throughout the country. Lakns of lives are lost
annually because of fatality due to road accidents. Road Safety is very impo rtant for a happy & healthy life, foran
individual as well as that of the nation. Today road traffic injuries are one of the leading causes of deaths,

%
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disabilities & hospitalizations with severs sociceconomic costs across the warld. Road accidents not only lead
lo loss of lives & cause immense pain and suffering to the victims, but also adversely affect the GDP of the
country. Therefors, it is crucial to develop a deeper understanding of the factors contributi ng to these accidents
in ordertoimplement effective measures for prevention.

MoRTH is working towards various aspects such as driver behavior, safe road infrastructure & vehicle
standards, better enforcement of traffic regulaticns, 2nd the role oftechnology in accident prevention. Mo RTH,
along with various related organizations as well as stakeholders has implemented a multi-pronged strategy to
daddress the issue of Road Safety based on 4E's namely - Education, Engineering (both roads & vehicles),
Enforcement & Emergency Care.

The MaR TH, along with various related organizations as well as stakeholders (Police, Transport, Road-owning
agencies, Health) has implemented a multi-pronged strategy to address the issue of Road Safety to achieve the
below objectives:

. On-site accident data collection through mobile based software (by capturing GPS location fro accident
site)

. Black-spot (Accident-prone areas) identification

. Improvement ofthe Black spot (Accident-prone areas)

In this cirection, NICSI has designed, developed & implementad 2 central repository, Integrated Road Accidsnt
Database (iRAD) project for collecting, storing, reporting, managing, interpreting, claim processing, and
analysis of all road accidents data to enhance road safety in the country. IRAD is currently live in all 36 states/
Uts.

The iRAD (Integrated Road Accident Database) project was initiated in 2020, Subsequently in Jan 2022,
development of g new functional module, viz., eDAR {electronic Detailed Accidert Report) started as per the
directions of the Hon. Delhi High Court & Hon. Supreme Court of India, as notified vide GSR No. 164C daled
25th Feb 2022. The digitized form of Detailed Accident Report (eDAR) is an integrated portal designed and
developed as an extension of IRAD application specifically to facililate the Claims procedure of Road Accidents.
The eDetziled Accident Report (eDAR) is developed with the objective of early settlement of victim’s claims & to
provide timely compensation to the victims of road accidents. The application will also help to curb the filing of
false claims,

This functional module, i.e., EDAR has been designed as “Claim Settlement” platform where accident victims
may claim compensation from the Insurer. Both these applications have now merged under the name eDAR.

The eDAR procedure includes additional siakeholders into the workflow facilitating real-time data transfer
within the stakeholders thereby making the claims processing easier & less time-consuming. The additional
stakeholders include - Insurance Companies, State Legal Service Authority (SLSA), Child Welfare Committee
(CWC), Metropolitan courts and Motor Accident Claims Tribunal (MACT). The Police module of eDAR is
currently live in 5states narmely - Delhi, Bihar, Karnataka, Haryana & Tamil Nadu,

el



A new scheme for the noble cause of the citizens which is- Cashless treatment scheme for road accident
victims during golden hour has been launched by MoRTH In association with National Health authority where
road accident victim can get the cashless treatment of maximum Rs. 1.5 lakh or upto 7 days (whichever is
earlier) in PMJAY impaneled hospital Police needs o give confirmation for genuineness of Road accident
victim through iRAD application to TMS application of NHA. This scheme is currently live in 2 states/ UTs namely
- Chandigarh & Assam.

(6) During FY. 2023-24, NICS| had received 2355 new projects far implementation from different
Ministries/ Departmants.

(7 Business Divisions in NICS!

Products Business Division (PBD) 1
PBO aims to facilitate Productization, Standardization & Promotion of NIC/NICSI software applications at
national & international market in South Asean, African, Latin American etc. MEA consent to be obtained for
each foreign project. Cost to be flexible as its development is met out of NIC Budget.

b

——
Central of Excellence for Data Analytics (CEDA)
Kick starting & fast tracking adoption of advanced analytic /machine learning capabilities by making itlocus
of expertise & excellence in Data Analytics field. It would provide qualily data analytic services to
Government Departments at all levels by identifying appropriate tools, technologies, deploying people with
right experlise & help in solving complex policy issues. |

Cloud Services & Data Centre Business Division ]
NICS|is implementing Cloud services from NDCs at Shastri Park, Pune & Bhubanaswar, New division nas
been set up to ensure more efficient & effective management of existing Cloud services & far future.

(8) Highlights for FY. 2023-24 compared with actlvities in FY. 2022-23
8.1 Proforma Involces (Pls) Details

Service Type FY,2023-24 FY.2022-23 1
Number of | Total Amount of Pls Number of Pls | Total Amount of Pls
Pls issued (Rs. in Crare) Issued (Rs. in Crore)
Manpower 8512 T 2227145 5142 140455
Miscellanaous 3933 1110.35 2696 308.37
Network | 8 39.96 13 | 3.51
Security Audit 299 A 190 3.85
Website Development | 39 | 32.19 158 105.58
" e-Office 288 85.51 282 81.12
| e-Granthalaya B4R 298 374 3.24
" Composite Head 850 | 144611 810 1300.74
IErand Total 11786 4956.66 89665 3210.86




82  WorkOrders (WOs) Details

Sevice | Py 202304  RY.202223
‘ Type Number of WOs | Total Amount WOs (Rs.| Number of WOs Total Amount WOs

issued in Crore) issued (Rs. in Crore)

Manpower ] 1407.44 7560 1160.75
Miscellaneous 1407 25525 | 708 196.64
| Networlk 26 © 79.00 7 | 1783
}Roll Out " 179 | c | o
Security Audit | s 14.40 109
\Wedslle Develooment | 170 15363 o 81.71
e-orﬁca_—_‘"_— 125 5817 T ss 29.94—ﬂ
e-Granthalaya I 276 ' 8_2;49 L 19 | 79.72 B
Composite Head 975 1589.71 669 082.10
Grand Total 11844 3641.97 9341 ﬁ?ﬂ
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Segment-wise brea k-up of new projects received

[o1.

(1)

(if)
(i)

Hardware items

SoE e o L
Manpower

04202310 31.03.2024 | 01.04.2022 15 31.032023

Website / Software Devel'uprne_nt

(iv]  Network

General Projects @m bined of Hardware,
| Software, Manpower etc.

(i) Other projects (SMS/BAS/e-Mail etc.)
Total o

84 Tenders
| Tenders Floated
)
(i)
Total

No. of Open Tenders

No. of Limited Tenders

85 MoU’s/ Agreements

- Entered into by NICS| with different
Departments/Organizations.




(9) Manpower

As per the manpowsr profile approved by the gavernment through notification in the Gazette of India dated
03.03.1998, manpower in NICS!| will be on temporary rotatinnal deputation basis along with their posts from
NIC.

The total staff strength in NICS1from NIC as on 315t March 2024 was a0.

(10) Particulars of Employees

Mone ofthe employees of the Company was in receipt of remu neration in excess of limits orescribed under rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Rem Lneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(11) Corporate Social Responsibility

NICS!'s ohjective is to promote ICT Solutions and Technology and to apply its profits, if any, or other income In
promoting its objects and prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.

The Board in its 99th Meeting held on 26th December, 2016 had constituted the CSR Commitiee, with the terms
of reference as per below.

. To formulate and recommend to the Board, & CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by NICS| as per the Companies Act, 2013,

. Tn review and recommend the amou nt of expenditure to be \neurred on the activities to be underta ken by
the company’

. Ta monitor the CSR policy ofthe Company from time to time;

' Any other matter as {he CSR Commitiee may deem approgriate after approval of the Boa rcl of Directors or
as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

The Company Secretary o NICS| shall actas Secretary tothe CSR Committee.

The quorum for the CSR Committee Meeting shall be ane-third of its total strength (any fraction cantained in
that one third be rounded off a5 gne) or two members, whichever is higher.

The Board in its 128th Meeting held on September 15, 2023 had re-constituted the CSR Committee,
comprising the fol lowing members:

Name & Deslignation Designation
" Shri Sanket Bhiondve, JS, MeitY
Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, NIC*

Chairperson

Member

Shri Shubhag Chand, DDG, NIC Member

Shri. VTV Ramana, DDG, NIC Member




*Ms, Alka Misra, DDG, NIC was associated with the company till 30.09.2023.
The 11th meeting and 12th meeting ofthe CSR Committee was heldon 19.12.2023 and 21 02,2024,

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other provisions, as applicable, the
amountto be incurred on CSR activities for FY.2023-24 by NICS| works outto Rs.3.02 Crore,

The Company has made the provision of Rs.3.02 Crore in the accounts for FY 2023-24 towards expenditure of
CSR. As per the approval of the CSR Committee and Board of Dirsctors dated 19.12.2023 and 26.12.2023
respeclively, NICS! had awarded the amount of Rs.2 Crore to 8 Organisation/NGOs to implement CSR
projects/programmes on behalf of NICS| for the FY 2023-24. Further the remaining amount of Rs. 1.02 Crore
has been distrinuted to 6 Organisation/NGOs Lo implement CSR Projects/programmes on behalf of NICSI for
the FY 2023-24 with the appraval of the CSR Committee and Board dated 21,02,2024 and 04.03.2024
respectively,

Further, during the financial year 2022-23, tha Company could not spend Rs. 2.5 Cr. towards G3R activities,
Consequently, the Company created a liability of Rs.2,5 Cr. in the financial statements for the year ended March
31st, 2023 towards expendilure on corporate socil responsibility. In FY 2023-24, out of Rs25Cr,Rs22Cr
were disbursed to CSR implementing agencies, and Rs.0.3 Cr. was deposited in a fund specified in Schedule V||
of the Companies Act, 2013, However while taking appraval from the Board for the CSR projects for FY 2023
23, inadvertently, it was mentioned ag ‘Qther than ongoing projects” instead of “Ongoing Projects” and CSR
return was filed with ROC aceordin gly. NICS! has taken the approvalofthe Board to change the category ofCSR
projects [0 "Ongoing Projects”. Accordi ngly, the Company will inform the same 1o ROC while filing the financial
statemenl and CSR return for FY 2023-24. Further, for FY 2023-24, NICS| has la ken the approval ofthe Board to
change the category of CSR projects ta “Ongoing Projects".

(12) Management Committee of Board

The Board of Directors in their 125th meeting held an 13.12.2022 with the approval of the shareholders in its
Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 18.1.2023 has canslituted the Management Com mittee of Board with
the following compesition:

(a) The Financial Advisor to the Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology;

(b) Such Joint Secretary to the Government of India or officer of equivalent rank in the Ministry of
Electronics and Information Technology who is Group Coordinator in charge of the e-Governance
Division inthe Ministry;

(c) Mznaging Director

(d) Such otherdirectors not exceeding two, to be nominated by the Chairperson.’

After that, the Chairperson vids its efile note dated 14.2.2023, has nominated the below two directors as per
article 90(c) of the Arlicles of Association:

(i) ShriS. K. Marwaha, Scientist G, Meity -Member

(i) Ms Alka Misra, DDG, NIC* -Member

*Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, NIC was associated with the company till 30.09.2023.

In addition to the duties under Articles (128) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board has de| egated
the following duties and functions to the Management Committee of Board:-
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(a) To review the heads of aceount and line item figuring in the Company’s Delegation of Powers has a
corresponding head of account or line item, and 10 make recommendations in this regard for

consideration of the Board.

() To recommend to the Board how—

(i the exercise of delegated powers may be subjected to availability of pudgetary provision; and

(i) arrangements may bein stituted to enable incurring of expenditure to meet unforeseen contingencies or
emergent situations;

(C) Toreviewtfie Delegation of Powers and racommend to the Board regarding—

(i) specific and appropriate entries in the Delegation of Powers to cover all such types of expenditure as
account for asignificant propartion in the Company's expenses; and

(i) approprigte distinction in the Delegation of Powers between expenses incurred from the Company's
own resources and those incurred from project funds;

(d) To review the status of pending legalcasesona quarterly basis;and

(e)  Toperfarm such otherduties as the Board may gssign fromtime totime.

The 3rd meeting of the Ma nagement Committes of Board was held on 07.06.2023.

{13) Carporate Governance

Gorporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is commilted to values aimed at enhancing
an organization’s brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting
business with a firm commitment to values. At NICS|, itis imperative that our compa ny affairs are managed in2

falr and transparent manner. This is vital to gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders.

Number of Board Meetings and General Meetings Convened in Finan cial Year 2023-24:

Sr. No.| EY. 2021-22 Date Venue

1. |127th Boa_rd Meeting zﬁﬁﬁ Conference Room No. 1007, st Floor, Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO

Complex, Lodhi Road, New Dalhi-110003 ‘

Z 125& Board Maating_15_ng,2(}23 Conferance Room No. 40091?1 Floor, Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 8, CGO

Complex, LG@]’ Rozad, New Delhi—ﬂJCIOS

13.1_2,2{}23 Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of E!ectrun%:;?
and Information Technolagy, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO
| G_-:}mm}iex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-11 Qoo3

4. | 130th Board Meeting 27.03.2024 Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry_nf Electronics '
| and Information Technology, Elsctronics Niketan, 8, CGO
- Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

28.12.2023 | Conference Raom No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology, Electronics Nikstan, 6, CGO
N Emplex, | odhi Road, New Delhi-110003

3 |7129th Board Meeting

5. 28thﬁoard Meeting

e ————

(14)  AuditCommittes

The Company, being @ wholly owned Governmeri Private Limited Cornpany was not required lo constiiute an
Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. However, the Board of Directors in its 99th meeting held on 26th
December, 2016, keeping in view of good governance practices, had constituted the Audit Committee in NIG Sl
16 review its Financial and Audit matters and ensure that NICSI follows prescribed financial rules and
regulations. The Gompany Sacretary to NICS| shall actas Secretary to the Audit Commities,

N
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The Audit Committee comprises the following members:

[F_Sr. No. Name & designation f _Dasfgnation ]
E Shri Rajesh Singn, JS&FA, Meity | Chalrperson |
2 Shri 8, K. Marwaha, Scientist G & Group Goordinator. MeitY Member i
E Ms. Sunita Verma, Scientist G & Group Coordinator, MeitY . Member

4 —| Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, NI~ - | Member

*Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, NIC associated with the com panytill 30.09.2023,

During the FY 2023-24, the meetings of Audit Committes were held on 21.08.2023 and 08 1 2.2023. The Audit
Committee in their meeting held on 25.07.2024 has reviewed the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st
March, 2024 and recommended for submission Lo the Board of Directors and the Shareholders. The Boart of
Directors has approved the financial statement in their meeting held on 30.07,.2024.

(15) Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtzined.

(18) Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matiers provided under sub-section (3)
ofsectlon 178

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was ot required to constitute a
Noemination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee under
Section 178(5) ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

(17) Extractofthe Annual Return in Form MGT-9

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, Extract of Annual Return is placed at Annexure-|.

(18) Material Changes and Commitments affecting financial position between the end offinancial year and date
of the Board report

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial pasition of the Com pany
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statemenis
relate and the date ofthe report.

(18) Changeinthe nature of business

Thereis na change inthe nature of business of the company,

(20)  Annual Accounts forthe Financial Year 2023-24 as perind AS

Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2023-24 have been prepared as per Ind AS.

(21)  The Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outga

The information on Conservation of Energy and Technolagical Abserption Is NIL. Foreign Exchange earnings
was NIL and outgo of the company during the yearwas alsa NIL.
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(22) Particulars ofloans, guarantees or investments under saction 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
During the year under raview, the Comgany has riot advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made investments.
(23) Related Party Transactions

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 inthe
form AOC-2 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and
were inthe ordinary course of business: NIL

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014:

7 Details of contracts ar arrangements or transactions rat at arm's length basis: NA

2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: NA

(24) Significant and material orders passed by the ragulators or courts or triounals impacting the going
concern statusand company’s operations in future

During the year under review there has been no such significantand material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the geing concern status and compa ny's operations in future,

(25) Subsidiary Company
As on March 31, 2024, the Company does not have any subsidiary.
(26) Auditors

/s, J. N Mital & Co. (Firm Registration no. 003587N), Charterad Accountants, J-85, 2nd Floor, Gulati Complex,
Rajouri Garden, New Delhi - 110027 were appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as
Statutory Auditors of the Cumpany u/s 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, to audit the accaunts of NICSI for the
year ended 31sl March 2024.

(27) Directors' Responsibility Statement
Purauant to the requirement under section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Beard of Directors of the
company hereby state that:

a)  Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards hac been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures,

by  The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates thatara reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that
period;

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safequarding the assets of the company and for
oreventing and detecting frauc and other irregularities;

d)  The Directors had preparedthe annual accounts on & geing concern basis; and

e) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls ta be followed by the company and that such
internzl financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure com sliance with the provisions of all applicable

G-




laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
(28) Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its gratituds to acknowledge the cooperation, assistance and guidance extended
to the Company by Central and State Government Ministries/Departments / Organizations and PSUs etc.
Including NIC and MeitY. The Directors are also gratzful to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and
Auditars for their cooperation. The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the members, bankers and clients
for their continued support. The Beard also wholeheartedly acknowledges with thanks the dedicated efforts of
allthe staffand employees ofthe Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson

Place: New Delhi
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Annexure -|
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2024

[Pursuant to section 92(3] of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1} of the Companies(Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]
l. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

0 CIN UT4899DL 1995NPLO72045

1) | Registration Date ' 28.08.1985

1y | Name of the Company National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated

lv) | Category / Sub-Categary of Private Limited Section 25 (Now Section 8 Company) Company
the Company under National Informatics Centre, Department of Electronics and

Information Technology, Ministry of Communications and Information
Technology, Government of India.

v) |Address of the Registered Hall No, 2 & 3, 6th Floor, NBCC Tower, 15, Bhikaji Cama Place, New :
office and contact details Delhi-110066, Tel.: 91-11-26105054, 26105193

_vt} Whether listed company No
Yes / No

vil) Name, Address and Contact Nil

details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, ifany

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

8r.No.| Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
products / services Product/Service the company

1 Sales of Traded Goods 15.26

2 Service and other Income 84.74

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. No. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/SUBSU| % of shares Applicable
ADDRESS OF DUARY/ held Section
THE COMPANY ASSOCIATES
1 Nil

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(1) Category-wise Share Holding

Aot

<1567
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at
the end of the year

Todal % of
Total

Shares

Dema |Physical

Demat

Physical| Total

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Gowvt
¢) State Govt ()
d) Bodies Corp.
) Banks [ FI

f) Any Cther....

Sub-total (A) (1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -Individuals
b) Other Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other.,..

Sub-total (A) (2)
Total shareholding

of Promoter (A) =
(A)1)+{A)(2)

NIL 200000 200000/ 100 |

NIL NIL NIL NIL

NIL 200000 | 200000| 100

NIL

NIL

NIL

B.Public
Shareholding

1.Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b} Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

| d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

Nat

200000] 200000

NIL NiL

200000 | 200000

_%cf

Total

_ |Shares|

100

NIL

100

% Change
during the

year

INIL

NIL

NIL

b

Applicable

G




h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others ({specify)

'Sub-total (B)(1)

2 Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

I) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
nalding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lzkh

c) Others(specify)

Sub-total (B)(2)

Not Applicable

Totz| Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Snhares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Not Applicable

Mot Applicable

Grand Total (A+B+C)

NIL '| 200000

200000] 100 | NIL 200000 200000 100

MIL

(iiy Shareholding of Promoters

l Sr. No. | Sherenolder’s Name[

Shareholding at the beginning of the year |

Share holding at the end of the year

‘ No. of 9% of total | %of Shares | No.of % oftotal| %of o
- Shares Shares of | Pledged/ | Shares | Shares | Shares Changein
the encumbered of the |Fledged/| share
company to total company @ncumber) holding
shares edto total| during
shares | the year
4 President of India, 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 100 | NIL NIL
through NIC |
Total 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 100 | NIL NIL
!
585




(i) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:

SrNo.| Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during theyear
| No.of | 9% of total No.of % of total
1 shares | sharesofthe | shares shares of
company | the company

2 At the beginning ofthe year

3 Date wise Increase /Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the Not
yearspecifying there ason forincrease Applicable
/decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer
/bonus/ sweat equity etc):

4 Al the End of the year

*One Share held by Shri Sunil Kumar, ex-DDG, NIC as a nominee was transferred to Shri |.PS. Sethi, DOG,
NIC on 27,03.2024

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

and ADRs):
'SrNo. | Shareholding at the Cumnulative Shareholding
beginning ofthe year during theyear
No. of % of total No. of % of total
For Each ofthe Top 10 Shareholders shares shares of the shares shares of
company the company
At the beginning ofthe year
Date wise Increase ! Decrease
inShare holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase f Not
decrease (e.q. allotment / transfer / :
Applicable

bonus! sweat equity etc):

At the End of the year ( or onthe
date of separation, if separated
during the year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:




Sr.No. Shareholding at the Cumulative Sharehalding
beginning ofthe year during theyear
S | No.of | % of total No.of | %oftotal
For Each of the Directors and KMP | shares shares of the shares shares of
company the company
At the beginning ofthe year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase NIL
/decrease (e.g. allotment ftranster
/bonus/sweat equity etc):
Al the End of the year

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedriess of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
evicluding deposits

Deposits | Total
Indebtedness

Unsecured
Loans

Indebtsdness at the beginning of
ASQ the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iif) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i-+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Addition Not Applicable
Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

il) Interest due but not paid

iif) Interest accrued but not due

" Total (i+ii+if)

—

| |

V1. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

NICS| is promoted by Government of India through National Informatics Centre (NIC), as a Private Limited
Section 25 Company (Now Saction 8 Company). As per Article 59() of the Articles of Association of the
company, the Managing Director shall be appointed by the Director General, NIC on behalf of the President of
India by deputing suitable officer of NIC.

<];E§}—




SrNo.

Parliculars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WT Da"Managar—'_ Total Amount (in Rs.)

Dr. Vinay Thakur

Gross salary

(@) Salary as per provisions
contained In section 17(1} of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

© Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-Tax Act, 1961

50.34 Lakh

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Not

Applicable

50.34 Lakh

— |

B. Remuneration to other directors

SrNo. |

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

TotalAmount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board / committee
meetings

Commission

———

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board / committee
Meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

- Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the AE:t

Not
Applicable

2>

A
)]
¥

¢




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

[Sr.Nc. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Company Secretary
o o Shri Sunny Jain Total
1 Gross salary 19.38 Lakh 19,38 Lakh
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax

Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/is 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Incame tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option
Sweal Equi‘ty
4 Comimission
- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Dthers, please specify

o

Not Applicabile

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type | Section of the Brief Description

Details of Penalty | Autherity [RD /

Appeal made, if

a}m pounding

Companies Act / Punishment/ NCLT/ COURT] | any (give
Compounding Details)
fees iImposed

Penalty
Puni_shment NIL
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson

Place: New Delh




ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. To spend on the CSR activities as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 including Rules made there under.

2. Compositicn of CSR Committee:

'; No.| NameofDirector | Designation/Nature Number of Meeting | Number of Mesting of |
‘ of Directorship of CSR Commitles CSR Commitiee
held during the year |attended during the year|
1 _Shrl Sanket Bhondve, ‘ Chairperson 2 2
JS, MeityY
2 Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, Mamiur ’ .
NIC
2 Shri Shubhag Chand, Member 5 5
DDG, NIC
d4 Shri. VTV Ramana, Member 2 2
DDG, NIC ‘

"Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, NIC was associated with the com pany till 30.09.2023.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the wabsite of the company. http://nicsi.com/

4, Provide the details of Impact assessment of SR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, ifapplicable (attach the report).
Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year,
if any

I

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required 1o be set-off for_‘

preceding financlal years (in Rs) | the financial year, if any (in Rs}

1 | 1

[ 2

2

Total

B. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.132 (Rs. In Crore)

7. (8) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 1 35(5): Rs.3.02 (Rs. In Crore)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. NiL
(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢). Rs. 3.02 (Rs. In Crore)

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

A

— \%ﬁav —
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Total Amount Spent for
the Financial Year. (in

Rs.) (InCr.)

AmountUnspent(in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
gection 135 (B).

Armount,

Date of transfer.

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VIl as per
second proviso to section 135 [5).

Mame of the Furu:lll Armount.

Dalte

of transfer.

EI 46"

NA NA

NA | NA

NA

*NICSI has paid the balance of R5.1.56 cr. as advance 10 implementing agencies against ongoing projects. The

fund will

next financial yearalso.

(b} Details of CSRamaunt spentagalnstongoing projects for the financial year:

he utilized by implementing agencies in the next financial year. Since the groject will continue in the

e [ @& [ @ e | 6 %) @ [ @ [ (o]
Sr.N |Nameof| Item Local | Locatio | Project | Amount | Amount | Amount | Mode | Mode of
the |fromthe| area | nofthe | duraton | allocate | spentin transferr| of Impleme
Praject. | listof |(Yes/No} | project. dforthe| the edto | Imple | Ntatien -
' activitie = oroject | current | Unspent mentat| 'hroush
sin State[t{islr (in Rs.). | fimancial | CSR ion - | mpleme
Schedul ict Year (in | Account | Direct nting
e Vil fo Rs). | forthe | (Yes/N| AGencY
the Act. | roject a).
it |0 e
[ [ . Registri
Section i
135(6) rmber
(in Rs.).
| _ |
1 |Developm| (1) NG Uttar | 2500000 | 2025000 | Advance| Nc  Fou CSR
ent of Pradesh release (o nda 000
improved the tion|
| prototype implemen for | 370
an:ltpﬂut ting ‘:I:‘r'm‘L g
of low- enc -
cost Agency ion
wearable and
smart Res
device gar
' providing ch
disease ln.
prediction Sci
based an Clale
2ss058Me s
nt of core ?rnrl
body ::
terr:lfeerat ol
gy




Rur|CSR

Multiple | (1 | No Haricwa 2500000(1519310 | Advance|  No
Project r and release al (000
' Udam to the Edu | 209
Singh Limpleme cati | 91 |
Nagar nting ?8:1
UK Agenc
o | Agency Wel
' fara
Soc |
fBT],"'i
A Vibrant | (1) No District 2500000 1285891 | Advance | No Lokv CER
Communi Kutch release ani 0000
ty (Gujarat) to the - |30s8
Pragrar impleme |Gen
me for nting tar
Women's Dev
Health Agency &
and lep
Mutrition men
Through L
Education
al Com
|Awarenes m
5, unci
Multimedi ati [
a and on
Capacity | unc
Building ati
on
| |
Adolesc | () ‘No Fatehgar 2500000 1049913 Advance | No Yug CER
ent Peer | release San 0008
» :I'r;; N | to the | skrit| 404
implems
ment of Imn’ziﬁg Nga
Skill and
Healthy Agency
Associati '
on
Reprod () No Rampur | 2500000 | 1266313 |Advance! No Mo |CSR
uctive and release men (0033
and Aligarh lo the vork | D87
~ Child (UP) impleme §
Health nting e
 Care | | Agency o
A |




6

This
COompre
hensive |
initiative

by
Gramya

Prava

will
cantribu
te to the
betterm

ent of
the
Penthak
ata slum
commu
nity,
improvin
g their
overall
health,
nutrition |

,and

S50CI0-

econa
mic

prospe
cts

)

To
establis
ha
state-of-
the-art
Compul
er Lab

No

Mo

District
Puri
State-
Odisha,

1700000

NIL

| Advance |

release
to the

impleme |
nting

Agency |

Dist.-
Ahmed
nagar,
State-
Mahara
shira

| 1700000

To Build
a state-

of-the-
art skill
develop
ment
centre |
(buildin
gffurnitu
re) for
persons
with
Intellect
ual
Disabilit
ies
(PwlDs)

U]

No

Ujjain
(MP)

|
1700000

NIL

release
1o the

impleme
nting

Agency

Advance

Mo

Mo

Gra|CSR
mya 0000

Gre [CSR
enw (0003
orld |2257
Foun
dail
ion

NIL

Advance
release
to the
impleme
nting
Agency

No

'Nag (CSR
da 0000
Zeni (8835
th
Soci
al
Welf
are
Socl
sty




e

Ao

9 | Extensi | () No | Anand 1700000 NIL [Advance| No [Sanjcsr
on of Nagar, release eeva 0004
Medical Bohri, | to the ni 1790
Service Jammu impleme Shar
Centre nting | da
Agency Kend
ra
10 |Providing| () No |Chamba 1700000| NIL |Advance. No |Pary|csr
primary (Himacha relgase as (0000
medical Fradesh) | tothe 1812
healthcar | impleme
e facilities nting
operation Agency
—— | al f H
11 [MIYCHN-| () No  |Shravasti 1700000 NIL  |Advance| No |Sant CSR
Maternal (UP) | releasa ‘Ravi 0002
[rfant to the dass|35870
| Young | impleme Educ
| Children | Ating ation
Health & |
: Agency a
| Nutrition Soci
| ely
Total } 22700000| 7148427
(C) Details of CSR amount spent againsl other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) [ (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr.No| Neme of ltem from | Local area | Location of |  Amount Mode of Mode of
the the listof | (Yes/No). | the project, | spentfor | im plementa | implementation -
Project | activities in - | the project | tion - Direct Through
schedule State.| Distri] (N Rs.). (Yes/Na). implementing
VIl to the &t agency.
Act. Name. CSR
registration
| : number
1 Menstrual (1) Ne Narmda 2500000 Mo Gram | CSROOD
hygiene District, Vikas 00175
| and basic Gujarat Trust
sanitation
2 MIYCHN - )] No Balrampur | 2500000 Na Sant CSR
Maternal (UP) Ravidass | 000238
Infant Educatio 70
Young ' nal
Children
Health &
Nutrition | '




Banraich

3 Health, My | No 2500000 No Viklang | CSR
Nutrition (UP) Sahara | 000001
and Samiti 05
Supportive Delhi
Devices to
the people
with
disabilities
and senior .
citizens
Total 7500000
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Cverheads : NI
(e) Amount spent an Impact Assessment, if applicable : NA
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 1,45 46 427/
(q) Excess amount for set off, if any. NA
Sr.No Particular Amaount (in Rs_}l
)] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) |
| (1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(1) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii}-(1)]
|
(1v) | Surplus arising out of the C5R projects or grogramimes or activities of the
| previous financial years, if any
(V) '| Amount available for set off in succeeding financial ysars [(il)-(iv)]

8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Er.No Preceding i;o!%.r'nr;:nunt transferred Amount spentin | Amount transferred to Amount remaining
Financial | toUnspent CSR | the reporting any fund specified to be spent In
Year. Account under | Financial Year (in | under Schedule VIl as succeeding
section 135 (6) (in Rs.) (In Cr.) per section 135(6), if | financial years.
Rs.) (In Cr.) any. (in Rs.)
1| FY2022-23 250 2,50 NL | ONIL | NI NIL
2 FY 2021-22 1.12 NA NIL NIL | NIL NIL
3 |
Total 3.62 2,50 |

da



(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

| @ | e | @ (5) (6) ™| ® (9)
Sr. | ProjectID. | Nameofthe | Financial | Project Total Amount | Cumulativ | Status of
Project. Yearin duration | amolnt | spenton | e amount |the project
which the allocated |the project| spentat o
project was for the inthe  the end of | Completed
commenced project (in | reporting | reporting | /Ongoing.
Rs.). Financial | Financial
Year (in | Year (in
Rs). Rs.)
1 Menstrual 2022-23 3000000 | 5000000 | 5000000 Completed
Hygiene '
Management
(For the |
women by the
women)
2 Health 2022-23 | 5000000 | 5000000 | 5000000 |Completed
renabilitation/t
| herapy and
distribution of
aids & Health
‘ and assistive
devices for '
dizabled & |
elderly people |
3 Promotion of | 2022-23 5000000 & 5000000 5000000 'Completed
Health & |
Nutrient
through millets
blending diets.
4 Upskiling Youth | 2022-23 3500000 | 3500000 | 3500000 Completed|
in Healthcare by
Training to
erthance their
employment
avenues
5 Deployment of | 2022-23 3500000 | 3500000 | 3500000 |Completed
Indigenous
Technologies
in healthcare
of Women and
Child Health
Total 22000000 | 22000000 | 22000000 N
P



10. In case of creation or acguisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spentin the financial year: NA
(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital assef(s).

(b} Amount of CSR spentfor creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registerad,
their addressetc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset).

11. Specify the reasan(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profitas per section
135(5).

Out of total CSR expenditure of Rs. 3.02¢r, Rs. 1.48cr were spend during the FY 2023-24 and the balance
Rs 158 or as advance to implementing agencies against ongoing projects. The fund will be utilized by
implementing agencies in the nextfinancial year, Since the project will continue inthe next financial year alsa.

Sd/- Sd/-
{Managing Director). (Chairman C3R Committee).




Form No. MGT-8

[Pursuant to section 92(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 11(2) of Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014]

CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

| have examined the registers, records and books and papers of NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE
SERVICES INCORPORATED, a company registered under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 having
CIN: U74899DL1895NPL072045 and registered office at Hall No 2 & 3, 6th Floor, NBCG Tower, 15 Bhikaji Cama
Place, New Delhi-1100886, India (“the Company"} as required to be maintained underths Com panies Act, 2013
("the Act”) and the rules made thereunder for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 In my opinion and Lo
the best of my information and according te the examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished to
me by the company, its officersand agents, | certify that:

A,

B.

e

=L

10.

The Annual Return states the facts as at the close ofthe aforesaid financial year correctly and adequately.

During the aforesaid financial year the Company has complied with provisions of the Act & Rules made
there under inrespect of;

Its status under the Act:

Maintenance of registers/records & making entries therein within the time prescribed therefor:

Filing of forms and returns as stated in the annual return, with the Registrar of Companies, Regional
Director, Central Government, the Tribunal, Court or other authorities withinfoeyand the prescribed time.
Calling/ convening/ holding meetings of Board of Directors as on 27-06-2023, 15-00-2023. 13-12-2023 &
27-03-2024 and its committees Mestings as on 19-12-2023 & 21-02-2024 for Corporale Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee, 20-06-2023, 21-08-2023 & 08-12-2023 for Audit Committee and
07-08 2023 for Management Commitiee of the Board and the meetings of the members of the company
as on 28-12-2023 (Annual General Meeting) on due dates as siated in the annual return in respect of
which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings including the circular resolutions and
resolutions passed by postal ballot, if any, have been properly recorded in the Minute Book/registers
maintained for the purpose and the same have been signed;

The Company was notreguiredto close its Register of Members, during the financial year under review,
There was no Advance/ loan to Directors and /or persons or firm or Companies referred in Section 185 of
the Act,

There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review:

There were no event of issue or allotment or transmission or buy back of securitics/ redemption of
preference shares or debentures/ alteration or reduction of share capital/ conversion of shares! securities
and issue of security certificates in all instances during the financial year ended as on 3415t March, 2024,
Keeping in abeyance the rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus shares pending registration of transfer
of shares in compliance with the provisions of the Act. There was no such activity during the Financial
Year2023-24;

Declaration/ payment of dividend; transfer of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend/other amounts as applicable to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with section 125 of the Act. Not Applicable as
Declaration/Payment of Dividend is prohibited under Section 8 (1)(C) of the Act.




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

T

18.

Signing of audited financial statement as per the provisions of section 134 of the Act and reportofdirectors
is as per sub - sections (3), (4) and (5) thereof,

The Company has complied with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to appointment &
cessation of Diroctors and remuneration paid to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel during the financial
year;

Shri Rajiv Rathi, Smt. Alka Misra and Smt. Suchitra Pyrelal have retired from Directorship an 30-08-2023.
Shri Sanket Bhondve was appointed as Director on 23-08-2023 and Shri Sushil Pal has retired from
Directorship on 23-08-2023.

Smt. Jayanthi Srinivasan & Shri Sushee| Kumar were appointed as Director on 01-10-2023.

Shri Bhuvnesh Kumar was appointed as Director (Chairperson) on 17-07-2023 and Shri Amit Agrawal has
retired from Directorship on 17-07-2023.

Appointment of auditor as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. J.N. Mital & Co, (DE1010),
Chartered Accountants, was appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as Statutory
Auditors of the Company u/s 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the year ended 31st March 2024,

No approvals was required to be taken from the Central Government, Tribunal, Regional Director,
Registrar, Court or such other authorities under the various provisions of the Act;

The Company had not accepted /renewed / repayment of deposils during the Financial Year 2023-24 as
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not taken the Borrowings from its directors, members, public financial institutions, banks
and others during the financial year under review

The Company has not made any Loans and investments or guarantees given or providing of securities (o
other bodies corporale ur persons falling under the provisions of section 186 of the Act;

The Company has not altered the provisions of Memorandum and/or Articles of Association during the
financial year under review;

Place: MNew Delhi
Date: 19.11.2024

for AGRAWAL MANISH KUMAR & CQ
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
MANISH KUMAR AGRAVWAL
(Proprietor)
C.P.NO. 7057
Membership No: F-8528
UDIN: FO09528F002315691
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NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INCORPORATED (NICSI)

Replies to the Draft Statutory Auditor Observation from M/s. J.N Mital & Co. Chartered Accountants on
the Accounts of NICSI for FY. 2023-24.

AUDIT OBSERVATION

NICS| REPLY

1.Basis for Qualified Cpinion

l.  We draw attention ta the following notes to the
financial statements. These balances are subject to
reconciliation and confirmation. Pending such
conformation and reconciliation, we are not in a
position to ascertain and comment on the
correctness of the outstanding balances and
resultant impact of the same on financial statements,

Description Note No. Balance as on
March 2024
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Other financial Note-7 1,366.10
assels |
(Security
Deposit) i
N Other non- Note-9 12,774.42
current assets”
(Capital & other
advance)
Trade Note-10 42,085.51
receivables
Other current Note-15 29,011.05
assets"”
(Advance to
suppliers)
Other financial Note-18 64.76
liabilities
(Sscurity
deposits
payable)
Trade Payable Note-18 45,206.02

Balance Confirmation Letters have been issusd
towards the balances as on 31.03.2024 to around 50
Departments. It is regular feature that such letters
are issued fo the Departments / Organisations elc,
but very negligible response is recelved against the
same. Most of our users are Government or Semi
Government Department. However NICSI has
automated in its ERP system for the balance
confirmation so that reconciliation and conflirmation
can be done,

A Debtor Recovery Cell (DRC) has been created
under NICSI. Further, during the financial year 2023-
24, 484 letters has been sent by DRC for Balance
confirmation.

14 departments have been responded to our letter
forseeking further information.

It is assured that more rigorous follow-up will be
made for balance confirmation in the Next Financial

| ¥Year.




l Dther financial Note-20 B61.09
liabilities”
(Ernest money
deposit &
retention
money

deposit)

Other current MNotz-21 2,63.566.22
liabilities™
(advance from

clstomers)

ii. Refer Note 37. “Contingent Liabilities”. Instead of
recognizing interest expense & interest liability in
respect of MSME trade payables, the company has
disclosed interest liability in respect of MSME trade
payable as a contingent liabllity. This has resulted in
overstaternent of income by Rs.762.26 Lakhs &
understatement of Trade payables by Rs.7562.26
Lakhs.

Interest under MSME is calculated for those vendors
who have submitted the MSME Certificates, and
disclosed as Contingent liability under the Note no.
37 of Financial Siatement.

As per process the interest will be recoverable from
user Department if interest is payable due to non-
availability of funds under project. The same is also
disclosed in Closing Statement and Performa
Invoice Issued to User Department.

Haowever Interest under MSME will be paid as &
when any demand will be raised by the vendors:
However, no demand is pending under MSME Act.

Accordingly the Interest Liability under MSME have
heen disclosed under the Contingent Liability.

ii. Refer Note Na 10 “Trade Receivables". As per
the requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il of the
Companies Acl, 2013, the againg should be
disclosed for the categories: less than 6 months, &
months - 1 year, 1- 2 years, 2 -3 years, and more than
3 years, with the due date of payment taken as the
base date. Since ERP accounting software of the
company do not generates ageing detalls, therefore
the Company has disclosed ageing of lrade
recelvables using a yearly incremental balance
approach.

Further, Company has recognized Rs. 11620 |akhs as
provision for doubtful debts. Accounting policy of the
company far provision for doubtful debts is given in
Note 2 (xvi) states that a “Provision towards Doubtful
Debts is recognized considering 100% for the period
of more than 10 years, 50% between 5-10 years &
25% between 3-5 years asat the Balance sheet date”.

/7 N
Y

Currently, ageing of trade receivables being
maintained manually on FIFO basis and same is
followed previous years also. The provision on
doubtful debts has been provided in the Financial
Statement accordingly and disclosed in Note 10
“Trade Receivables” of Financial Statement.

However, NICSI is in the process to upgrade its
existing support for ERP and will update the ageing
should as suggested by the Auditor and provision
will be made accordingly




As per accounting policy, provisioning period of 10
year, 5-10 years and 3-5 years should be seen from
the due date of payment of invoice. Since ERP
accounting software of the company does not
generate ageing details, therefore, company has
used yearly incremental balance approach for
calculating provision of Rs. 116201 Lakhs. In view of
non-availability of invoice wise ageing of the trade

on the correctness of the ageing disclosed &
provisioning amount of Rs. 11620 |akhs.,

receivables, we unable to ascertain and comment |

2. Emphasis of Matier

. Refer note no 55 “Expenditure on corporate social
responsibility”, The company has disclosed that in
the financial year 2022-23, while obtaining Board
approval for CSR expenditure, it inadvertently did
not calegorize CSR projects of Rs. 220 Lakhs as
“ongoing projects”. Additionally, the company filed
CS8R2for FY 2022-23, considering these projects as
“other than ongoing projects.” In its board meeting
held on 30.07.2024, the company's Board ratified
this error by reclassifying the “other than ongoing
projects” category to “ongoing projects.”

il. The company is reguired to review its accounting
policies in respect of revenue recognition given in
note 2(vil) & in respect of amortization of computer
software and server given in note 2(iv).

The necessary approval from Board has been taken
in the meeting held on 30.07.2024 & 07.10.2024,

The necessary ROC filing will be completed in due
course accordingly.

Accounting policies are reviewed by the company |
every year and changes in the sarme will be
incorporated in financizl statement,

Policies in respect of revenue recognition,
amortization of computer scftware and server will be
made/update in current financial year L.e. 2024-25.

3. Other Matter

l. The company does not have an appropriate
internal control system for ensuring recording of
revenue n respect of direct services/managed
services. Currently, revenue from these services is
recorcled at the time the Invoice is generated. An
Invoice is produced only after the project
coordinator confirms that the service has besn
delivered and instructs the billing division to issue
the invoice. This method results in & time lag
between when the service is actually provided and
when the revenue is recorded, as revenue
recognition occurs based on the invoice generation
rather than the actual performance of the service.
This could potentially result in impaired financial
reporting.

As suggested by Statutory Auditor NICS! will
strengthen Internal Control In respect of recording
of revenue of direct services/managed services far
the current financial year2024-25,

Pl
175,
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i. The Company does not have an dppropriate
internal control system for reconciliation &
confirmations of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,
Advance from customer, Ernest Money Deposit,
Retention Money, Security deposits, Advances 10
Suppliers, which could potentially result in some
changes in the financizl statements. The cases
identified by us have been appropriatsly qualified al
variolis placesin our regort.

NICS! had completely adopted the ERP Software
w.e.f 01.07.2017 towards Accounts and other
related fields. NICS! have an appropriate internal
control system for reconciliation & confirmations of
Trade Recelvables.

However, as per auditor suggestion NICS! is
extending their reconctliation & confirmation
process, inrespect of Trade Payables, Advance from
customer, Emest Money Deposit, Retention Maney,
Security deposits, Advances to Suppliers in the
financial year 2024-235.

i. The Compary does not have an appropriate
internal control system for the ageing of trade
receivables. Currently, ageing is being done
manually in Excel, which may lead 1o potential
inaccuracies and inefficiencies. Consequently,
notentially result in impaired financial reporting. The
cases identified by us have been appropriately
qualified at various places inour report,

NICSI is in the process to upgrade its existing
supportfor ERP end will update the ageing should as
suggested by the Auditor

J'f.
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc

(A Government of India Enterprise under Section 8 of the Com

CIN: U74B99DL1995NPL072045
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024

panies Act, 2013)

"in Lakh
Particulars Note As at As at |
No. March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 4,451.39 3,878.61
Capital work-in-progress 4 553.00 8,297.21
Right of use assets 5 13,585.91 15,710.57
Other Intangible assets B 6,1058.20 5,320.49
Financial assets:

Others Financial Assets 7 1,368.10 1,262.36
Deffered Tax Assets ( Net ) 3] 5,555.82 4,060.91
Other non-current assets 9 12,774.42 1,597.34

Total Non-current assets 44,391.84 40.136.49
Current assets
Financial assetg:
(a) Trade receivables 10 42.095.51 48,5861.48
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 11 105,381.14 » 78,321.22
(c) Bank balances other than '(b) above 12 158,807.90_- 135,651.57
(d} Others Financial Assets 13 5.8945.41 4,623.05
Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 18.400.99 19,539.09
Other current assets 15 64,145.08 34,304 .50
Total Current assets 384, 777.01 317,000.91
Total Assets 439,168.85 357,137.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 16 200.00 200.00
Other Equity 17 108,736.46.. 89,054.51
Total Equity 108,936.46 _ 89,254 .51
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(a) Lease Liablity 35 15,676.19 1730184
(b) Other financial liabilities 18 64.76 64.75
Total Non-current liabilities 15,740.95 17,366.61
. @}



Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:
(a) Lease Liablity 35 1,738.04 1,697.79
(b) Trade payables 19
T otal outstanding dues of Micro 3.959.78 6,847.30
Entorprises and Small Enterprises
T otal outstanding dues cf creditors 41,246.24 41,2689.99
athar than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(c) Other financial liabilities 20 1,315.64 142672
Other current liabilities 21 265,662.60 199 326.51
Provisions 22 569.14 28T
Total Current liabilities 314,491.44 250,516.28
Total Equity and Liabilities 439,168.85 357,137.40
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes (1 - 62) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For J N Mital & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003587N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services inc.

Sd/- Sdli- Sd/-
Manoj Valodi Dr. Rajesh Kumar Mishra Sh. Bhuvnesh Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairperson

Membership Mo. 560392 DIN: 10880009 DIN: 02780311

UDIN No. 24560392BKMDONU15T8

Sdr- Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Sunny Jain Sh. Jitendra Kumar
Date: 30.07.2024 Company Secretary FARCA
A ACS. 31700
Jroi. ¢




National Informatics Centre Services Inc
(A Government of India Enterprise under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 201 3)
CIN: UT4899DL1995NPLOT2045

Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended March 31, 2024

" in Lakh
Sl Particulars Not | Yesar ended Year ended
No. e No| March 31, March 31, 2023
= 2024
INCOME
I Revenue From Operations 23 222,359 96 160,418.10
1] Other Income 24 13,425.56 4,862 98
n Total Income (I+11} 235,785.52 170,271.08
v EXPEMNSES
Furchases of Stock-in-Trade 25 35,858.93 19,030.09
Services Support Expenses 153,731.60 114, 770.31
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,431.22 1,295.16
Finance Cost 27 802.35 805.33
Depreciation and amortization expenses 28 8,363.94 T,292.90
Other expenses 29 9.005.71 6,941.25
Total Expenses (IV) 209,193.76 150,235.04 =1
v Income/(loss) before tax (111-1V) 26,591.76 20,036.04
VI Tax expense; 6,909.81 5,058.64
(1) Current tax 8,364.77 5.525.80
(2) Deferred tax (1.494.91) (482.28)
(3) Tax for Earlier Years adjustad/(Wrilten back) 39.95 15.12
Vil Income/ (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (V-V1 19,681.95 14.,977.40
1X Total Comprehensive Income for the period 19,681.95 14,977.40
{Comprising Income/ (Lass) and Other
Comprehensive Income for the year)
X Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Rs.100):
(1) Basie 30 8,840.96 7.488.70
(2) Diluted 30 2,840.96 7.488.70
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes (1 - 62) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For JN Mital & Co,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003587N

Sd/-
Manoj Valodi
Partner
Membership Mo. 560392
UDIN No. 24560392BKMDNU1578

Sd/-
Dr. Rajesh Kumar Mishra
Managing Direclor
DIN: 10680009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Sh. Bhuvnesh Kumar
Chairpersaon
DIN: 02780311

5d/- Sdj-
i Sunny Jain Sh. Jitendra Kumar
Place: New Delh
D:t(-:: 309;; 2:2-; Company Secretary FASCA
T ACS: 31700
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc

(A Government of India Enterprise under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL072045

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

A. Equity share capital for issued, subscribed and paid up equity share of Re. 100/- each

— “in Lakh
Particulars [ Note Amount
As at March 31 2022 16 200,00
Changes during the year ] -
As at March 31 2023 16 200.00
Changes during the year v
As at March 31 2024 16 200.00
B. Other equity (Refer note 17)
"in Lakh
F Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total other equity
Retainad earnings
As at March 31 2022 73,986.10 73,986.10
Prior Period Income (Manpower) -
Prior priod impact of Net Increase on Other
Equity (Reserve & Surplus) (Refer Note No.
36) 91.01 91.01
Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year 14,977 .40 14,977.40
| As at March 31 2023 89,054.51 89,054.51
Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year 19,681.95 19,681.95
Total Surplus for the year 19,681.95 19,681.95
As at March 31 2024 108,736.46 108,736.46

As per our report of even date
For J N Mital & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003587N

Sdr-
Manoj Valodi
Partner
Membersnip No. 560392
UDIN No. 24560392BKMDNU1578

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.07.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Dr. Rajesh Kumar Mishra
Managing Director
DIN: 10680009

Sd/-

Sunny Jain =

Company Secrelary
ACS: 31700

Sdf-
Sh. Bhuvnesh Kumar
Chairperson
DIN: 02780311

Sdf-

Sh. Jitendra Kumar
FASCA




National Informatics Centre Services Inc
(A Government of India Enterprise under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)
CIN: U74B99DL1995NPL072045

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

" in Lakh

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus /(Deficit) before tax and extraordinary items 26,591.76 20,036.04
Adjustments for;
Cepreciation and amortization Expenses 8,363.94 7,292 90
Provision for doubtful debts 1,136.50 1,233.75
Reversal of Starmp Duty Provision - (46 55)
Provision for Carporate Social Responsibilities Expenses 155.56 -
Provision for Interest 2nd Penzlty on LF & SUC Charges 413.59 -
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Property Plant & Equipment (0.58) | {1.05)
Finznce Income (On Security Deposit) (92.58) (83.61)
Finance Cost dUZ.36 90533
Interest income (12,331.27) (8,317.89)
Provision/(Recoverable) against Advances 84,98 37.66
Operating Surplus /(Deficit) before Working Capital changes 25,134.35 21,056.57
Adjustrments for :
(Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables 332947 (13,366.08)|
(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advznces and other assats (33,747.27) (6,154.95)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable & other liabilities 63,265.77 8.783.31
Cash Generated from Operations 57,982.33 10,318.85
Income tax Paid (6,869.88) (5.043.52)|
Income tax for Previous Years {39.95) [15.T2]i
Net Cash inflow/[outflow) from Operating activities (A) 51,072.52 5,260.21 |
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assefs (6,924.80) (5,262.74)
[nvestment in FDR (23,156.33) (20,831.98)
Sale of fixed assets 0.85 1.27
Interest received 11,007.91 E.812.48
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing activities (B) (19.072.37) (19,340.95)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest paid [B0Z2.36) (805.33)
Payment of Principal portion of lease Liablity (2,137.84) {1,831.77)
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing activities (C) (2,940.21) (2,737.10),
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+C) 25,059.94 (16,817.84)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 76,321.22 93,139.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the year 105,381.14 76,321.22

,
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Motes

1) The above statement of cash flow has been prepared |n the indirect method as said out in the Ind As -7,"

Satement of Cash Flows".

2) Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year conisistof Cash and Balances with Banks. The detall of theseis

as follows:
“in Lakh
Particulars | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks 70,353.42 75,003.57

Imprest Account 2.00 0.14
Other Bank Balances

Fixed Deposits 35,025.72 18151

105,381.14 ~76,321.22|

3) The above Statement of Cash Fow includes Rs. 302.00/- Lakhs (PY Rs. 250.00/- Lakhs) towards CSR

activities. Refer note no. 55.

For J N Mital & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003587N

Sd/-
Manoj Valodi
Partner
Membership No. 560392
UDIN No. 24560392BKMDNLUT57T8

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.07.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sdi- Sd/-
Dr. Rajesh Kumar Mishra Sh. Bhuvnesh Kumar
Managing Director Chairperson
DIN: 10680009 DIN: 02780311
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Sh. Jitendra Kumar
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information
National Informatics Centre Services Inc. ( The Corporation') was incorporated on August 29, 1995 under
Section-25 of the Companies Act, 1956 (Now section 8 of Companies Act, 2013) under National Informatics
Centre ('NIC'), Ministry of Electronics And Information Technclogy, Government of India. The Corporation is
engaged to provide Total IT Solutions to the Gaovernment Ministries/Depa rtments/Organizations.

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
dated 30.07.2024

2. Material Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Accaunting
standards (herein after refer to 'Ind AS') as notified by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs ('MCA" under
Section 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 read with the rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016
issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been preparad on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
gssets and liabilitizss measured atfair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounti ng
orinciples generally accepted in India. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR),
which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest to lalch rupaes as per the requirement of Schedule I, unless
otherwige stated. Rounding of errors have been ignored.

Gurrent Vs Non-Current Classification of Assets & Liabilities:

AnAssetistreated as Current when it is:

* Expected to be realized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle;

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

* Cashor Cash Equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used lo ssttle a llability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A Liabilityis treated as Current when:

» Itis expeciedto be settled in normal aperating cycle:

= ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

+ ltisdue to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting pericd.

Allctherliabilities are ¢lassified as Non-Current.

Deferred Tax Assels & Liabilities are classified as Nan-Current Assets & Liabiliies.

The Operating Cycle s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their realization in cash &
cash equivalents. The Corporation has identified 12 months asits operating cycle.

A
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i Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & Depraciation
(a) Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind-AS, the company had
elacted to measure all of ts property, plantand equipmentat the previous GAAPF carrying value (deemed cost)

The cost comprises of purchase price, horrawing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebate are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent cost is included in the asset's carrying amount or
recagnised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when [l is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the items will flow to the company. When significant parts of plant and machinery are required
to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them separately based on their useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost s recognisad in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
are replacement if the recagnition criteriais satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
the statement of profitorloss as incurred.

{b)  Subseguentmeasurement (depreciation and useful life)

Depreciation on the items of PPE has been pravided on the Written Down Value Methad & at the rates as
prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 20 13. The Corporation has determined the useful life of
all tne items of PPE In alignment with Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 201 3

The residuzl values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial
year.

(C) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at eachfinancial yearenda nd adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising fram de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference betwaen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the statement of profitand loss when the asset is derescognized.

v,  Intangible Assets and Amortization

The intangible assets have been initially measured at cosls. The intangibles assets have been
subsequantly measured at costs less accumulated amortization & accumulated impairment losses. The
useful life of the intangible assets may be finite or infinite. Intangible assels with finite lives have been
amortized over their useful economic life as per the Written Down Value Methad. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with afinite useful life are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usefl| life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic henefits embodiad in the asset are considersd to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with infinite lives is recognized in the statement of Income and Expenditure unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another assel.

As per companies act, costs relating to computer software and server are capitalized and amariized on
straight line method overtheir estimated useful econormic life of one year, thres years, five years and six
years respectively. Costs relating lo ERP software are capitalized and amortized on straight line method
over its estimated useful economic life of ten years.




v, Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assat of one entity and a financial liabllity
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assels are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recaorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assat.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Company commits to purchase orsell the asset.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
Debtinstruments at amortised cost

A'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting eontractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractualterms of the assetgive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) onthe principal amount outstanding.

All financizl liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, Transaction costs thal are directly
attributable to the Issue of financial liahilities, that are not at fair value through income or loss are added to the
fair value cn initial recognition. After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, Amartised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income In the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit orloss.

Debtinstruments at fair value through cthar comprahensive income (FVTOCI)
A'debtinstrument’is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assels, and

b) Theasset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at sach reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI), However, the
company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and fo reign exchange gain or loss in the
P&L. Onderecognition of the asset, cumulative gain orloss previously recognised in OClis reclassified from the
equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR methed.




Debt instruments at fair value through profit orloss (FVTPL)

FVTEL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which doas not meet the criteria for
categorization as atamortized cosior as FVTOCI, isclassified asat FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FYTPL. However, such election is allowad only if deing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not

designated any debtinstrumentas at FVTPL.

Debt instruments Included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measu red at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103
(Business Combinations) applies are classified as at FVTPL. The classification is made on initial recagnition and
is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair valug changes con the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amaunts from OCI to
P&L, ever on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measu red at fair value with all changes recognized
inthe P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The respective company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assurned the
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass- through'
arrangement, and

Either the Company:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks an d rewards ofthe asset, or

(b) has neither transferred nor retained substa ntially all the risks and rewards cf the asset, but have transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred Its rights (o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
tnrough arrangement, it evaluates ifand to what extant it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the continuing
involvement of Company. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated fiability. The transferrad
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantse over the transferred assetis measured at the lower of
the ariginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit Inss (FCI ) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debl securities,
deposits, lrade receivables and bank balances.

The company reeognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in
the statementof profitand loss (P&L).

vi, Fairvalue measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption thatthe transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market forthe asset or liability
The principal orthe most advantageous market mustbe accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants actin their economic best interest. The fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by usingthe assetin its highest and best Use or by selling it to anather market participant that
would use the assel inits highestand bestuse.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are avallable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unocbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categarised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementas awhole:

» Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets foridenticalassets orliabllities

« Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valus
measurementis directly orindirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation lechnigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuramentis unobssrvable




For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
hasis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset ar liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

Al each reporting date, the management of the Compary analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company
delermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest [evel inpul that is significant to the fair value measurementas a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

This note summarises the accounting policy for determination of fair value. Other fair value related disclosures
are given in the relevant notes as following:

. Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions

- Quantitalive disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

-Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)
vil. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recagnised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. The following specific
recognition crileria must also be met before revenue s recognised: -

Revenue inrespect of sale of goods/service

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic penefits will flow to the Corparation &
the reverue ran be measurzd reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking Into account the conlractually defined terms of payment & excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government.

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/stock & sale items is recagnized at the time of generation of invoice oratthe
time when conirols of the goods have passed to the buyers, usually on delivery of the goods and proof of
delivery. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured al the fair velue cf the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns & allowances, trade discounts & volume rebates.

Revenue in respect of sale of service is recognized at the time of generation of invoice or at the time when
service completed to the buyers, usually on proof of service. Revenue from the sale of service is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The Corporation recognizes operating margin at the slab rates prescribed from time to time depending upon
the project costs, Usually the operating margin rates are inversely proportionate to the project costs i.e. higher
the project costs, lower the operating margin rate. Any subsequent decrease in operating margin rate on
account of anincrease in project costs is accounted for by issuing corresponding credit notes at the yearend or
atthe time of project closing. The Credit Notes so issued are netted off from the respective neads ofincome.

Revenues in excess of hilling are classified as unbilled revenue while billing in excess of revenues are classified
as cantract liabilities




Interestincome

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cosl or at fair value through other cemprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts ovear the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expectled vash flows by
considering all the contractual terms ofthe financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance Income
inthe statement of profit and loss.

viii. Advance for Grant-in- preject from different Ministries/Departments of Government.

NICS! received advance for Saies of good and service from different Ministries/ Departments of Government.
These transactions are normal trading transaction of the entity. Advance received for Ministries disclasure in
the financial statements has heen made separately under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities' as ‘Grant in Aid
received from Customers’, as these are normal trading transactions. These advances are utilized for the
purposes of execution of respective projects and if there is balance available with NICSI at the close of the
respective Project, the same is refunded to the Grantor Institution along with the interest (if any). All the grantin
aid amounts are received for the Projects only.

NICSI implements various orders from the government departments/ organizations towards procurement of
hardware/ software and providing mangower. It takes Operating Margin on the Total cost of each order, as per
the rates approved byits Board of Directors from time to time. NICSlrecelves fund against those orders from the
departments/ organizations as advances. No other form of government assistance is received by NICSI, from
which it is directly benefited. There is no grant of monetary or non-monetary asset given to NICS! at
concessional rate or free of cost.

NICSI fulfils all the terms & conditions attached to the administrative approvals/ sanctions towards release of
granis-in-ald by the Ministries/ Departments.

ix. Inventories

The Cosl of Invenlories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing
the inventories totheir present location and condition. Inventories (including inventory of software's) have been
valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower on the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Consumable
stores have beencharged to revenue in the year of purchase, being negligible.

¥. Retirement Benefits

As per arrangement with NIC, the amount towards leave salary and pension contribution are calculated on
basic pay and Dearness Allowance of the respective employee based on the percentage prescribed by
Government of India and passed on to NIC. The Compzny is not liable to pay any other retirement benefits to
employees, which shall entirely be borrie by NIC in future.

¥xi PriorPeriod ltems

Prior Period items are omissions/misstatements in an entity's earlier period financial stataments, including
balance sheet misclassifications. Ind AS 8 requires the rectification of prior period errors retrospectively in the
first set of financial statements approved, after their discavery, by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior periods presented in which the error occurred, However, if such restatement is impracticablei.e. when an
entity can't apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so, then Ind AS doesn't require restatement of
such prior period items in comparatives of earlier periods.
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xii. Events after the Reporting Pariod

The Corporation, has a cut-off date approved by Management avery ysar upto which the invoices of the
Vendors are submitted for the services rendered upto 31 March and accounted for accordingly as expenditure
in previous year. Income realized till that date for the period upto 31st March is also accounted for in same
financial year, Accordingly, maiching coneept (s ensured in Accounts. Thus, expenses, towards Invoices raised
by the vendors after 31st March or actually reccived late in NICS| after that date, are booked in next year and
correspanding income is also booked in next year, as all these invoices are received afier the scheduled / last
date of depositing of GST/ filling of GST returns for March.

Considering the above mentioned accounting malching concepts of expenses and income, GST Provisions &
Income Tax Provislons, The Carporation to book the invnices from the vendors as per said cut-off date fixed by
Management and as per the invoice date/ actual receipt date in view of type of business being executed by
company.

The above booking should not exceed 0.25% of total revenue generated in respactive financial year.
xiil. Leases

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective ap proach and therefore the comparative
information has not been restated and continuesto be reported underind AS17.

Asalesses

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencemernt date. The right-
of-use asset is injtially measured at cost, which comprises the nitial amount of the lease lizbility adjusted for any
lsase payments made at or before the commeancement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying assel or lo restore the underlying asset or the site on
which itis located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-Lse asset orthe end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In

addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain ra-
measurements of the |ease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commeancement date, discounted using the interest rate (i.e. average interest rate of government bond -7.75%).

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

_ \ariable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured Using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

_ Amounts expccted to be payable under aresidual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the company Is reasonably certain to exsrcise, lease
nayments (n an optional renewal period if the company is reasonaoly certain to exercise an extension option,
and penalties forearly termination ofalease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.
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The lease liability Is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest mathod. It is remeasured when
thereis a change in fulure lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company
changesits assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option,

Whnenthe lease liability is remeasured in this way, a carresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assel, or is recorded in profit or loss if the ca rrying amounl of the right-of-use asset has baen
reduced ta zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do nat meet the definition of investment property in ‘property,
plantand equipment’and lease lizbilities in ‘other financial liabilities’ in the Balance Shest,

Short-termleasesand leases of low-value assels

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-Use assets and lease liahilities for short term leases of real
estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments assucialed
with these leases as an expenss on a atraight-line basis over the lease term.

A lease is classified al (he inception date as a finance lease er an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company s classified as a finance lease.
Finance |eases ars capitalised at the commencement of the lzase at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum |lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
betwsen finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recagnised in finance costs in the statement of profitand
Ioss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets. in which case they ars capitalized in accordance
with

the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the 2saet is depreciated aver the sharter of the
estimated useful life ofthe asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
pasis over the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement ig, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement [s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset orassets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Arrangements containing a lease have been evaluated as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April 2016 in
accordance with Ind-AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for classification as
finance or operating lease as at the date of transition to Ind AS basis the facts and circumstances
existing as atthat date.

xiv. Income taxes
Currentincometax

Current incoms tax assets and ligbilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
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substantively enacled, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
relurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
astablizhes provisions where appropriate.

Currentincome tax assets and liabil ties are offsetifa legally enforceable right exists to set off these.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asseis
and liabilities and their carrying amounts far financial reporting purposes atthe reporting date.

Defarrad tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax |osses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profil will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 5 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced lo the extentthat itis
no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extant that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred laxasset to be recoverad.

In situations where company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-iax Act, 1961, enacted in India, no
deferred tax (assel or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during th= tax
holiday period.

Deferred taxes in respect of temporary differences which reverse afterthe tax holiday period are recognizedin
the year in which the temporary d fferences eriginate.

However, the company restricls the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has becoms
reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the year when the
aset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside prefitor loss Is recaognised outside profitor loss (eitherin OCI
orequity). Deferred tax tems are recognised in correlation tothie underlying transaction either in OCl or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

XV, Impairment of non-financial assets
The company assess, ateach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Ifany

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimate the asset's
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recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an assel’s ar cash-generating units (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is
considerad impaired and is written down to ils recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futura cash flows are discounled o their present value using a pre -tax
discount rate that reflects current markest assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

For assets excluding goodwilll, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recove rable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying of the assel
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carryi ng amount that would have been datermined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss besn recognisad for the assst in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalusd amount, in which case, the
reversal s treated as an increase in revaluation.

xvi. Impairment of Financial Assets/Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

A Provision towards Doubtful Debts is recognized considering 100% for the period of more than 10 years, 50%
betwaen 5-10 years & 25% between 3-5 years as at the Balance sheet date.

xvil. Provision towards outstanding Advances ta Suppliers

A provision is recogn|ized towards outstanding advances to suppliers which are cutstar ding for more than three
years as at the Balance Sheetdate.

xviii. Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is compuled by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamni ngs
per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equ ity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings par equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fairvalue (i e. the average market value of the outsta nding equity shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed canverted as of the beginning of the period, unless issue data later date.
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The numoer of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presentec for any share splits and bonus shares issucs including for changes effected prior to the approval of
the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

xix. Provisions, Contingent Liabllities & Gontingent Assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and itis probable
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that an cutflow of resourees will be required o settle the obligation, In respect of which a reliable estimate can
be made. Long term provisions may be discounted to their present values at an appropriate risk adjusted
dissounted rate. Short term provisions are net required to be discounted. The provisions are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. Provisions are also reguired to
he created in respecl o constructive obligations. However, the Corporation was not having any canstructive
obligations in the reparting period.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of nossible obligations that have arisen from past events and the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly
within the control of the Company.

Contingertasset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the
company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is
probable on the basis of judgement of management. These are reviewed al each balance sheet date and are
adjusted to reflect the currentmanage mentestimate.

x%. Cash and Cash-Equivalents

Cash and short-term depasits in the balance sheet comprise cash al banks and cash in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changesin
value,

Cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which form an integral part of Company's cash
management.

2.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial staternents requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assurmptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and cther
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could resultin outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affecied in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impacl the various
accounting policies are described below and alsc in the relavant notes to the financial statements. Changes in
estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resalved only
when one or more uncertain future events oceur or fail to occur, The assessment of the existence, and potential
quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant jJudgments and the use of estimales
regarding the cutcome of future events.
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters availabie when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due ta market cha nge or circumstances arising
peyondthe control ofthe Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they accur.

(a) Impairmentof non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication thal an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value lass
costs of disposal and its value inuse. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash Inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down toits recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corraborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

(b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Wnen the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quated prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values, Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about thess
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(c) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assurmnptions about risk of default and expectad
loss rates. The Company uses judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the inpuls to the
impairmant

calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market corditions 2s well as forward locking estimates at
the end ofeach reporting perlod.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment ofthe probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.




2 2 Recent accounting pronotlincements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rul

es as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,

2024 MCA has not rotified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable 1o the

Company.
3. Property, plant and equipment
" in Lakh
Particulars Buildings | Furniture | Vehicles Office Computers | Total
and Equipments
Fixtures
Cost
As at April 1, 2022 1,085.85| 1,607.61 17.63 4739.54 7,589.26 | 15,999.88
Additicns - 4.84 - 269.20 243492 | 270898
Other Adjustment (Refer 2 below] = 35848 - - - 358.48
Cisposals - - Q.17 - 0.05 0.22
As at March 31, 2023 1,985.85 | 1,970.94 17.46 5,068.74 | 10,024.13 | 19,067.12
Additions 1591 - 803.31 325591 417513
Disposais . = = - 0.29 0.29
As at March 31, 2024 1,985.85 | 1,986 .85 17.48 5972.05 | 13,279.75 | 23,241.96
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2022 1,189.57 | 1,438.71 10.77 4,152 46 6,871.50 | 13,663.01
Depreciation charge for the year 38.96 67.56 2.58 25315 906.78 | 1,269.02
Others adjustment (Refer 2 below) - 256.47 e - - 256.47
Disposals = z - b = -
As at March 31, 2023 1,228.53 | 1,762.74 13.35 4,405 61 7,778.28 | 15,188.50
Depreciation charge for the year 37.05 48.64 1.29 496.54 3,018.56 | 3,602.07
Disposals = - = = - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,265.59 | 1,811.37 14.64 4,90216 | 10,796.84 | 18,790.57
Net book value :
As at March 31, 2024 720.27 175.47 2.82 1,069.90 248291 4,451.39
As at March 31, 2023 757.32 208.20 4.11 663.13 2,245.85 | 3,878.61

1. Refer the Note No. 38 for disclosure on Capital commitment for acquisition of Property Plant and

Equipment.

2. During the periad from FY 2017-18 “Furniture and Fixtures" to the tune of Rs. 358.49 Lakhs (Acumulated
Depreciation with Rs. 256.47 Laksh upto 31 103.2022) was erroneously classified in the head "Other Intangible
Asgets”. Since the depreciation on Furniture and Fixtures was correctly calculated in terms of the rates
prescribed under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, the said regroupingi/restatement has not resulted in

any financial impact. The same
byway of “other adjustments”
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has been regrouped/restatement during the current financial year 2022-23




Details of title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company

“in Lakh
Relevant line item | Description Gross | Title deeds | Whether title| Property Reason for not being
in the Balance of item of carrying in the deed holder | held since |held in the name of the
Sheet property value name of isa which date company
promoter, .
director
or relative of
promoter/
director or
employee of
promoter/dir
ectar
Builcings Hall Ng.. 2 931.50 NBCO MNe Since 2001 Title Deed has been_
&3. 6th Flaor, %203 executed in the name
15 NBCC of NICS! on dated
Tower, July 18, 2023."Refer
Bhikaiji Cama Note 45"
4. Capital work-in-progress “ i Lakh
Particulars Buildings at | Developm | Renovation Major Total
Naurgji ent of of 4 Nos | Renovation
Nagar** Work |Toilets Civil | at 6th Floor
Station at |and Electric | Bhikaji Cama
Shastri work at Place
Park* Shastri
Park”
As al March 31, 2022 < £ - -
Additions 781205 451.01 34,15 3.297.21
Transfer to Fixed Assets | = =
As at March 31, 2023 7.812.05 451.01 34.15 - B,297.21 |
Additions - 27,70 - 40.14 B7.83
Transfer to Fixed Assats - .
Transfer [0 Capital Advnace 7/.812.05 - 7.812.04
As at March 31, 2024 - 478.71 3415 4014 553.00

* The Development of work station at Shasri Park is being carried out in rental praperty of DMRC (Not owned by NIC3()
** As per CAG direction in the FY 2022-23 the entire amount of Rs. 7812.05 Lakhs has bean tranfer fram CWIP 1o
Capital Advance (Refer Note No. 9).

Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

Particulars Amount in CWIP far the a period of Total
Less than1 |1 -2 years| 2.3 years More than 3
year years
March 31, 2024
Buildings at Naurgji Nagar - - - - -
Development of Work Station at Shastri Park 2770 451.01 - 478.71
Renovation of 4 Nos Toilets Civil and Elsctric
work at Shastri Park 34.15 - - 34.15
Major Renovation at 6th Floor Bhika)i Cama
Place 40.14 s - - 40.14
As at March 31, 2024 67.64 485.16 - - 553.00

.
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March 31,2023
Buildings at Nauroji Nagar 7.812.05 5 2 = 7,812.05
Development of Work Station at Shastrl Park 45101 2 a 451.01
Renovation of 4 Nos Tollets Civil and Electric
work at Shastri Park B 34.15 - - 34.15
As at March 31,2023 §,297.21 - - - 8,297.21 |
Capital work in progress (CWIP) Completion Schedule ~ gl Lkehi
Particulars To be completed Total
Lessthan1 |1-2years| 2.3 years | More than 3
year years
March 31, 2024
Buildings at Nauroji Nagar * - i " . .
Development of Work Station at Shastri Park 478.71 = - 478.71
Renovation of 4 Nos Toilets Civil and Electric
work at Shastri Park 34.15 - 3415
Major Renovation at 6th Floor Bhikaji Cama
Place - - . - -
As at March 31, 2024 512 .86 - - - 512.86
March 31, 2023
Buildings st Nauraji Magar ™ - - T.812.05 - T.812.05
Development af Work Station at Shastri Park 451 01 . 2 451.01
Renovation of 4 Nnos Toilsts Civil and Electric
work gt Shastri Park 34.15 = = - 34.15
As at March 31, 2023 485.16 - 7.812.05 - 8,297.21

*Note on Buildings at Nauroji Nagar

“* As per CAG direction in the FY 2022-23 the entire amount of Rs. 8957 68/- Lakhs has been transfer from CWIP
to Capital Advance and remaining amount of Rs. B54.36

classified under GST Advance (Refer Note No. 9).

" in Lakh
Relevant line item | Description | Gross | Title deeds |Whethertitie| Property Reason for not being
in the Balance ofitemof | carrying in the deed holder | held since | held in the name of the
ISheat property value name of isa which date company
promoter,
director
or relative of
promoterf
director or
employee of
promoter/
director
R s ggg lzll'gwir A, ) —— W3 ?.l?m;%;;ne Execulion of Title Deed in
A Elage I[!;\ ot the neme of NICSI :‘l_e.
; , (Agreeme e
World Trade s pending as building is
Sarbie . ut?dar Constructlctln
Nauraji piphrey Refer Note -46
Magar, New 2022
Delhi

* Execution of Title Deed in the name of NICS! is pending, hence no Stamp Duty provision nas been created.
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5. Right of use assets

" in Lakh
Particulars Right of use Total
assets
As at March 31, 2022 22,201.86 22,201.86
Additions 1,909.65 1,808.65
Restatment of earlier Year (Refer Note No. 36) (110.15) (110.15)
Modification of Right
Disposals
As at March 31, 2023 24,001.36 24,001.386
Additions 663.25 663.25
Madification of Right - -
Disposals 4 =
As at March 31, 2024 24,664.61 24,664.61
Amortisation
As at March 31, 2022 6,166.07 6,166.07
Restatment of earlier Year (Refer Note No. 36) (493.R2) (493.87)
Amortisation charge for the year 2618.54 2,618.54
Disposals
As at March 31, 2023 8,290.79 8,290.79
Amortisation charge for the year 2,787.91 2,787.91
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 11,078.70 11,078.70
Net book value :
As at March 31, 2024 13,585.91 13,585.91
As at March 31, 2023 15,710.57 18, 710.57
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6. Other Intangible assets

*in Lakh

Particulars Software Total
Cost
As at April 1, 2022 24 575.37 24,575.37
Additions 2,553.78 2,5653.78
Other Adjustment (Refer 2 below) (358.49) (358.49)
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 26,770.66 26,770.66
Additions 2,749.67 2.742.67
Disposals £ -
As at March 31, 2024 29,520.33 29.520.33
Amortisation
As at April 1, 2022 18,300.27 18,300.27
Amortisation charge for the year 3,397.37 3.397.37
Other Adjustment (Refer 2 below) (256.47) (256.47)
As at March 31, 2023 2144117 21,441.17
Amortisation charge for the year 1,973.86 197396
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2024 2341513 23,415.13
Net book value :
As at March 31, 2024 6,105.20 6,105.20
As at March 31, 2023 5,329.49 5,3290.49

1. Refer the Note No. 38 for disclosure on Capital commitment for acquisition of Property Plant and

Eguipment.

2. During the period from FY 2017-18 “Furniture and Fixtures” fo the tune of Rs. 358.49 Lakhs (Acumulated
Depreciation with Rs. 256,47 Laksh upto 31.03,2022) was erroneously classified in the head "Other Intangible
Assels”. Since the depreciation an Furniture and Fixtures was correctly calculated in terms of the rates
prescribed under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, the said regrouping/restaternent has not resulted in
any financial impact. The same has been regrouped/restatement during the current financial year 2022-23 by

way of “other adjustments”.

-
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Note Ng. - 7 - Other Financial Assets
" in Lakh

Particulars Non-current

As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Security Deposits
Security Deposits 1,366.10 1,262.36

Total 1,366.10 1,262.36

MNote No. -8 - Deffered Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year.

A. Amount recognition in Income & Expenditure Account:

" in Lakh

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Charged in Income and -
Expenditure Account
Current income tax charge 8,364.77 5,525.80
Adjustments in respect of current
income tax of previous year 38,95 16.12
Deferred tax:
Relating to crigination and
raversal of temporary differences [1,494.91) (482.28)
Incomes tax expense reported in
the Income and Expenditure
Account 6,909.81 5,058.64
(ii) Other Comprehensive
Incame (OCI) Section
Deferred fax related to items recognised in OCI during the - %
Total ) 6,909.81 5,058 64
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B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for FY
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024:

“in Lakh

Particulars Y ear Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accounting Income before tax from
confinuing operations 26,591.78 20,036.04
Income before tax from 2 disconlinusd
operation - -
Accounting Income before income tax 26,591.78 20,336.04
Al India's statutory income tax rate of
25.168% (31 March 2023: 25.168% ) 6,692 61 5,047 52
Adjustments in respect of current income
tax of previous years 39.95 18.12
Government grants exempted from tax
Other Differance 69 98 =
Due to Change in income tax Rate =
Other Assets 3.z7 7.71
Non- Chargiable Income for tax purpose - (11.72)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 76.01
At the effective income tax rate of
25.98% (31 March 2023: 25.25%) £,909.81 5,058 64
Income tax expense reported in income
and expenditure account £.909.87 5,0h8,64
Income tax sttributable to a discontinued operation i p
Total 6,909.81 5.058.64

Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, provides an option to companies for paying Income tax at
reduced rates in accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said section and accorgingly, the
Company has decided to adopt the new tax rate and recognised provision forincome tax on the basis of the rate
prescribed in he said section and remeasured its deferred tax assets/liabllities accordingly as on March 31,
2024.
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C. Deferred tax :

Deferred tax relates to the

following: ' in Lakh
Particulars Balance sheet Statement of Income & Expenditure
As at As at Y ear Ended As at
March 31, | March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Accelerated depreciation for tax
purposes 831.87 12294 (701.93) 43.74
Provision for Doubtful Debts and
Advances lo Suppliers and
Stamp Duty 3,182.00 2,873.04 (309.95) (327.03)
Expense disallowed in Currant
Year Allowable in Subsequent
Financial Year 421.12 70,71 (350.41) (34.23)
Right to use assets n=! of Lease
Liabilities 1,119.84 gg7.22 (132.62) (164.77)
Present valuation of Security
Deposits {assets) — - -
Deferred tax expense/(income)
Net deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) 9,995.82 4.,060.91 {1,494.91} (482.28)
Reflected in the balance sheet
as follows: " in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Deferred tax assets 5,555,562 4,060.97
Defarred tax liabllities =
Deferred tax Assets/(liabilities),
net ) 5,555.82 4,060.91
Note No. - 9 - Other Non-Current Assets v Tt
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Unsecured, considered good
To parties other than related parties
a) Capital Advances” 11,324.21 99.68
by Advances other than capital advances,
-Advances to Suppliers 1,450.21 1,497.66
T otal 12,774.42 1,597.34
—‘éﬂ}r




*Capital Advances includes advance for work at shastri Park for Rs. 71.98/- Lakhs (PY Rs. 99.68/- Lakhs) and far
Narurojl Nagar for office space al Worid Trade Tower Rs.11209.13 Lakhs [PY Rs. 6957.69/- Lakhs) and Majar
Renovation at NICS! 6th Floor BCP Rs. 43.10/- Lakhs (PY Nil/-}. During the year 2023-24 an amount of Rs,
5957.69/- Lakhs has been reclassifed from CWIP to Capital Advance as per observation raised by CAG in

Finacial Year 2022-23.

Note No. - 10 - Trade Receivables

" in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
‘To parties other than related parties
Unsecured, considered good 42 095.581 48,551.48
Unsecured, considered doubtfuf® 11,620.00 10,4B3.50
Less: Provision for doubtful debits (11.620.00 {10,483.50)
Total 42,095.51 46,561.48
Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables :
o in Lakh
i Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment ! Total
Mot Due |Lessthan 6|6 months - 1i 1-2years| 2 -3 years| More than |
I Particulars | TR year | 3years
As at March 31,2024 [ '
Undisputed Trade receivables - ‘
considered good _
12,843.53 491348 | 5,576.51 1,711.00 T.257.00 32,401.52
Undisputed Trade Recevables - |
considered doubtful | 11 ,620.00 11,620.00
Lesa ; Allowance for doubtiul trade
receivables (11.620.00)  (11,620.00)
Unbilled Trade receivables
considered
good 9,653 99 _ 6,693.99
9,693.99 12,943.53 491348 | 557651 | 1,711.00| 7,257.00| 42,095.51
As at March 31, 2023 [
Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good
19, 141.61 3.171.88| 2,12287 5,124.13 5210.50 34,771.03
Undisputed Trade Receivablas — |
considerad doubtful - - - 10,483.50 10,483.50
Less ' Allowance for douttful trade
receivebles - - - {10,483.50) (10,483.50)
Unbilled Trade recsivables
cornsidersd
good 14,780.45 11,780.45
11,79045 | 19141.61 | 317198 | 2,122.81 5,124.13 5,210.50 46,561.48 |

* Provision for Doubtful Debts amounting to Rs. 10483.50 Lakhs/- of F Y 2022-23 has been reversed during
FY 2023-24. Further, during FY 2023-24 provision for doubtful debts has been made for Rs.11620.00 Lakhsf/-

refer Note No. 53.




Note No. - 11 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

" in Lakh

Particulars

Current Assets

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Balances with banks

Saving Account 70,363.42 7500357
Others
Imprest Account 2.00 D.14
Fixed Deposit (original matunty upto 3 months)” 35,025.72 1,317.51
Total 105,381.14 76,321.22
* Includes Bank Balances of Sweep Deposit Accounts.
Note No. - 12 - Bank Balances other than above
“in Lakh
Particulars Currant Assets
As at As at

= March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fixed Deposit 156,333.78 133 484,24
Fixed Deposit held es margin money

-Fixed Deposit (original maturity more than 12 manths) = 291 80

-Fixed Deposit (original maturity upto 12 Montn) 247412 187573
Total 158,807.90 135,651.57
Note No. - 13 - Other Financial Assets
; - "in Lakh
Particulars Current Assats

As at As at

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposils

March 31, 2024

March 31. 2023

Interest Acecured 5,945.41 4 623,05
Total 5.946.41 4,623.05 |
Note No.- 14 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
"in Lakh

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income tax paid (Net of provision Rs.8364 77 Lakhs (Previous 20,235.86 2137496
Year R5.5525.80)
Less; -
Provision for Income Tax (Refund Not Received) (1,835.87) (1,835.87)
[See Noles to Accounls No, 56 ) B
Total 18,400.99 19,539.09
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MNote No. - 15 - Other Current Assets

~inLakh
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Other than Capital Advance
Advances to Employees
Unsecured, considersd good 31.75 35.81
Tatal (A) 31.75 35.81
Other advances
Unsecured, considered good
GST on Advances and Others 35,100.50 2084549
Prapaid expenses 1.75 37
Total (B) 35.102.25 20,848.66
Unsecured, considered Doubtful
Sales Tax/OVAT & TDS on Work Contract Recoverable 120.45 120.45
Less: -
Provision lor Sales Tax/ VAT (Not refunded back) (117.81) (117.91)
Pravision for TDS on' WCT (Not refunded back) (2.54) (2.54)
(See Notes to Accounts No. 56 | =
Total (C) - E
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Supplisrs® 29,011.06 442003
Unsecured, considered Doubtful
fAdvances ta Suppliars 1,026.98 931.98
Less: -
Provision for Advances to Suppliers (not adjustad/settled) 1,026.95 g31.98
(See Motes to Accounls No. 54 )
Total (D) 29,011.06 4,420.03
GRAND Total (A+B+C+D) 64,145.06 34,304.50
Note No. - 16 - Equity Share Capital
— " in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2023
2024
Authorised
200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
Total 200.00 200.00




a. Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the compnay™: -

" in Lakh
As at March 31, 2024 , As at March 31, 2023

Ne. of Percentage (%) No. of Percentage (%)

Equity Equity

shares shares
Name of Shareholder held | _held
Prasident of India through DG, NIC 199,995 99,9975, 193,895 89,8875
Smt. Rachna Srivastava 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. IPS Sethi 1 D.DUG_E - i
Sh. RS Manl 1 0.0005 5| 0.0005
s Alka Misra 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Shri Sunil Kumar - - 1 0.0005
Shri Rajiv Rathi 4 0.0005 1 0.0005
T otal 200,000 100.00 200,000 100,00

*The information of Sharehalding has been given of all shareholders [rrespactive of holding more than 5%
shares due to held an behalf of Government of India

b. Reconciliation of the paid up shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

"in Lakh
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particluars Number Amount Number | _ Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000 200.00 2,00,000 200.00
Add: - Shares Izsued/(buyback) during the year 4 " . :
Sharas outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,000 200.00 2,00,000 200.00

c. Rights, Preference and Restriction attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vole pershare.

d. Over the period of five years immediately preceding March 21, 2024, neither any bonus shares were issued
nor any shares were allotted for consideration other than cash. Further, no shares were brought back during the
said period.

e. Shareholding of promoters

- . " in Lakh
Shares held at March 31, 2024 | Percentage change during the year
ended March 31, 2023
P t '
i No. of % of total shares
shares
President of India through DG, NIC and Others 2,00,000! 100 2
Note No. - 17 - Other Equity * in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Surplus as per Income and Expenditure Account
Opening balance 89,054.51 73.986.10
Frior priad impact of Net Increase on Cther Equity (Reserve & Surplus) {Refer Nots No. 38)
= 21.01
Add: - Surplus/(Deficiency) for the vear 18.681.95 14.877.40
Taotal 108,736.46| 83,054.51
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Note No. - 18 - Other Financial Liabilities (Non -Current)

“in Lakh
Particulars Non-current
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Security Deposits Payadle 64.76 64.76
T otal 64.76 64.76
Note No.-19 - Trade Payables o
) ) in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Trade Payables
- Due to Micro and Small Enterprices” 3,858.78 6.847,20
- Other than Micre and Small Enterprises 41,246.24 £1,289.99
 Total 45,206.02  48,137.29
* Refer Note No. 47
Ageing Schedule of Trade Payable
___ 'inlLakh
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 f 1-2years| 2-3years | More than
year dyears
Particulars Not Due o
As at March 31, 2024
Micro, small and medium
enterprises - 2,551.19 178.37 408.86 823.35 3,959 78
Others = 18,655.28 178550 2,056.06 6,753.23 30,250.07
Disputed Dues-Micro, small and medijum
enterprises - - - - s .
Disputed Dues-Others = 162,09 74,52 - 51.85 9aB.45
Unbllied Trade Payable wo0771)] 0 - | = x : 10,007.71
10,007.71 | 22,36B.56 | 2,738.39| 246292 | 7,628.44 | 45,206.02
As at March 31, 2023
Micro, small and medium
entarprises 5,032.81 944,84 34418 525.46 8,54 7.30
Others 16,109.86 3,82T.08 2,232.82 B,862.51 28,832.25
Disputed Dues -Micro, small and medium
entzrprises - - 3 - -
|Disputed Dues-Dihers 819.76 B61.80 31.89 913.25
Unbilled Trade Payable 11.544.49 - - - - 11,544.49
11,544.49 | 21968243 | 477180 | 2,638.81| 7,219.66  48,137.29

Note: - Date of recording of invoices in books of accounts is considered zs due dale.




Note No. - 20 - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

B " in Lakh
Particulars Current
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Earnest Money Deposit Payable 584.36 635.36
Employee Benefits Payable 321.43 270.25
Expenses Payable . 34.46
Retention Money * 276.73 24840
Project Liabliity for CNA Account 133.12 238.25
Total 1,315.64 1,426.72
* Retention from vendor against perfarmance bank guarantee.
Note No. - 21 - Other Current Liabilities
"in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Advances roceived from customers 263,196 43 191,704.27
Others
Grants-in-Aid received from customers 363.79 563322
Statutory Dues and Taxes 2,096.38 1,739.02
Corporate Social Responrsibililies - 250.00
Total 265,662.60 199,326.51
MNote No. - 22 - Provisions
“in Lakh
Particulars Current
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Praovision for Stamp Duty
Provision for Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses (Note No, 55)
Provison for Interest and Penalty on LF & SUC Charges (DeT)

Total

= 20.87
155.55
413.59 -
569.14 27.97

-
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Note No. - 23 Revenue From Operations

" in Lakh
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023

Revenue from operations

Sale of Traded Goods™ 35,980.60 19.707.34
Service Income® 185,586.58 139,901.48
Tatal (A) 221,577.18 159,608.80
Other Operating Revenue

Administrative Charges 782.78 809.30
T otal (B) 782.78 809.30
T otal Revenue from operations (A)+(B) 222,359.96 160,418.10

* Pravison for Unbilled Revenue amounting to Rs.11790.45/- Lakhs of FY 202223 has been reversed during
FY 2023-24 provision for Unbilled Revenue has been made for Rs. 9693.95/- Lakhs.

** Diaclosure in respect of IND AS-115 has been disclosed under Note to Accounts Note Mo, 44

Note No. - 24 Other Income

" in Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Interest Income 14,424.78 8,898.44
Less: -
Interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects (other than NKN) 137.25 236.82
Intzrest on NKN Projects (Grants-in-Aid) - 8.72
Interest on Non- GIA Projects 1,956.26 335.01
Other non-operating income 1,001.79 1,404.93
Provision for Stamp Duty - 46.55
Finance Income (On Szcurity Deposit) 82.50 83.61
13,425.56 9,852.98
MNote No. - 25 Purchases
" in Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
Purchases: -
Hardware 24,395.80 15,827.91
Software 11,463.13 3.202.18
T otal 35,858.93 19,030.09




Note No. - 26 Employee Benefits Expense

" in Lakh
Particulars Y ear ended Y ear ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Salaries and incentives 1,391.03 1,260.17
Staff Weliare 40.18 34.99
T otal 1,431.22 1,295.16
Note No. - 27 Finance Cost
“in Lakh
Particulars Yearended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Interest Expenses on Unbinding of Lease Liability 802.36 905.33
Total 802.36 905.33
Note No. - 28 - Depreciation and amortization Expenses
- "in Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year
March 31, ended
2024 March 31,
2023 j
Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No. 3) 3,602.07 1,269.03
Right of use assets (Refer Note Mo. 5) 2,787.91 2,626.50
Other Intangible assets (Refer Note No. 6) 1,973.96 3,397.37
Total 8,363.94 7,292.90
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Note No. - 29 Other Expenses

“in Lakh

Particulars Y ear ended Year ended

March 31, March 31,

2024 2023

Auditar Remuneration (Reference Note No. 40) 10.54 9.76
Bank Charges 2420 6.69
Books & Pericdicals 1.87 1.08
Business Promoticn 2.30 2.27
GST (Non-Cenvatable) 35.97 49.03
Corference Seminar W/Shop Expenses 99.43 235.25
Consumable Stores 33.39 49,60
Conveyance Expenses §.64 3.65
Corparate Social Responsibilities Expenses 302.00 250.00
Diesel for D.G. Set 1514 39.18
Provision for Doubtful Debts (Refer Note No. 53) 1,136.50 1,233.75
Advances to Suppliers [not adjusted/settied) (Refer Note No. 54) 94 08 37.66
Electricity & Water Charges 1,932.29 906,55
Hire Charges 6.2 4.86
House Keeping & Cleaning Charges 428.83 318.00
Membership & Subscription Charges 1.47 1.09
Interest and Penalty on LF & SUC Charges 413.59 -
Miscellzneous Expenses 13.25 46.21
Office Expenses 2,764.48 2,034.92
Office Rent 16.28 122.42
Printing & Stationery 7.62 4.67
Professional & Consultancy Charges 569.60 487.42
Rent Rates & T axes 5.49 0.78
Repairs & Maintenance 503.00 493,12
Taxi Hire Charges 281.34 263.89
Telephone EXpenses f2.41 43.26
Travelling Expenses 235.93 195.17
Vehicle - Expenses 216 2.00
T otal 9,005.71 6,941.25
Note No. - 30 - Earning per Share S———
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, March 31,

2024 2023

Earning per share
Surplus atlributable to Equity shareholders (A) 19.681.95 14,977.40
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 200,000.00 200,000.00
Basic earning per share (A/B) (in ') 9,840.96 7.488.70
Diluted earning per share (A/B) (in *) 9,840.86 748870
Face value per share 100.00 100.00




Note No. - 31. Fair values measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category “in Lakh
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
FVTPL | Amortised cost FVTPL Ameortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables - 42,095.51 - 46,561.48
Cash and cash squivalents - 105,381.14 - 76,321.22
Other bank balances - 158,807.80 - 135,851.57
Interest Accrued (current) - 5,846.41 - 4,6823.05
Security deposits - 1,366.10 - 1,262.36
Fread deposits - 4 . -
Interest Accrued (non-current) - - - -
Total financial assets - 313,597.06 - 264,419.68
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 45,206.02 - 48,137 29
Other financial lizbilities (current) - 3,053.68 - 3,024.51
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - 15,740,895 - 17,366.60
Total financial liabilities - 64,000.65 - 68,528.40

(iiy Fairvalue hierarchy

All financizal instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesl level input thal is insignificant to the fair value
measurements as a whaole.

Level 1 : guoted (unadjusted) prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value
measuremenl are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : valuation technigues for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value
measuremznt is not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities, other
than those whose fair values are close appraximations of their carrying values.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other financial
ligbilities the management assessed that their fair value is approximate theircarrying amounts largely due lo the
shaort-term maturities of these instrumenis.

The fair values of the Company's long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying
discounted cash flows ('DCF") method, using discount rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end
of the reporting period. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of
unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.




Note No. - 32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial lizbilities comprise trade payables, security deposits, earnest money
deposits and employee liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assels include trade receivables, security
deposits, fixed deposits, cash and bank balances that derive directly from its operations.The Company Is
exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company s senior managementis supported by the Board of Directors that advises on financial
risks and the appropriate financiel risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance
to the Company’s management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks. which are summarised below.

I. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fzir value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include fixed deposits,

A, Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company's investment in fixed deposits with banks. The company’s fixed deposits are
carried at fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will flucluate because of a change in market interest rates.

B.Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because cf
changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity is the impact on the Company's profit before tax is
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The company is not exposed to foreign
currency risk as it does not have any foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities.

Il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's
exposure lo credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade recelvables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
eounterparties and incorporates this information into ils credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Credit risk Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk other bank balances 12 month expected credit loss

o 2 Trade receivables and other Life time expected credit loss ar 12 month
Vioderate credit risk financial assets expecled credil loss

».



Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a cefault on a financial asset is cansidered
when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates
reflecting defaults are based on actual credit |oss experience and considering differences between currentand

historical economic conditians.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring
bankruptcy or a litigation decided against tne Company. The Company continues to engage with parties whose
balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in the Income
and Expenditure Accounts,

*in Lakh

Credit rating Particulars As at 31 As at 3t
March 2024 | March 2023
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, banks ceposit and other bank 270,13545 216,595.84
Moderate credit risk Trade receivables, Loan and cther financial assets 43,461.61 47.823.84

Concentration of trade receivables

Trade receivables caonsist of a large number of customers spread across various states in India with no
significant concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk exposure Provision for expected cradit losses The Company has provided the lifetime expected
credit loss by following simplified approach for follwing Financial assets -

* in Lakh
Carrying amount net of
expected credit losses

Particulars Gross carrying amount Expected credit losses

As at 31 March 2024

Trade Recelvables 53.715.51 {11,820.00] 4209551
As at 31 March 2023
Trade Receivables 57,044.98 (10,483.50] 45,561 .48

Reconciliation of loss provision - [ifetime expectad credit losses

" in Lakh

Reconciliation of lass allowance Trade Receivables
Loss allowance As at March 31, 2022 9,249.75
Impairment lcss recognised/(reversed) during the year 1,233.75

Amounts written off

Loss allowance As at March 31, 2023 10.483.50
Impairmant logs recogniced/{reversed) during tha year 113650

Armounts written off

Loss allowance As at March 31, 2024 11,620.00

Il. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabllities when
they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into acecunt the liquidity of the market in

which the entity operates.

N
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

" in Lakh
| Ondemand | Lessthan| 3to12 | 1105 years > 5 years Total
3 months | months
Year ended
As at March 31, 2024
Trade payzbles 45.206.02 - = - - 45,2086.02
Other financial liabilities 4546 £38.49 2,169.73 8.126.17 7.6814.78 18,794.83
Total 45,251.48 B3B.49 | 2169.73 3.126.17 7,614.78 64,000.65
Year ended
As at March 31, 2023
Trade payables 48,137.29 - - - - 48,137 .29
Other financial lizbllities 34.08 827.70 2.162.74 6.652.19 10,714.41 20,391.11
Total 48,171.35 827.70 2.162.74 6,652.19 10,714.41 68,528.40
Note No. -33 . Capital Management
The objective of the Company’s capital management *in Lakh
As at As at
. March 31, March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Borrowings
Trade payables 45,206.02 48,137.29
Other payables 285,026.37 218,745.59
Less: Cash & cash equivalents (105,381.14) (76,321.22)
Net Debt 224,851.25 191,561.66
Total equity 108.936.46 89,254.51
Capital and Net delit 333,787.71 280,816.17
Gearing ratio (%) 0.67 0.68




Note No. - 34. Financial ratios
The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 are as follows :

" in Lakh
Ratio / Measure Measured In Mumerator | Denominator For the year ended Variance
31/3/2024 | 31/3/2023 (in %)
Current ratio Current Current
Times assels liabilities 1.26 1.27 -0.63%
Debt - Equity ratio Total debt* Shareholder's
Times equity 0.16 0.21 -24.51%
Debt service EBIT Total Debt**
coverage ratio Times 1.57 1.11 41.97%
Return an Equity [ROE) MNet prafits Average
after taxes shareholder's
% — 20% 18% 8.24%
Inventory turnover ratio Average Reverue
i Inventory 0% 0% 0.00%
Trade receivables Revenue Average lrade
turnaver ratio receivable™*
Times 5.02 3.06 26.63%
Trade payables: Purchases of |Average trade
turnowver ratio services payables*=*
and other
Times expenses 4.08 2.80 30.99%
Met capital turnover Ravenue shareholder's
ratic Times equity 2,04 1.80 13.57%
Net profit ratio M Net profit Revenus 8% S% -520%
Return on Capital Eaming Capital i
Employed (ROCE) before employsd*®
interest and
o taxes 22% 18% 11.97%
Return on Interest Fixed Deposit
Investment(ROI) % Income 6% 6% -4.76%

*Debt represents only |ease liabilities
**Total Debt represents cnly Lease Liability

EBIT - Earnings betfore interest and taxes.

Capital employed refers to total shareholders' equity and debt
Explanation for variances exceeding 25%
Revenue for Higher Operating margin has been Increases along with increase in other operaling sales.

Additional sales may during the year and trade receivable also reduce.

More purchase during the year and trade payable also reduce.




Note No. -35 Leases

As Lessee
(A) Additions to right of use assets
" in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Right-of-use assets, except for investment property 663.25 1,909.65
(B) Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class “fi: Lakh
Particulars Class 1 Class 2 Total
Balance at 1 April 2022 16,035.80 16,035.80
Restatment of earlier Year (Refer Note No. 36) 383.67 383.67
Additions 1,909.65 1,909.65
Moditication of Rignts - .
Depreciation charge for the year 2,618.54 2,618.54
Balance at 1 April 2023 15,710.57 15,710.57
Additions 663.25 663.25
Depreciation charge for the year 2,787.91 2,787.91
Balance at 31 March 2024 13,585.91 13,585.91
(C) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
" in Lakh
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Opeing Balance 18,895.63 17,843.35
Restatment of earlier Year (Refer Note No. 36) - 1,008.66
Additions 652.44 1.789.39
Interest 802 .36 905.33
Payment of Liabilities (2,940.21) (2,737.10)
Closing Balance 17,414.23 18,899.63
" in Lakh
As at As at
. , : March 31, March 31,
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows 2024 2023
Less than one year 3,008.22 299045
One to five years 12,273.01 12,068.85
More than five years 7,614.78 10,714.41
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 22,896.01 25,773.71
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Lease liabilities included in Balance Sheet * 1 Lk
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Current 1,738.04 1,697.78
Non-Current 15,676.19 17.301.84
Total 17,414.23 18,899.63
(D) Amounts recognised in profit or loss “in Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 802.36 905.23
Variable lzase payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities - .
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets - -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 16.38 122.42
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding
short-term leases of low value assets z -
(E) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows “in Lakh
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, March 31,
2024 2023
T olal cash outflow for leases 2,940.21 273710
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Note No. - 36 Effect of Recalculation in Lease Assest and Lease Lailibity as per IND AS 116.
During the year, the company has recalculated the calculation of lease Assets and Liabilites of earlier years as
per IND AS 116, ,the Impact and detailed calcuiation is as follows:

Impact of Prior Period Adjustment on for Leases Assets and Liablity and other Assets

"in Lakh
Parficulars Az at [
March 31, 2023
limpact on Total Assets
Iricrease in Other Agsals 1154.28
Incresse in Right of use assels 328.33
Met Increase on Right of Use Assets 1,482.67
Impact on Leass Liability
Incresse in Leass Liablity for Pricr Penod 1,391.658
Met Increase in Lease Liablity 1,391.66
|Met Incraase an Othar Equity (Raserve & Surplus) 91.01
Impact of Prior Period Adjustment on Earlier Year and Opening Balance Sheet .
- in Lakt
| Particulars | As at 01.04.2022 As at31.03.2023
' Prior 1o Opering after Prior to Opening During Nat ARer
Adjustment | Adjustment Adjustment | Adjustment | Adjustment theYear | Adjustment | Adjustment
1A} Adjustment
(E)
Non-current assels )
Cter Acsots 21,817 49 80169 22714 .18 23.27155 B01.65 352.59 1,154 28 24, 425.52
Rignt ol uss assels 16.035.80 38367 16,418.46 15,382.18 38367 (55.25) A28 38 15,710:57
Currant assets 204.767.30 - 294 767 .30 S17.00087 it - 317,000.91
Total Assets 332,715.59 1,185.38 33300085 | 355,654.73 1,186.36 | 287.31 148267 | 357,137.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 74, 186,10 as.vo T4 27280 8916349 BE.70 452 01.0% B8G,264,51
Liabilities
MNon-current Liablity Leass 14,543 63 2,7003.11 1732374 14.564.68 27001 (E3.13) 263503 17.301.86
Mon-currant liabilites Cther 59.46 8946 B4, 76 6478
A |
Current Liablity Lease 9,279, 74 1,607.45) 1E1829 284311 (1,601.45) 35613 (1,245.32) 1,597.79
Currant liabilitizs Other 240,076 68 240626.66 248351849 N | 24891849
Total Equily and Lizbllities 332,715.59 1,185.36 333,900.95 395,094.73 1,185.36 29731 1,482.687 | 357,137.40
Impact on Profit and Loss Account for the Year 2022-23 it
S S —— n Laki
Farticulars — Faor the Year 2042-23
Priorto Adjustment| After Adjustment
Adjustment
INCOAE
Revenue Fram Operations 16041810 16041810
Other Income 8.85298 | [3.83) 9848.35
Tatal Income (1+/1) 170,271.08 i {3.63) 170,267.45
EXPENSES
Purchases of Slock-in-Trade 19,030.09 13,020.08
Services Support Expenses AL Mgariki] 114,778,391
Employes benatits expanses 1,205.16 1,208.18
Finence Cost BU5.33 | . a05:33
Dezpreciatian and amorlizetion expensas F.292.90 (7.95) 7204 05
Cither expenses 5,941.25 E B.941.28
{Total Expenses (V) 150,235.04 (7.95) 150.227.09
Incarmed{loss) pefors s (HI-1V) 20,036.04 432 20, 040.36
ITax BLpense 5,054, 64 5 (156 Ad
lIncome (Loss) for the year from continuing oparations (V-V1) 14,977.40 432 14,981.72
Total Gomprehansive Income for the 14,977.40 432 14,981.72
period |(Comprising Income/ (Loss)
|and Other Comprehensive Income for the year}
| Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Rs.100):
(1) Basic 7,466.70 2156 7,490.86
H2) Diluted 7,488.70 Z1B | 7,020 66
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Note No. 37, Contingent Liabilities

in Lakhs l
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debis® 44512 382.66
Demand Raised by DoT for Interest and Penalty 0 341.75
Guarantess 1370.57 1638.65
Delhi VAT Demand (September 2005 to November 2008) 678.00 678.00
Income Tax Demand (Assassment Year 2014-15) 206,29 206.29
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2018-19)* 243458 2434.58
Income Tax Demand (Asssssment Year 2019-20) 42,50 42 .50
Income Tax Demand (Assassment Yzar 2022-23) 2012.89 0
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2020-21) 30.22 0
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 1449.51 687.25
payment under MSME Act***
Interest under section 16 (2)(d) for delay in payment to 112529 910.87 |
vendors under GST Act (subject to utilization of credit '
balance in Electronic Credit and Cash Ledgar)***

Total 9794 .97 732255

* The above contingent liabilities do not include the 22 cases against the company as the

managementview that there is no financial impact on the company.
ke The above demand is net off after the adjustment of refund claimed in ITR ofRs. 5139.45 Lakh.
ek MSME Interast and GST Interest are disclosed as contingent lizbility as the same will be recoverable

from user department in case where the fund are not avallable in the project for making payment to
vendors. However no demandis outstanding against the MSME and G3T interest as on date.

Note No.38. Commitments

The Company has made commitment to procure the trading goods and to avail the services in the
subsequent period based on the purchase orders and agreements made with suppliers. Those
commitments can be amended as per the agreed terms. However, the amount of such revenue
commitments towards internal projects of the company is Rs.2759.45 Lakh (PY Rs.1358.40 Lakh) as at
March 31,2024. In addition, Commitment towards capital expenditure out of “Reserves ™ is as follows:-

Rent fram DMRC development of Sheet Work
Rs.725.67 (Less Advance Rs. 71.98 and
Capitalization for Rs, 478.71) (PY 725.67 Lakhs less
Advance 99.67 and Capitlised during the PY for Rs,
451.011il12022-23)

in Lakhs
SrNo Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar 10604 .88 16862.11
2 2nd Floor in Block-1, Shastri Park, Delhi on Lease 174.98 174 .98

G



in Lakhs

srNo | Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Renovalion works far 4 No. Toilets Civil & Electric 10.20 101.810)

(4]

work at 2nd Floor Shastri Park for Rs, 45.04(Less
transfer to capital work in progress by Rs. 34.14
lakhs (PY Rs, 45.04Less transfer to capital work in
progress by Rs. 34.14 lakhs till 2022-23)

4 Renovation works for 6th Floor (Hall No. 2 & 3) at 55.49 -
NBBC Tower, 15 Bhikaji Cama Place for Interior
work Re. 138.73 lakh Less Advance Rs. 43.11
lakh and less transfer to capital work in progress
Rs.40.13 lakh (PY Nil)

5 Purchase of Office space at World Trade Tower, T28.57 4980.01
Naurgj| Nagar, New Delhi (Unit No. A-300) |

(Total Cost Rs. 11337.69 Lakhs less Rs. 6957.68 |
Lakhs paid upto 2021-22, Rs. 4251 .44 Lakhs in
2023-24, and both excluding taxes and statutery
charges) |

Total ' 11574.82 22028.00

Note Ng.29  Information pursuant to Para 5(viil) of the General Instructions for preparation to the Income
& Expenditure Account given under schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

Value of Imports on C.I.F Basis: NIL (PY Rs. NIL)

I Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

in Lakns |
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended '
March 31, 2024 : March 31, 2023
- Travelling - Staff (Foreign) NIL NIL
| Total | NIL ‘ NIL
ili. Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual bas-.is]: Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil)
Note No.40,  Auditor Remuneration®
_ in Lakhs
‘ Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory Audit Fees 7.36 7.07
Income Tax Audit 0.98 0.93
For Reimbursement of expenses 2.20 1.82
Total 10,54 9,76
.-‘i;b_




" Exclusive of applicable taxes. Further, Rs. 2.90 Lakh (PY Rs.2.20 Lakh) plus GST as applicable have been pald
for certification work for various projects which are direclly debited inthe respective projects.
Note No.47.  Disclosure pursuant to Ind-As 19 - ‘Employee Benefits'

i, Contribution to Provident Fund

The company is not having any Provident Fund scheme as the employees of the company are on deputation
from NIC, alang-with their posts, as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998. The
Provident Fund is deducted from their salary svery manth as per the rates prescribed for the purpose and
government guidelines thereon subsequently, passed on to NIC as its entire account is maintzined by them.
Thereis thus, no liability of the company towards any payment to the employees on Provident Fund Account,

ii. Leave Salary

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the Government of Indiz Notification dated 3rd March,
1998, the leave salary contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is
calculated / provided by the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No
liability is thus, there on the company towards payment of leave salary/encashment,

iil. Pension Contrihution

Since the employee are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd
March, 1998, the pension contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respeclive employee), is
calculated / provided by the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on ta NIC. No
liability is thus, there on the company towards payment of Pensionery benafits.

iv. Gratuity
Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd
March, 1998, the company is not liable to pay any Gratuity, as the same shall entirely be borne by NIC.

Note No.42. Related Party disclosures
a) List of Related Parties —

Listof Directors from 01-04-2023 to 31-03-2024

S. No| Name & Designation of Director i Stalus on Board | Appointment Date | Relinquishment Date |
1 Shri Amit Agarwal Chalrperson 25/Nowi22 17/Jul/23 |
IAS, Additional Secretary, Meity

2 Shri Bhuvnesh Kumar Chairperson 174Juli23 Continue
|AS Additional Secretary, MeitY

3 Shri Rajesh Singh Director 16/Junf22 Continue
JS & FA MeitY
4 Shri Sughil Pal Director 25MNov/22 23/Aug/23

Joint Secretary , MeitY

5 Shri Sanket Bhondve Director 23/Aug/23 Continue
Joint Secretary, MeitY |




6 Shri 8.K. Marwaha, Director 31/Decf21 Continue
Scientist G and Group Coordinator
T Smt. SunitaVerma, Directar 16/Jun/22 Continue
Scientist G and Group Coordinator
8 Shri Rajiv Rathi, Director 01/Cct/21 30/Sep/23
Scientist G, NIC
9 Ms. Alka Misra, Director 10cti21 30/Sep/23
Scientist G, NIC |
10 | Dr.Ms. Suchitra Pyarelal Director 1/0cti21 30/Sepl23
‘Scientist G,NIC
11 | ShriVTV.Ramana, Director 01/0ctf22 Continue
| Scientist G, NIC
12 Dr. Shubhag Chand, Director | 01/0cti22 Continue
Scientist G, NIC '
13 Shri Pramad Kumar Singh Director 01/0ct/22 Cantinue
Scientist G& 510 (Gujarat) NIC
14 | Ms Jayanthi Srinivasan Director 01/Cct/23 Continue
Scientist (G& ASID (Karnataka), NIC
15 ShriSusheel Kumar ‘ Director 01/Cctf23 Continue
Scientist G, NIC
16 Dr. Vinay [hakur, Managing 13/Aug/22 30/Apr/24
Scientist G, NIC Director
Listof Key Managerial Person
|3, No | Name & Designation of Key Managerial Status on Board | Appointment | Relinquishment
Person Date Date
1. Dr. Vinay Thakur, Managing 13/Aug/22 30/Apr/24
Scientist G, NIC Director
2. Shri Sunny Jain Company 28/Jan/20 Continue
Secretary
528> s
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Transactions with Related Parties: -

March 31,2024 | March 31 2023

Name of Party Year ended
Year Ended Year Endad

1. Managerial Remuneration
Sh. Prashant Kumar Mittal - 15.00
Shri IPS Sethi - / 00.00
Sh. Vinay Thakur 50.34 25.48

’ Sh. Sunny Jain 19.38 12.79
Total Managerial Remuneration 69.72 53.27

2. Sitting Fees to Director - .
' 3. Remuneration to relative of Director . 5
4, Loans and Advance o 5
5. Investment in Joint venture = [ g
6. Payable as on Balance Sheet Date

Sh. Vinay Thakur 3.24 3.06
Sh. Sunny Jain 1.55 J_ 1.25

b) Entities under the control of same government:

The company is a Centra| Fublic Sactor Enterprisas (CPSE) controlled by Nzlional |nformatics Centre,
Minisiry of Electronics & Information Technology (Government of | ndia) by halding majority of the shares,
Pursuant to paragraph 25 and 26 of Ind AS 24, entities over which the same government has control or joint
control of, or significant influence, then the reporting entity and other entities shall be regarded as relatsd
parties. Transactions with these parties are carried oul at market terms at arm length basis. The Com pany
has applied the exemption available for governmant related entities and have made limited disclosures in
the financial statements.

Note No.43. Disclosure Pursuanttolnd AS-108 ‘Operating Segments’

The company Is Rproviding services in ‘Information Technology’ segment only from a centralized office in
Delhi. Considering the same as ane segment only, no disclosure according lu Ind AS- 108 ‘Operating
Segmenls’ have been made in the fing ncial statements.

Note No. 44, Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115, Disclosures on Revenus fram contracts with
customers

a) Significant managementjudgments on Revenue Recognition:
Recognized amounts of contract revenues and related receivables reflect management’s best estimate of
gach contract's outcome and stage of completion which is determined ba sed on user accepglancef
performance certificate, efforts, castincurred to date beartothe totg estimated cost of the transaction, time
spent, service performed or Any other method that management considered appropriate.

b) Company has recognized revenue depending upon satisfaction of performance obligation an
transferring control of goods or services to customers. Revenue has been recognized by the company on
the basis of user acceptance/ performance certificate or at the time of generation of invoices ifany one of
the following condition is met;

—— —_—
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i Customer simultaneously receives the benefit and the right and control an the goods and service are
transferred determined ontne hasis of proof of delivery of goodsfservices.

i Company’s performarce creates or enhances an assels that the customer contrals as the assefs i5
created or enhanced

ii Company's performance does not create with alternative use and company has cnforceable right to
payment far performance completed to date.

c) Disagg regation or revenue
Setout belowis the di |szagg regation of the revenue from contracts with customers:

in Lakhs

IE=— = s, e A —
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
& _ Year Ended Year Ended
\ Rovenue from contracts with customers
Bases on nature of goods/services
Sale of Traded Goods 35,980.60 19,707.34
Services income 185596.58 139901 .46
Otner Administrative Charges | 782.78 809.30

Totzl Revenue 222,359.96 160,418.10

- e —————

d) Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivable, contact assets and contract liabiliies from

contact with cusiomers:

T T

in Lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 3'1 2023
Year Ended Year Ended .
Receivables
| Trade receivables 44021.52 45254.53
Unbilled revenus for passaye of time 0693.99 11790.45
Less: loss allowance (11620.00) (10483 .50)
Total receivables (a) 42095.51 46561.48
- Contract assets
Unbilled revenue other than passage of time
Total contract assets (b) -
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 263566.23 197337.49

Total contract liabilities © 263566.23 197337.49

s e

—— N PR
Total (a+b-c) (221470.72) (150778.01)




Contract asset is the right to consideration In exchange for goods of services transferred to the customer
Gantract liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to 3 customer for which the entity has
received consideration from the customerin advance. Contract assats are trar sferred to receivables when
the rights become unconditional e, only the passage of time is required before payment of cansiderationis
due and the amount is billable. Gontract liabilities are recognized as revenue as and when the performance
obligation Is satisfied.

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balance during the year are as follows:

" in Lakhs

Particulars March 31,2024 |  March 31, 2023
| Year Ended Year Ended

: - o S =
Opening balance 197337.49 192452 00
Amount received 274645.74 186809.52
Perfarmance obligations satisfied in current year | (208417.00) (181924.03) B
Closing balance ; 263566.23 197337.49

€) Performance Obligatian
The company's performance obligation s satisfied on the basis of User acceptance/ performance certificate
or atthe time of generation of invoices,

f) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracied
price

in Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 |
For the year ended For the year ended
| Revenue as per contract 235374 .43 164211.26

Adjustments:

Cash repate

Deferred revenue

Cther adjustments (1301447) | (3793.16)
Revenus from contract with customers 222359.96 160418.10

Note No. 45, Balance Confirmation

The Company has a system of obtaining confirmation of balances from ba nks and ather parties. There are
no unconfirmed balances in respect of bank accounts. So far as trade/other payables and advances are
concerned, the balance confirmation letters/emails with the negative assertion as referred in the Standard
on Auditing (SA) 505 (Revised) 'External Confirmations’, were sent 1o the parties. Some of suich balances
are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any will be accounted for on
confirmation/reconclliation of the same, which in the opinion of the management will not have a material
impact.

oy
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NotsNo.46  Non-gxecution of Conveyance/Title Deed

The Company had purchased Hall No's 283 at 6th Flocs, NBCC Towers, Bhikaiji Cama Place, Mew Delhi
from M/s. NBCC Limited in the year 2003 and 2001 respectively. However, the Conveyance Deeds / Title
Deeds towards the same had got registered on July 18, 2023 by NBCC inthe name of NICSL.

Further company was also allotted unit No. A-300 Tower A, 3rd floor world trade centreNauroji Nagar. The
axecution of the file deedinthe name of NICSIis pending as building is under construction.

Note No.47. In the opinian of the Management, the current assets, loans and advances & trade
receivable have a value on realization in ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which
they are stated.

Disclosure u/s 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006

in Lakhs
arNo | Particulars As at As at
' March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
E The Principal amount and the interest due | 3059 78 6847.30
thereon remaining unpaid to any supolier™. I
|
2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms NIL NIL
of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development ACt, 2006, along with
the amountofthe paymertmade tothe supplier.
3 The amourt of interest due and payable for the NIL NIL
period of delay in making payment bul without
adding the interest specified under the Micro,
small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006.
4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining NIL NIL
unpaid.
5 The amount of further interest remaining due and NIL NiL

payable even in the succeeding years, unlil such
date when the interest dues above are actually
pzid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductibie expenditure under

| section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
. Enterprises Development Act, 2008.

*The abuve however, docs not include the interest payable ifany on the mentioned amount




NoteNo.48. Disclosure pursuantto INDAS -36/| mpairment of Assets'

As per IND AS—36 ‘Impairment of Assets' the assessment ofimpairment of Assets has besn carried out during
the FY 2023-24 in respect of Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, National Data Centre at Shastri Park towards
investmenton “Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services" and Development Centre at Shastri Park locations, which
are cash generating units of the company and no impairment |oss has been identifled theraon. In the opinion of
Management thereis no indication of any significant impairment of assets du ring the year as per Ind-AS 36.

Note No.49. Revenue Generation (GR/ AGR) towards VSAT Projects against DOT License No. 815-
100/NICEI/2008-DS dated 20.11.2009 (surrendered by NICS! on 81.03.2017 and accepted by DoT) and
payment of License Fee and Spectrum Charges to DOT thereon.

NICSI had surrendered the DoT Licznse on 31.03.2017 and accepted by DoT. As per the mandate given by
DoT, NICSI has since paid entire amount towards License Fes | Spectrum Charges till 31.03.2017 on the
revenue related to this activity only. Also, the amounts from MHA/NDRF are rece wved. However, the Ofo the Pr
CCA Office, DoT has levied interest / penalty on NICSI by taking revenue of entire com pany, for which MeitY
had taken up the matter with DoT,

Ofo the Pr. CCA DaoT. vide letter dated 17.07.2020, has withdrawn all Demand Notices against NICS| towards
License Fee and Spectrum Usage Charges (based on Hon'ble Supreme Court of India Judgement dated
11.06.2020 and DoT OM No. 12-25/2019-LFP dated 17.07.2020. The F&C Audit Office had accordingly, been
infarmed by NICSI, vide letter no. NICS1/ Fin/insp. F&C Adt/2018-19/289 dated 20.07.2020 & accordingly, that
office had admitted / closed the para, vide letter no. AMG-IINICSI/F-2516/201 9-20/323 dated 23.09.2020.

However, NICS| had deposited 4 Bank Guarantees (BG's)to DoT towards the abave totaling to Rs. 92 lakh which
had been renewed from time to time. NICSI had taken up the matter with DoT to return all these BG's, vide its
letter dated 10.08.2020, with reminder dated 09.11.2020. In respanse there-to, O/o Pr.CCA, DoT, vide letter no.
50-4/2018-Clarification & Rulings / Pr.CCA /Delhi /1412 dated 05.02.2021 . had requesled DoT (LFP Divison) to
issue the guidelines for re-assessment of LF / S8UC in respect to Non-Telecom PSU's, as the demand raised by
the DoT had been withdrawn, vide its order no. 12-25/ 2019-LFP dated 13.07.2020. NICSI has further issued
reminders to DoT, vide letters dated 11.03.2021, 27.05.2021, 22.08.202 1, 22.07.2021, 09.08.2021,
13.09.2021,22.11.2021,08.03.2022 & 21.04 2022 but ro progress sofarandthe BG's are still with DoT.

Further, /o the Pr.CCA vide letter dated 03.01.2023 intimated that the revised assessment has been carricd
out and the amount of Rs.341,75 lakhare outstanding against NICSI. The same is shown as contingent liability
underthe Annual Financial Staternent of Financial Year 2022-23. NICSI has requested to waive off the demand
raised by the DOT

Howeve/r O/o the Pr.CCA again communicated the revised dermand vide latter dated 12.03.2024 & 15.03.2024
for Amount to Rs 413.59 lakhs. Accordingly NICSI has provided the provision under Financial Statement for
Financial Year 2023-24,

Note No.50.  Income/Expenditure on National Data Centre Projects

National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi had been set up with financial assistance from Melty and NIC and had
become operational in July, 2011. As per approval by the Standing Finance Committee, NICSI was to bear
Operational Expenditure thereon @ Rs.800 Lakh per annum for initial 2 years. To meet its Operational
Expenditure, NICSI was to get income from 60 Racks allotted to it. While NICSI continued to meet Operational
Expenditure thereon even after 2 years, MeitY had approved that from 01-04-2014 onwards, NICSI would be
Incurring operational expenditure head-wise on the National Dala Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi upto Rs.800 Lakh
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on the hears Rent & Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure D & M Manpower
and NIG would relmburse the expenditure from its Budgetary Provision lo NICSI towards Electricity & Diesel
Charges/ Physical Security & Housekeeping Charges/ Water Charges/ Logistics Support/ Contingency
Charges upto 3% of all these charges, after these expenditure are initially incurred by NICSI. With the setting-up
of National Data Centre at Bhubaneswar, NICSI and NIC had worked out an arrangement for operation and
management ofthe same and also, for National Data Centre at Shastri Park, Delhi, NICSI Board of Directors, in
its 108th meeting held on 27.12.2018, had considered the same and approved as under with retrnspective
effect from 01 April 2018:-

+  NICSImay crea'e a separate project pool account for Shastri Park and Bhubaneswar [ata Centers.
+ Income generated through Co-location Services at both these Data Centers shall be pooled under Lhe
proposed project heads.

« Income shall be used for meeting the O&M expenditure and up-g radation of basic infrastructure at both
these Data Centers.

. in addition to existing 80 Racks being used for co-location service at Shastri Park by NICSI, NIC may add
more Racks to generate enough funds to meet O&M expenses for years to come and also for upgrading the
basicinfrastructure.

. NICSI would notincur Rs. 800 Lakh per annum towards O&M Expenditure at Shastri park from EY,2018-19
and onwards. Revenue generated per annum through said 60 Racks and more Racks to be added by NIC,
would be utilized for mesting O&M expenditure and up-gradation of basic infrastructure.

+  NICSIwould chargeits 7% Qperating Marginand Taxes therean as per Board approvalfrom F.Y. 2018-19
and anwards on the said O8M Expenditure.

NICSI has accordingly booked its Income & Expenditure in FY 2023-24 at National NDC-SP & Bhubaneswar.
NICSI Board af Directors, in its 114th meeting held on 29.07.2020, had requested a Director from NIC to look
inta and advice on the item related to meeting of deficit between expenditure & income (excluding on Cloud)
towards NDC-SP & Bhubaneswar. The matter is still under consideration.

Note No.51. Interest on Un-utilized fund of Grant in Aid projects and Non Grantin Aid projects.

NICS! has worked out the interest in GIA Projects in FY 2023-24 on actual basis as per the interest rales on
which NICS! had made FDs in the year and in FY.2023-24 as per below;

in Lakhs
Pericd NKN Project Other GIA Projects ‘ Total
| For FY.2022-23 872 236.82 ' 245 54
For EY.2023-24 - 137.25 137.25
| ;




NICSI has worked out the intarest in cther than GIA Projects in the directions of Board of Directors in the
121stmeeting held on 26-03-2022 and 122nd Mesgting held on 03-06-2022 as per below:

| | in Lakhs |
Particulars Year Endad Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest on Non ~GIA Project | 156,26 335.01

NoteNo.52. Trade Receivablos

NICSI implements a large number of new projects every year from varinus Ministries/ Departments /
Organizations of the Government of India and States / UTs. As per the provisions in the General Financial
Rules (GFRs), they restrict the release of advances to NICSI to 40% or 50, whereas in many cases mainly
related to procurement of ICT Hardware, NICS| has to release tne work orders to full extent and after
delivery / installation of those Items, NICS| has to releass the payments to the vendors as per the payment
lerms In the work orders. This, on many oceasions resulted in Trade Receivables, amount of Rs,53715.51
Lakh (PY Rs.57044.98 Lakh) as at March 312024 excluding provision for doubtful debts (disclosed in note
na. 10 of the financial statements), which is followed up by NICS! from time to time with the concerned
Departments /Organizations to recover the same.

Note No.53.  Provision for Doubtful Debt amounts un-likely to be recavered.

NICSI has been making 2 “Provision” towards Doubtful Debts in its Accounts continuously since FY. 201 8-
19 considering 100% for the period of more than 10 years, 50% between 5-10 years & 25% hetween 3-5

years.

A Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their recommendations towards making pravision in
the Accounts for FY.2023-24 for the doubtful amounts u n-likely lo be recovered.

Based on the Committee Recommendations as per the said Policy, the “Provision” has bheen made in NICSI
Accountsfor £'Y. 2023-24 towards doubtful amounts un-likely to be recoverad as per below: -

in Lakhs
Duration | Outstanding | Provision in Provision in Provision in
amount Y%age FY.2023-24 FY.2022-23
More than 10 years 8300.00 100 8300.00 8064.00
5to 10 years 2699.00 50 1350.00 1024.00
3to 5 years 7878.00 25 1970.00 1395.50
Upto 3 years 34838.51 NIL
Total 53715.51 11620.00 10483.00

Note No.54.  Provision for Advances to Suppliers.

F&C Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that “Advances to Suppliers amounting
to Rs.584.16 Lakh wers more than 3 years ald. Being more than 3 years old provisioning should have been
created in this respect. Non-provision had resulted into overstatement nof current assels and
understatement of provisions leading to overstatement of profit".
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Considering the above observation of F&C Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their
recommendations to consider and recommend the provision to be made towards Advances to Suppliers un-
likely to be settled. The Committee had recommended to make “Provision” in Accounts for amounts towards
Advances to Suppliers outstanding for more than 3 years. Accordingly, the Provision had been made in
Accounts for Y. 2018-19102021-22.

Dn the above basis, 8 Committee had been set-up to recommend the provision to be made towards Advances
to Suppliers in Accourts for Y. 2023-24. On Committee's Recommendations, the Provision amounting to Rs
1026.96 Lskh has been made in F. Y. 2023-24 towards amounts putstanding for more than 3 years as on
31 03 2024 and un-likely Lo be settled (as against Rs 931.98 lakh in PY 2022-23), except for NKN Project.

Note No.55.  Fxpenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the Companies Act, 2013, the company s required to spend at least two per cent of the average net
profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. During the year an amount of Rs. 302.00 lakh [(2% of Average Profil
Before Tax of immediately previous three years is Rs, 302.00 Lakh. (PY Rs. 250.00 lakh, 2% of Average Profit
Before Tax ofimmediately pravious three years)| to be spenton CSR during the year. The details of the utilization
are as below:

in Lakhs
Particulars Far the year ended
March 31,2024 |  March 31, 2023
Total of previous year Shortfall (A) 250.00 112.00
Amount approved by Board (B) 302.00 | 250.00
Amount spent by the Company for the financial | 250.00% -
year 2022-23 © |
Amount spent by the Company for the financial | 146.45 112.00
year 2023-24 (D)
Excess spend of prior years set off during the . -
|year (E) :
' Shortfall at the end of the year (F) (A+B-C-D) 155.55 250.00
Reason for shortfall NICS| has paid Amount Transfer tn
advance to implanting C5R Bank Account
agencies against
ongoing projects. The
fund will be utilized by
implementing
agencies in the next
financial year. Since
the project will
continue in the next
financial year also.
Nature of CSR activities For Health and For Health and
Nutrition purpose Nutrition purpose
Rs.302.00 Lakhs Rs.220 00 Lakhs
PM CARES Fund Rs.
30.00 Lakhs
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¥ During the financial year 2022-23, the Company could not spend Rs. 250 Iakhs towards CSR activities.
Cansequently, the Company created a liability of Rs. 250 lakhs in the financial statements for the year endad
March 31st, 2023 towards expenditure on corporate social responsibility. In FY 2023-24, out of Rs, 250 lakhs,
Rs. 220 lakhs were disbursed to CSR implementing agencies, and Rs. 30 lakhs ware deposited in a fund
specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2073. However, while taking approval from the Board for the
CSR projects for FY 2022-23, inadvertently, it was mentioned as “Other than ongoing projects” Instead of
“Ongaing Projects” and CSR return was filed with ROC accordingly. NICSI has taken the approval of the Board
to change the category of CSR projects to "Ongoing Projects” and will made the disclosures in the Directors
Report of FY 2023-24. Accordingly, will inferm the same to ROC while filing the financial staterment and C3R
return for FY 2023-24. Further, for FY 2023-24, NICSI has taken the approval of the Board (o change the
category of CSR projects to “Ongoing Projects™.

Note No.56.  Provision towards Income Tax & Szles Tax ete,

F&C Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that “an amount of Rs. 2, 281.03 Lakh on
account of TDS/Income Tax recoverable pertaining to FY 2007-08 to 2014-15 is pending from Income Tax
Department. The above amount being relating to more than 3 years old, provision in this regard should have
Deen created by the company. However, o provision has been created. Non provision of this amount has
resulted into overstatement of current assets and understatement of provision leading to overstatement of
income".

Considering the above observation of FAC Audit, a Committee was formed in NIGSI to review and give
recommendations on the provision to be made in Accounts for EY.2018-19 for the amounts towards Income Tax
refund, Sales Tax recoverable and TDS on Work Contract un-likely to be recovered. The provision has been
mzde in NICS|accounts as perdetall below: -

in Lakr;
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 Mzrch 31, 2023
Income Tax 1835.87 1835.87
Sales Tax/VAT/DVAT 117.81 117.91
TDS on Works Canlracl 254 2.54
Total 1956.32 1956.32

Matter has been taken up with the concerned Tax Authorities regarding refund of Tax and the matter is still under
discussion athigher level with their authorities, the refund of the said amount s still awaited.
Note No.57. Movement of Provision
In reference to compliance farInd As 37 movements in provision has been disclosed as below:

Particulars Provision l Provision | Provisions | Provision | Provisions | Provisions Total
for Supplier | for doubtful | for Stamp towards for DOT for CSR
Advance debts Duty Income Tax
& Sales Tax
etc

As at Ap-ril 894 32 974975 7452 1,956.33 - 0 12,174.92
1, 2022
Additions 931.98 10,483.50 - - - 0 11,415.48




Wrteback | 89432 | 924975 | 4685 | - : . 10.190.62 |
Transfzr’
Balance
March 31, 931,98 10,483.50 27.97 1,956.33 - 0 13,309.78
2023
Additions

1,026.96 11,620.00 - 413.58 165.55 13216.10
Write-back/
Transfer 931.98 10,483.50 27.97 - - Q0 11443 .45
Balance
March 31,
2024 1,026.96 | 11,620.00 - 1,956.33 41358 | 15555 15172.43

NotaNo.58. Obsolete ltems

While conducting review on NICSI Accounts for FY.2017-18, the F&C Audit team had observed that the
provision was not made in Accounts for that year towards difference between Depreciated Vzlue ofthe Obsolete
itemns as on 3 1st March and Estimated Sale Value against the same. Aceordingly, 2 Committee had been set up
in NICSI 10 examine and recommend the “Provision” to be made in NICSI Accounts for FY.2018-19 towards
obsolete items as on 31.03.2018 between the Depreciated Value and the Estimated Sale Value. The Committze
had recommended that the Depreciated Value of the Obsalete Asset itermns as on 31.03.2019 be taken as the
Estimated Sale valug and therefore, no Provision on this account was required to be made in the Accounts for
that year. Simllarly, no ‘Provision’ had been theresfter in NICS| Accounts for EY. 2021-22 and 2022-23 and also
In EY. 2023-24. Howaver, based on the physical verification of assets, the estimated value of obsolate assetitems
as on 31.03.2024 has been worked out at Rs. 10.03 Lakh (PY 10.94 Lakh).

NoteNo.59. Provision of Year-end expense and unbilled Revenue

While reviewing the Financial Statement for 2018-20 & 2020-21, P&T Audit (CAG) observed that no provision
was being made in books of accounts for invoices pertaining to the expenditure incurred for the preceding
previous year for which invoices had been recelved after the end of the financial year but prior to the date of
finalisation of the annual financial statements. The P&T audit had suggested making an appropriate provision
against these expenses. Accordingly, from the financial year 2021-22 provision has been made for invoices
pertaining to previous linancial year and corresponding income from FY 2021-22 has alsc been be recorded in
respective financial year. Based on above unbilled provision has been made in NICS| accounts as per below in
financial Year 2023-24 also

in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Expenses ] 10308.34 ' 12039.63
Unbillad Revenue 0693,99 ' 1179045




Note No.80. Appeal before GST authorities

In Novemnber, 2017 the GET of Rs. 473.37 Lakhs was depasited in excess by NICS! on the assumption that ma ny
invaices of vendors would be booked in that year but owing to receipt of less invoices, it is resultad in non-
settlement of GST to that extent. The claim was rejected by the Assessing officer on 25.09.2020 being time-
barred. NICSI had filed an Appeal before the Commissionar (Appeal-ll), CGST, Delhi on 18.12.2020 for refund
of excess tax deposited but the concarned Commissionrate had rejected the same. NICS1is in process of filing
afresn Appeal with the GST Tribunal butitis held up, as the Tribunal is yet to be constituted by the Gavernmant.

NoteNo.61.  The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 580 of the Companies Act. 1956 during the FY 2023-24.

NoteNo.62.  Previous year figure reclassification

The campany has Re-classified/Re-group/Re-arrange previous year figures to make it com parable with current
vear classification.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. ("the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, Income and Expenditure account, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the ™fi nancial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according lo the explanations given 1o us, except for the
effects of the matter describad in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesald financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") as amended from time to time.,
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind As”) and its excess of income over expendilure, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended onthat date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

| We draw attention to the following notes to the financial statements. These balances are subject to
raconciliation and confirmation. Pending such conformation and reconciliation, we are not in a position to
ascertain and comment on the correctness of the outstanding balances and resultant impact of the same on
financial statements.

in Lakhs
SrNo | Description Note No Balance as at March
2024 (Rs. In Lakhs)
1 Other financial assets (3ecurity Deposit) Note-7 1,366.10
pd Other non-current assels” (Capital & other Note-9 1277442
advance)
3 Trade receivables Note-10 42 D95 51
4 Othercurrent assets” (Advance to suppliers) Note-15 29,011.05
5 Other financial liabilities (Security deposits Note-16 64,76
payahle)
6
Trade Payable Note-18 45,206.02
7
QOther financial liabilities™ (Ermest money Note-20 861.09
|8 deposit & retention money deposit)
g Other current liabilities” (advance from Note-21 2,63,566.22
customers)




ii. Refer Note 37. “Contingent Liabilities". Instead of recognizing interest expense & interest liability in respect
of MSME trade payables, the compary has disclosed Interest liacility in respect of MSME trade payable as a
contingent liability. This has resulted in overstatement of income by Rs.762.26 Lakhs & understatemeant of
Trade payables by Rs.762.26 Lakhs

iii. Refer Note No 10 “Trade Receivables”. As per the requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013, the ageing should be disclosed for the categories: less than 6 months, 6 months - 1 year,
1-2years, 2 - 3 years, and more than 3 years, with the due date of payment laken as the base date. Since ERF
accounting software of the company do not generales ageing details, therefore the Company has disclosed
ageing oftrade receivables using a yearly incremental balance apgroach.

Further, Company has recognized Rs. 11620 lakhs as provision for doubtful debis, Accounting policy of the
company for provision for doubtful debts is given in Note 2 (xvi) states that a “Provision lowards Doubtful Debts
is recognized considering 100% for the period of more than 10 years, 50% between 5-10 years & 25% between
3-5yearsas al the Balance shest date”.

As per accounting policy, provisioning period of 10 year, 5-10 years and 3-5 years should be seen from the due
date of payment of invaice. Since ERP accounting software of the compa ny does not generate ageing detsils,
therefore, company has used yearly incremental balance approach for calculating provision of Rs. 11620
Lakhs. In view of non-availability of invoice wise ageing of the trads receivables, we unable to ascertain and
commeanton the correctness of the ageing disclosed & provisioning amount of Rs. 11620 lakhs.

In the absence of information, the effect of which can't be quantified, we are unable to comment on the possible
impact of these items stated in points nes (i) & (jii) on thie financial statements of the com pany for the year ended
on March 31st, 2024,

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilitias under those Standards arg
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issuad by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our augit of the Financial
Staternents under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our othar ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our gualified opinion on the
financial statements

Emphasis of Matter

. Refer note no 55 “Expenditure on corporate social responsibility”. The company has disclosed that in the
financial year 2022-23, while obtaining Board approval for CSR expenditure, it inadvertently dic not categorize
CSR projects of Rs. 220 Lakhs as "ongoing projects”. Additionally, the company filed CSR 2 for FY 2022-23,
considering these projects as "other than ongoing projects.” In its board meeting held on 30,07.2024, the
company's Board ratified this error by reclassifying the "other than ongoing projects” calegory to "ongoing
projects.”

ii. The company is required to review its accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition given In note
2(vii) & in respect of amortization of computer software and server given in note 2(iv).

Our opinionis not modifiedin respect of the matters reportedin the paragraphs above.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Reportthereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information com prises
the information included in the management discussion and ana lysis, Board report including annexures to the
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Board's report and Sharenolder’s information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon The Annual Reportis expected lo be made available to usafter the date of this auditor's report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does notcover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusian thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have perfermed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information: we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Managementand Board of Director's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respact
to the preparation of these financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financlal position, financial
performance, changes In equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted inIndia, Including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accerdance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
ostimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were opgrating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give & true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.

In preparing the financial Statements, management and board of directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concer,
and uging the going concern basis of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the
Company orto cease operations or has no realistic alternative but todo se.

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but {s not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordancs with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when [t exists. Misstats ments can arise fram
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in theaggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these finan cial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and performaudit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detacting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(!) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by managemsnt,

* Conclude on the approoriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of aceounting and, basad
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. IT we conclude that 2 material
uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disciosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures arc inadequate, to modify our oplnion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease fo continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatemerits in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statemerits
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in () planning the scope of our
auditwork and in evaluating the results of cur work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect ofany identified misstatements
inthe financial statements.

We communicate with those cha rged with governance regard Ing, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal cantrol that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethica
requirements regarding independence, and to commuricate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reascnably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Matters specified in paragrapns 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Com panies Act,
2013 have not been commented upon since the said order is not applicable to the Company in view of thg
exemption availablsto g company licensed to operate under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013,

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which ta the best of our Knowledge and
beliefwere necessary forthe purposes of our audit,

b) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company sa far as it appears from
ourexamination of those backs.

¢) Inouropinion, the Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account the Statementof Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the baoks ofaccount,

d) In our opinion, the afaresaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act

e) The company being a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of tha Act, in respect of
director's disqualification, is nat applicable to the company, in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated
05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Carporate Affai rs, Government of India.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reparting of the Company and
the operaling effectiveness of such conlrols, refer to our separate Regort in "Annexure A". Our report
expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in ths auditor’s reportin accordance with the requirement of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we are infarmed that, company being a Government company, the
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provisions of section 107 read with Schedule V of the Act, relating to managerial remuneration are not
applicable to the company in terms of Notification No, G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

h) With respect o the other matters Lo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Auditand auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our apinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given tous:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial Position in its financial
statements (Refer Note no. 37 tothe financial statements);

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foresesable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 10 the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel, no funds have been
advanced or loaned crinvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any otfer Sources or kind of
funds) by the Company 10 or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Interm adiary shall:

« Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Baneficiaries") by oron behalf of Lhe Campanyor

- Provide any guarantee, security orthe like ta or on behalf of the Ultimate Bengficiaries.

(b) The managementhas represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recordedin writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« Directly or indirectly, lender invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever Ultimate
Beneficiaries") by or on behall of the Funding Party or

« Provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c} Based on stich audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause(iv) (3) and (Iv)
(b) above containany material mis-statement.

v. Since the Company has bean incorporated under Section 8 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and it cannot declare
dividend, reporting under ciause

143 (11) (e) ofthe Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules. 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the finan cial year ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

3, Our separatg report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of Indiz under section
143(5) of Companies act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.

For J.N. Mital & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRMOD3587N

Sd/-
CA. Manoj Valodl
(Partner)
M. No: 560392
UDIN: 24560392BKMDNU1578

Place. New Delhi
Date: 30th July 2024
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Annexure 'A’ to the independent auditor's report on the Ind AS financial
statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. for the year ended 31st
March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" Section of our
Report of even date)

Reportonthe Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause
() of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements of National Informatics
Centre Services Inc, ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements ofthe Company for the year ended an that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control over financisl reporting critena
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting ("Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Ghartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These respansibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial staterments. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we eomply with
athical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance sboutl whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financlal
controls system with reference to financial slatements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financizl statements included obtaining an understanding of Internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control basad On the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgment, including the assessment of tha risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate ta provide a basis for our audit
opinian onthe Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Gontrols Over Financial Reporting with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financizl reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the prepa -ation of financizal statements for external
purposés in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financia! control
with reference to financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance With generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being marde only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unautharized acguisition, use, of disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effecton the IND AS financial statemeants.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion grimproper management override of controls, material misstatements dueto error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any ~ evaluation ofthe internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies ar procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given o us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
overfinancia! reporting as at March 31, 2024

4. The company does not have an appropriate internal control system for ensuring recording of revenue in
respect of direct servicesimanaged services. Currently, revenue fram these services is recorded at the time the
invoice is generated. Involces are produced only after the project coordinator confirms that the service has
been delivered and instructs the billing division to issue the invoice. This method results ina time lag betwesn
when the service is actually provided =nd when the revenue is recorded, as revenue recognition occurs based
on the invoice generation rather than the actual performanca of the service. This could potentially result in
impaired financial reporting.

5. The Company does not have an ap propriate internal control system for reconciliation & confirmations of
Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Advance from customer, Ernest Money Deposit, Retention Money, Security
deposits, Advances 10 Suppliers, which could poientially result in some changes in the financial statements.
The cases identified by us have been appropriately qualified atvarious placesin our report.

¢. The Company does not have an appropriate internal control system for the ageing of trade receivables.
Currently, ageing is being done manually in Excel, which may lead 10 polential inaccuracies and inefficiencies.
Consoeguently, potentially rosult in impaired financial reporting. The cases identified by us have been
appropriately qualffied at various placesinourreport.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, ora combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reascnable possibility that a material misataternent of the company's annual Ind
AS financal statements will not be preve nted or detected an a timely basis.




In aur opinion, excepl for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described in the report on the
achievement of the abjectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with
reference to financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2024, financial statements of the Company, and
these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company. Our apinion is
notmodifiedin respect of the above matlers

For J.N. Mital & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRMNOO3587N

Sd/-
CA. Manoj Valodi
(Partner)
M. No: 560392
UDIN: 24560392BKMDNU1578

Place: New Delhi

Date: 30th July, 2024




Annexure 'B’ to the independent auditor's report on the Ind AS financial
statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. for the year ended
March 31, 2024

Report on Directions issued by the complroller and audilor general of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013

5. No

Directions/Sub directions

Audifor’s Comments

Whether the company has system in
place lo process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? if yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside |T
system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

The Company has an
accounting system in place
to process all the accounting
transactionsthrough an ERP
accounting software which
was implemented w.ef. July
01, 2017. However, the ERP
software was implemented
and is still in operation
without being validated by a
Systems Audit being carried
out by an external
independcnt ageney.

Further, ERP accounting
gystem of the company do
not provide the ageing of
trade recelvables, trade
payables & CWIP. Presently,
the ageing of trade
receivable, trade payables &
CWIP is being done

manually on excel and the
same is being used for

statements.

Furthermore, depreciation |
calculations with respect to |
opening/addition/ deletion is

currently being done|
manually on excel andi
thereafter same has been
posted into the ERP system
as no automation module is
availablein the ERP.

reporting in ﬁnancial|

Impact on financial
statements

Unascertainable




Whether there is any restructuring of an Not applicable, as the il
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off | company did net have any
of debts/lnans/interests etc. made by a | outstanding loan during the
lender to the company due to the | year 2023-24. Accordingly,
company's inability to repay the loan? If there was no case of
yes, thefinancialimpactmaybestated. waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etec.
made by any lender to the
company due to the
company's inability to repay
the loan

Whether funds received/receivable for|As per information, INil
specific schemes from Central/State |explanations & written
agencies were properly accounted | representations given to us
forfutilized as per its terms and|no funds (grants/subsidy)
conditions? List the cases of deviation. have been
received/receivable for any
specific schemes from
Central/State government
or its agencies, during the
financial year 2023-24

For J.N. Mital & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRNOO3587N

Sd/-
CA. Manoj Valodi
(Partner)
M. No: 560392
UDIN: 24560392BKMDNU1578

Place: New Delhi

Date: 30th July,2024




COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL, OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NATIONAL INFROMATICS
CENTRE SERVICES INC. (NICSI)

The preparation of Financial statement National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) for the year ended 31
March 2024 in according with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
{Acl) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor/Auditors appoeinted by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section139 (5) of the Act arefis responsible for expressing
opinion of the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based onindependent audit in accordance with
the standards on auditing prescribed under Section143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their Audit Reportdated 30.07.2024.

On behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. have conducled 2 supplementary audit of the
financial statement of NICSI for the year ended 30 March 2024 under Section 143 (€) {a) of the Act this
supplementary audit has been carried outindependently without access to the working papers o fthe statutory
Auditors and is limited primarily to inguiries of the Statutory Auditors and company personnel and a
examination of some of the accounting record.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under section 143
(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better
understanding ofthe financial statements and the related audit report.

Balance Shest

Assets

Other Non-Current Assets (Note No €)

Advance other than Capital Advances Rs.1450.21 lakh

The above head is overstated by an sccount of Rs, 45345 |akh due to inclusion of the advances fo the supplier
of manpower services outstanding for a period more than three years old. Non provision of these advances isin
contravention of the Company's accounting policy inthis regard.

This resulted in understatement of the expenditure and overstatement of the profit forthe year by thisamount.

Comment on the Statutory Auditor’s Report

Repart on Directions issued by the C&AG of India u's 143 (5) of the companies Act,

This Statutory Auditor’s response to the direction of CAG of India issued under section143 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, point no 3 (funds received /receivables for specific schemes) is factually incorrect 2s the Company
received funds of Rs.961071.91 Lakh during the year 2023-24 from different Ministries / Departments for
specific schemes whereas as per the Report of Statutory Auditors, during the year 2023-24, on such funds were
either received receivable by the Company from any Central/State agencies.

For and of behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditcr General of India

Sclf-
(Purushottam Tiwary)
Place: New Delni Director General of Audit
Date; 30th July,2024 (Finance & Communication




National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated
Inspection Report on the audit of office of the NICSI for the year 2023-24 (A/c year 2022-23)

Sr.No. | Report Audit Findings NICSI Reply
Para No.

1 Para In-adequate/non-pursuance of debtors and non- | Audio Ras observed that NIGSI
no.1 existence of proper debt recovery mechanism led | collaborates with Government
(Part-ll | to accumulation of dues of Rs.55.65 crore from | entities for IT project NICS|
A) Government Departments/ agencies in respect of | enters agresments & MOU and

the projects closed during the period from 2012-23
(Reference Number: OBS-1099279)

The National Informatics Centre Services
Incorporated (NICSI), 2 specialized IT services
company, collaborates with various government
entities for IT projects. Upon formal agreements ar
Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs), NICS]
issues Proforma Invoices, demanding 100%
advance payments to enable NICSI to initiate the
procurement of services and goods required for the
project and to faciliiate project execution. Upon
receiving the advance payments from the user
departments, NICSI allocates these funds to the
procurement of services and goods from its
empaneglled vendors. This advance payment
ensures a smooth flow of resources necessary for
project commencement. NICSI, having received
the necessary funds, then places work orders with
its empanelled vendors. These vendors are
carefully selected to meet the specific requirements
of the projects and are trusted partners in the
successful delivery of IT solutions. On completion
ofthe order, the vendor submits the invoices to the
NICS! tor release of payments to them as per the
conditions of paymentin the work orders.

On an examination of NICSI's debtar accounts, a
cencerning pattern emerged. Numerous
government departments and agencies fziled to
fulfill their financial obligations, defaulting on
payments for advances znd balance cdues even
after the successful completion of projects. It's
crucial to highlight that NICSI, In adherence to its
commitment to timely project completion, had
already disbursed paymenis to the vendors.
Regrettably, this non- compliance has led to a
substantial accumulaticn of debtors. As of March
31. 2023. NICS! 1s grappling with a significant
' cumulative debtor amount of Rs.452.54 crore which

issues performa invoices (Pl's)
NICSI thereafter demands 100%
advances, on receiving funds
fadvances NICS| Place work
orders. Vendors submitinvoices.
For release of payment due to
commitments with vendors.
NICSI disburses payment to the
vendors but government entities
defaults payments which lead to
accumulation of debtors.

As regards 1o accumulated
debtors of Rs. 452.54 crores as
31 March 2023. It is informed that
the debtors amounting to Rs.
169.84 crores were settled
during the period from (1.04.
202310 20.02.2024 (enclosed as
annexure-A)

As regards to outstanding
debtors of Rs. 80.64 crores
pending for more than 10 years. It
inform that the board had
approved the following policy for
provision of debtors.
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Sr.No. | Report '
Para No.

Audit Findings

=

Para
no.1
(Part-Il
A)

includes more than 10 years old outstanding amounts
of Rs.80.84 crore. Dut of this, dues of

NICSI Reply

Rs.55.55.24,739/- pertained to 1506 projects which
were completed/closed during the period between
April 2012 to 31" March 2023 (as detailed in the
Annexure-1).

Out of the above outstanding amount, an amount of
Rs. 39.21,88,689/- was outstanding in respect of
1216 projects which were faund to be closed three

5 Na. Particular | Provisions
Required
1 From 3 Years to 25%
8 Years
2 5 Yearsta 10 50%
Years
3 Maore than 10 100%
Years

years back i.e., prior to 31.03-2020. The possibility of
recovery of such old dues turning progressively bleak
with the passage of ime. The arrangements exist in
the NICSI to recover the old outstanding dues are
adhoc only. Upon assessing the recovery of dues
from vendors in the fiscal year 2022- 23, the status of
recovering dues for the period proceeding to 2019-
20is delineated

Accordingly NICS!| had provided
100% provision againsl the 80.84
Crore as per the Policy (Copy of
policy enclosed for ready reference
as Annexure-B)

As regards to dues of
Rs.55,65,24,739/- pertaining to
1506 projects which were
completed/closed during the
period between April 2012 to 31"
March 2023, it |s informed that the
details of the 1506 Projects have
besn re-checked from the records
and found that the amount of Rs.
6,95,92,962/- have been setiled/
recovered as on 02.07.2024
(Updated status is enclosed as
Annexure-C).

As regards to Rs. 38,21,88,689/-
outstanding in respect of 1218
projects, closed three ysars back
i.e. prior to 31.03.2020, it is
informed that delails of 1216
Projects have been re-checked
from the records and found that the
amount of Rs, 424 ,59,909/- have
been settled/ recovered as on
02.07.2024 (Updated status is

enclosed as Annexure-D).

As regards to Internal Mechanism
(for sottlement / recovery of old
| oulstanding debtors, it is informed
that persistent actions are being
[taken in NICS8I, Constant

“
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Amount in Crore | Persussion is being done with the

Department/ Organizations/

The above data reveals that the guantum of recovery
of old dues did not commensurate with the volume of

thedues.

Addressing the challenges of inadequate debt
recovery requires a comprehensive and strategic
approach. By actively engaging with defaulting
departments, implementing a systematic debt
recovery strategy. and enhancing internal
mechanisms, NICSI can mitigates the financial burden
caused by accumulated dues. Proactive measures
will not only ensure timely recovery but also
contribute to the sustained success of future projacts.
On being pointed out the above and enquired the
reasons for non-realisation of these long pending
dues, no reply was provided by NICS1.

Further, Despite repeated requests, the project-wise
data relating to the projects which were closed during
the period between the years 1998 to 31" March,
2012 and carries outstanding dues front different
agencies was not provided for verification. Immediate
action may be taken to provide this information.

Years Armount Amount Amount of |Ministrfas. Several lellers/ e-mails
Qutstanding Outstanding old sent in this regard are (enclosed for
ason 31-03- ason3l-  outstanding | ready reference as Annexure-E).

2022 03-2023 amounts
adjusted | As regards to project-wise data
during the | relating to the projects which were
year 2022-23. closed during the period between
|the years 1898 lo 31" March, 2012,
Upto B B0.64 P it is informed that 6119 projects

2012-13 were finally closed during the

201314 | 503 4.07 0.96 period between the years 1998 to

2014-15 | 7.29 6.47 0.82 31" March, 201 2. Inthese accounts,

2015-16 6.09 6.08 0,00 Debitbalanceis Rs. 21.06 crore and

2016-17 3.08 3.08 0.00 Credit balance is Rs.,7.35 crore and

2017-18 Q.77 0.77 0.00 details are enclosad as Annexure-F

| 2018-19 | 141 1378 0.32 for ready reference.

2018.20 ~ 47.43 42,04 5.39

?1;‘?;':2' TR Lo — (In view of above it is requested
2020 thatthe para may be dropped).
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Para
no.2
(Fart-ll
A

‘ Non-payment of interest on reve rsal of GST Input TaX

Credit in violation of CGST Act, 2017 resulted in
substantial loss of Rs. 3.89 Crore. (Reference
number: OBS-1097947)

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) system, heralded
as one of the most significant tax reforms in India,
introduced the concept of Input Tax Credit (ITC). This
mechanism allows registered taxable persons 10
offset the taxes paid oninputs (purchases) against the
laxes payable on outputs (sales). In essence, it
enables a reduction in the tax liability on sales by
accounling for Lhe laxes already paid on purchases.
In simple words. Input Credit means at the time of
paying tax on sales, you can reduce the tax you have
already paid on purchases.[TC can be availed by a
registered taxable person in a specific manner and
within a specified time frame.

If a registered person who has availed input tax credit
on any inward supply of goods or services or hoth, but
fails to pay the supplier within a pericd of 180 days,
then ITC availed is to be reversed. If part of the invoice
is paid then TG will be reversed on a proportionate
basis.

As per Rule 37. all registered persans should reverse
the ITC claimead on inward supplies far which he has
failed to pay consideration to the supplier within 180
days from the date of issue of the invoice. The reversal
process is crucial, and these transaclions must be
reportedin the annual tax return, GSTR 8.

Furthermore, Section 50(3] of the Central Goods and
Services Act, 2017 addresses the aspect of interest
on the undue or excess claim of input tax credit. A
taxable persan wha makes an undue or excess claim
of input tax credit under sub-section (10) of section
42 or undue or excess reduction in oulput tax liability
under sub-section (10) of section 43, shall pay
interest on such undue or excess claim or on such
undue or excess reduction, as the case may be, at
such rate not exceeding twenty -four per cent..as may
be notified by the Government on the
recommendations ofthe Council.

On areview of" records provided it was observed that
the NICSI| has reversed GST Input Tax Credit
amounting to Rs 16,227 crore related to the period
2022-23 as detailed below

| (In view of above it is requested that

In this regard, it is informed that |
NICSI has been regularly providing
the services to its user department |
through its empanelment vendor.
Non making the payment to
vendors within 180 days are only
due tu Non—availability of funds in
the respective projects which is
agread term of Purchase order/
work order with vendors that the
payment will be made subject to
availability of fund from user
department

Further, it is stated that the penal
interest and penalty as per the GST
act against reversal of input credit
for non-payment of vendor with-in
180 days will be charged from the
user department under the
respactive projects, if funds are not
available under the project due to
non-release of funds by the user
despartment.

NICSI had taken the plea previously
also in replying to a Audit
obsarvations, thal the interest
would be paid as & when
demanded by the GST department
and the same would be passed on
to the respective users. However,
no such demand had been raised
by the GST department so far
against NICSI.

Further CAG Statutory Auditor
accepted the plea of NICSI and
suggested to disclose the G3T
interest liability under the
contingent Liability in the annual
Financial Statement for 2022-23
enclosed as Annexure-G

the para may be dropped)
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Para
no.d

(Part-ll

(Amount in Crore)
Financi | Total Reversal | Total Reversal | Total Reversal
ul Year of SGST of CGST of IGST
2022- 469,710,168 4.68,10,168 6.84 51,138
23
Total 162271472

Despite the ITC reversals. it has been noted that |
| NICSI has not paid the applicable interest as per Rule

50 of the GST Act. The interast, calculatad at the rate

of 24% on the reversal of Input Credit amounts to a
| siibstantial lnss ot Rs. 3.89 Crore.

NICSI should promptly addresses this non-|
compliance by paying the due interest on the reversal
of GST Input Tax Credit. This action not only aligns
with regulatory requirements but also mitigates
financial masses associated with interest liabilities.
Timely rectification of this discrepancy Is essential to .
uphold financial prudence and compliance with the
GST regulations.

In conclusian. it is imperative for NICSI to
expeditiously rectify the non-compliance issue by
promptly remilting the due interest on the reversal of
GST Input Tax Credit. Compliance with the regulatory
framewark not only aligns with the principles of good
govarnance but also safeguards against financial
losses arising fram interest liabilities. Timely and
decisive action in addressing this discrepancy is
crucial for upholding financial prudence and
demaonstrating a commitment to adherence with GST
regulations.

On being enguired the reasons for non-payment of
interest, no reply was provided by the NICSI
authorities.

Observations on Issue of purchase orders on
empanelled vendors and non-return of balances of
Rs. 55.65 to Grantor agencies on closure of the
Projects. (Reference Number: OBS-1163028)

Non-adoption of approved Procurement Manual even
after 29 years of establishing NICSI.

NICSI plays a crucial role in facilitating the adoption of
IT solutions and services across government
agencies, central government, and state government

Audit has observed that NICSI was
established in year 1985 but it doss
not have approved Procurement
Manual which outlines policies,
procedures & guidelines for
procurement process within the
organization. It serves as a valuable
resource for training new
employees,

In this regard, it is informed that

451>
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and public seclor undertakings in India. To
accomplish this, NICS! is tasked with procuring
various information technology (IT) goods and
services including hardware, systerm software,
application software, software development,
customized software, intra-networking wide area
networking, video conferencing, IT training, [T
consultancy and I Timplementation support.

As per para 1.6 of Manual for Procurement of
Consultancy & Other Services, 2022 read with GFR
2017 the ubligations of Procuring authorities can be
grouped into following five fundamental principles of
public procurement, which all procuring authorities
mustabide by and be accolntable for.

« Transparency principle;

» Professionalism principle;

= Broader obligations principle

= Extrinsic legal principle and

« Public accountability principle.

Further, as per the manual, the following additional
princivles shall be considered during Procurement of
Consultancy and other services:-

Services to be procured should be justifiable.

In case of Consultancy Services — welldefined

scope of work / Terms of Reference (To description of

services) and the time frame for which services are to
be avalled of should be detsrmined consistent with
overall objectives ot procuring Entity. In other (non-

consultancy services) activity, Schedule (2

document covering well-defined scope of

work/description of services and the time frame for
which services are to be avalled of should be
consistent with overall objectives of Procuring Entity;

« Equal opportunity to agll qualified service
provider/consultants should be ensured to
compete. Engagements should be economical and
efficient.

« Transparency and integrity in the selection process
(i.e. proposed, awarded, administrated and
executed according to highestethical standards).

« Additionally, in procurement of consultancy
services, Consultants should be high quality.

On a scrutiny of records related to the year 2022-23.

it was observed that NICS| issued 7620

Purchasefwork orders for Rs.1230,07,14.293 to its

empanelled egencies for procurement af goods and

NICSI| has been following the
financlal principles / fundamental
principles of Public Procurement as
prescribaed in GFR 2017 & Manual
for Procurement of Consultaricy &
Other Services, 2022 (Ministry of
Finance & Depariment of
Expenditure)

(In view of above it is requested
thatthe paramay be dropped)




|serwr:es for various government department and
PSUs, however, the Company does not have
approved procurement manual. The procurgment
manual being a manual lying down the detsiled
procedure to be followed for procurement is an
essentiality for organization like NICSI. A
procurement manual is 2 document that outlines the
policies, procedures and guidelines for the
procurement process within an arganization. The
manual serves asavaluzble resource fortraining new
employees and on poarding them into the
organization. It provides a comprehensive overview
of the procurement palicies and procedures, helping
employees understand their roles and
responsibilities,

Though NICSI was established in the year. 1995, the
compeny did not possess an approved procuremeant
manuszl,

On being enquired the reasons for non-possessing or
non-preparing an approved procurement man ual, no
reply was furnished by the NICSI Management.
However, in the exit meeting with Audit, NICS]
authorities enguired about the necessity of adopting
a procurement manual as they are grocuring all their
services and goods through GeM on ly and as ger the
prevailing rules under GFR.

' As the NICS| plays pivotal role in procuring IT goods
and services for various government entities the lack
of anapproved procurement manual raises concerns
about the consistency and transparency of its
procurement practices. A procurement manual is
integral to an organization's effective functioning
providing a structured framework for the
Procurement process ensuring adherence to
principles of transparency professionalism, broader
obligations, legal compliance and public
accountatility. To align with contemporary standards
and to enhance operational efficiency, it is imperative
for NICSI to expeditiously adopt and implement an
dpproved procurement manual,

The Procurement manual should not only
encompass the fundamental principles of public
pracurement but also Integrate additional principles
specific to the procurement of consultancy and other
services as outlined in the Manual for Procurement of

W
253
2 )




f_y_‘

4 (B)

Consuttancy for Other Services 2022. This step will
not only institutionalize best practices but also serve
as a crucial resource for training and on boarding
ensuring that all stakeholders understand their roles
and responsibilities in the procureme nt proecess.
Thercfore, NICSI should prioritize the formulation
approval, and implementation of & comprehansive
procurement manual. This proaciive maasure will not
anly strengthen NICSI's internal governance but will
Slso contribute to the overall efficiency, transparency
and integrity of its procurement activities.

lssuance of around 60% of the work orders to four

| vendors as againstthe 68 empanelled vendors.

Out of 7620 work orders issued during the year 2022-
53 for Re.1230.07crore. 7530 work orders amounting
to Rs. 1132.83 crorg (98.73%) where issued in
respect of manpower procurements (as detailed in
the Annexure-2(g)). For manpower procurements
work orders were issued to 68 em panelied agencies
by NICS| during the year 2022-23.However, 5
vendors viz, Velocis Systems Pvl. Lid (| B.04%). S!Sl
Infatech Pvt. Ltd (14.84%), Akal Information Systems

'Ltd (10.38) and Aeologic Technolcgies Put. Lid

(7.62%) were having approx. 60% of the total work
orders issued during the year 2022~ 23 (as detailed in
Annexure-2(a) &2 (b)). [t was observed that for last 3

years these vendore were only given maximum |

numbers of the work orders.

Further, as per the CVC guidelines tne system of
allocation of work should be fair, transparent and

;equitable however, considering the skewed
procurement from inese four vendors only equity,

fairness and transparency cannot be ensured. As all
the agancies were empanelled on the same rates, the
justification for providing majority of work lo these
four varndors may please be elucidated.

Thus, the concentration of work orders, with
approximately 80% being awarded to just four
vendars out of the 68 empanelled agencies raises
concarns about the fairness, transparency and equity
in the procuremant process al NICSI. While these
vendors namely Velocis Systems Pyt Ltd,, SISL
Infotech Pvt. Lid, Akal Information Systems Lid. and
Aeolagic Technologies PvL Lid, have consistently
received a significant share of work orders over the

Audit has observed that -

7620 work orders were issued
during 2022-23 for value of
R=.1230.07 crare.

7530 work orders amounting to
Rs.1123.18 crore were issued to 4
vendors. Though 68 agercies were
empanealled.

Empanell | No. Of] % of | Value of

ed wo | WO WO
Vendors |issued | issued
Velocis | 1358 | 18.04 (170,292
‘Systems 6,498
Pwt. Ltd
5151 1117 | 14.84 86,75,68,
Infatech 2860
Pvt. Ltd
Mkal 782 | 10.39 |76,41.35,
Informati 804
on
Systems

Ltd -
= L.l -
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past three years, it is essential to ensure that the
allocation of work aligns with the principles of fairness
and egual opportunity as per CVC guidelines.

NICSI must provide a clear and justifizble explanation
for the disproportionate distribution of work orders
among these four vendors especially when all
empanglled agencies are on the same rate structure.
The justification should include specific criteria or
considerations that led to such a concenlration,
ensuring that the procurement process is free from
bias and adheres to the principles of transparency
and equity.

NICS| Management has nol provided any response
or clarification regarding this matter,

Aeologic | 574 | 7.62 (33,7528,

Technola 173

gies Pyt

Ltd

Total 3,831 50.89 |367.215
| % 9,335

Further, Audit has also reported that
for the last 3 years these vendors
were given only maximum number
of work orders.

As regards issue of 60% work
orders to 4 vendors., it is informed
that it amounts to 50.89% and not
60% as reported by the auditas may
besgen from the above table.

During FY. 2022-23, NICS! had |
awarded the manpower|
procurement work crders io its|
empanelled agencies, as per the
provisions In its SOP’s dated
26.04.2016, 15.09.2020 &
24.12.2021 [copies enclosed as|
Annsxure-H).

SoP far Assignment of work to
empanelled agencies are as under-

i. On receipt of request from User
Department, NICSI would inform
the User Department sbout lhe

empanelled consulting agencies
and the GFR compliant procedure
followed inthe empanelment

il. In case the User Department
clearly and specifically states in|
writing the name of a particular
agency, NICSI may assign the work
to that agency. In such cases, the
responsibility for adhering to
relevant financial/ procurement
rules would be that of the Ussr
Departmentconcarned

iii. In case the User Department
does not indicate any particular
agency, the work waould be awarded

,/m>
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based on the recommendation of a
Committee to be set up by the User
Department. The Committee would
be chaired by a representative of
the User Departmentarincaseitis
headed by any NIC/ NICSI officer, it
must have a reprasentative fromthe
user Department.

iv. All empanelled Cansulting
Agencies would be invited by the
Committes to maks presentations

regarding the project under
consideration. The presentations
may be evaluated objectively,
'based on which the most suitable
agency may be assigned the work
by NICSI, on the recommendation
of the above Committee.

v. There should be full participation
and involvement of the User
Department on the process of|
selection of agency.

The User organizetion informs its
“Preferred Vendor” to NICSI (put of
the empanelled agencies) through
the Project Execution Form (PEF), Il
may be seen from the abovs
procedure that the work orders are
awarded on the basis of
recommendations of the user
department. The allocation of
maximum work to specify vendors
are not dong by NICS!, and the
same are given work orders on the
recommendation by User
Departments copy (enclosed as
Annexure-l). In view of above, il is
informed that the work orders are
issued to vendors on the
procedures as per SoP's.

(In view of above it is requested
that the para may be dropped)




Non-implementation of Comprehensive ERP

The implementation of ERP accounting softwars at
NICSI with effect from July 01, 2017 without
undergoing validation through a system audit by an
externzl independent agency, has revealed certain
control weaknesses. These weaknesses pertain to
critical aspects of accounting, including the mapping
ofindividual party balances, carry forward of opening
balances, ageing schedule, obtaining statements of
account directly from the ERP and tracking changes
made in statements of accounts. This lack of
validation and identified control weaknesses ralse
concerns about the reliability and accuracy of the
financial data managed within the ERP system. The
absence of external validation increases the risk of
errors in financial reporting and may hinder the
NICSI's abhility to provide accurate and timely
information to the Management and staksholders.

Moreover, the manual process currently employed
for fixed Assets accounting, involving additions,
deletions, and deprecizlion, underscores a notable
operational gap. As there is no autornation module
available in the ERP system for Fixed Assets
management, this manual approach not only
increases the likelihood of errors but also leads fo
inefficiencies in data processing and reporting. The
delayed update of fixed assets records, coupled with
the polential for human errors in depreciation
calculations, may impact the accuracy of financial
statements.

The delayed update of lixed assets records, coupled
with the potential for human errors in depreciation
calculations. may impact the accuracy of financial
statements. Further, comprehensive project details
were not captured (n the ERP portal. The lack of this
essential project information may hinder the ability ta
conduct a comprehensive assessmant of the
project's progress, performance. and adherence to
established guidelinzs

Onbeing enquired the reasons for non-impiementing
comprehensive ERP system and even afier six (6)
years of implementing the ERP and reasons for non-
conducting the systems audit by an external

independent agency from time to time, no reply was |
Oracle EBS Application Software &

furnished by the NICS| Management.

o —

As regards to Comprehensive ERP
implementation, it is informed that
NICSlimplemented ERP in the year
2016 at the cost of Rs.3.02 Cr and
they were in handholding for 2
years 1ill 08-11-2018 with M/s Rolta
India LTD. The License fees paid 10
Qracle for perpetual and one time
basis, NICSI| can use those license
upto unlimited time, in case Oracle
ERP support required same will be
renewable on supportlicense fees.

During the audit for FY 2017-18 it
was observed that the Accounting
Software had not been validated by
any third agency. NICSI has taken
up the matter with 8TQC
Directorate for validation of
Accounting Software, Some
discussions & correspondence
were held but due to some reasons |
and Corona epidemics during 2020
the proposal was not finalized.
Subsequently, NICS| has invited
bids from its empanelled agencigs
and had finalized L1.

NICSI Board of Directors in 120th
meeting held on 26.11.2021 has
directed tofloat open tender,

For the need of time and volums
along with necessary requirement
of support from Oracle it was felt by
the management for up gradation
and the proposal was placed in its
123th Board meeting.

Further NICS|I management had
velidated the existing Oracle ERP
from MJ/s Dr. CBS Cyber Security
Services LLP and In its Report
dated 06.07.2022 finalized by
conducting the onsite Audit, the
firm has observed that "the
application is free from various
functionzl errors as per business
reguirement. Further the Audit of




Non-complying with the significant accounting
policies and re-returning of un- utilised balance of
Rs. 6.22 crore in a test checked 256 Active
Projects.

In adherence to NICSI's Significant Accounting
Palicies, advances received from various
Ministries/Departments of the Government for the
sales of goods and services are ulilized for the
execution of respeclive projects. |f a surplus remains
with NICS| at the conclusion of a project, it is duly
refunded to the Grantor Institution, accompanied by
any applicable interest. Despite repeated requasts
during the audit process, NICSI authorities did nct
provide the required informalion on Project-wise
balances and the date of the |ast transaction in each
project either by extracting it from the ERP system or
through manual submission.

In an effart to assess the situation the audit attempted
1o review Project-wise balznces available in the ERP
system. Due to ERP constraints, only 1%
(approximately 300 projects) of the active projects
were reviewed. Out of these, it was identified that in
258 projects, an un-refunded balance of

'with its in-house development
| lzam, All the above festures will now

related IT infrastructure shall be
carried out at least once a year or at
any significant up gradation of
procass / computer rescurce. Also,
the Application must be updated to
the latest version & authentication
for additional security of user's
personaldata”.

At the time of customizing the ERP
Software, the need to Include the |
fixed Asset schedule there-in was
not inadvertently brought to the

. |
notice of the development team and
therefore, it was not incorporated.
Howeuver, all these details, including
working out the depreciation there-
on, are worked out manually and
are also thoroughly checked by
both the Internal Audil Team &
Statutory Audit Team and no
variation there-in has sa far been
chserved.

At the time of customizing the ERP
Software, NICS| was not aware
shout the Embedded Audit Module
and therefore, it had not been
included in the same.

NICS| have developed new ERP

be implemented, once the new
customized ERP putin use.

(In view of above it is requested
that the para may be dropped)

As regards to observation that 256
projects are having un-utilized
balance of Rs.68,21,76,735/- in spite
of the fact that, no fransaction has
taken place in these projects after
year 2019, it |s informed that the
balance available as on 02.07.
2024 in these projects is Rs.
545,01,370.38/- and the amount
settled till 02.07.2024 is
Re 76,75,365/- as enclosed in
Annexure-J.
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| a three-year period would be corsiderad inactive or

Rs.6,21,76.735/- existed (as detailed in Annexure-
2(c). Nolably these projects showed no transactions
alter the year 2019 and in most cases the last
transaclion date was noted as 31-03-2016 indicating
the date from which previous balances wers carried |
forward in the ERP system. The balance amount
available in these 256 projects is ranged between
Rs.165/- (Project ID: P150685RLUP) to Rs,
2,22,69,841/- (Project ID: C144 558SDND).

Further scrutiny revealed that instead of refunding
these unutilized balances. NICSI had Invested the

amounts in Fixed Deposits with various banks at
varying interest rates and maturity profiles. Despite |
the absence of transactions and advancas in these |
projects for several years, NICSI had not taken action |
toclose theminthe FRP systerm or designate them as
inactive projects,

Further, in the test checked data it was observed that
though there were no transactions and no advance
amounts available in the projects for the last seversl
years. Noaction has beeninitiated by the NICS| either
to close the projects in ERP or earmarked under
inactive projects. The list of nan-refunded advance
balances in the active projects where there were no
activities since a long time. Is illustrative on ly:

During an oral inguiry of audit. NICSI authorities
communicated that projects with no transactions over

closed. However, it was observed that several
projects were confinued under Active status in ERP

‘department. NICSI refund the
amount and Interest on receipt of

withoul any transactions for years together.

|
Thus the above audit observation provides a |
significant lapse in NICSI's adherence to its own |
accounting policies reparding the refunding of
unutilized balances on the completion of projects.
The review of 2 sample of active projects revezled an
alarming number of 256 projects with un-refunded
balances totalling 6,21 .76,735/- Despite the absence
of transactions and advances in these projects for
several years. NICS| has not taken the necessary

aclions to close or categarize them as inactive in the
ERPsystemn. |
Furthermore, the audit observed that instead of
refunding these unutilized balances. NICS! had

As regards to investment in Fixed
Deposit, it is informed that as per
policy for better utilization of funds
the amounts are kept in Fixed
Deposits. Although it is not our
intent to keep the closed projects J

amount in the fixed deposits.

It is informed that, Projecls are
closed on receipt of request from
User Department/ Coordinators.
The details of Fxpenditure in|
projects, balance avallable along
with the invoices are sent to User

request from User Department.
Somelimes, user departments re-
request for opening of projects to
meet some other specific
requirements. In view of this
amount are continued in closed
projects and are returned to user
department on the request
received fromthem.

As directed by audit team, complete
data on active projects including
Project ID, project details, vendor
name, debit/credit balance, and the
date of the last transaction are
(enclosed as Annexu re-K)

(In view of above it is requested
thatthe paramay be dropped)




invested the amounts in Fixed Deposits with various

banks, indicating a departure from the established

policy. The lack of fransparency and accountability in

managing projects without recent activities raises

‘concerns abpout the integrity of the financial
management system atNICSI.

The query regarding the ralionale for keeping
nrojects open, despite the ahsence of transactions
for an extended period, remains unanswered. NICSI
is urged to provide complete data on active projects
Lincluding Project 1D, project details, vendaor name,
debit/credit balance, and the date of the last
transaction for further verification.

Addressing these discrepancies and providing
clarifications on the reasons for not returning

pbalances in compliance with NICSI's significant
accounting policies is imperative. This siep will not
only ensure accountability but will also contribute to
the overall transparency and reliability of NICSI's
financial management practices.

\ Non-return of un-utilised advance balance of Rs.
55.65 crore to the Grantors in respect of the projects

(E)

Audit team has pointed out that
there are un-utilized advances

closed during the period from April, 2012 to March,
2023,

NICSI, in accordance with s Significant Accounting
Policies, utilizes advances received from wvarious
Ministries/Departments of the Government for the
execution of specific projects. As per the policy. any
surplus remaining with NICS! at the completion of a
projact is to be promptly refunded to the respective

amounting to Rs. 55,65,24,739/-
received from different Grantor
agencies lying in the 14,945 closed
projects during the period from!
April 2012102023. '

In this regard, it is informed thal the
details have been rechecked and
it is found that the balance is Rs.

Grantor Institution, along with any applicable interest.

data provided by NIGSI
conecerning closed projects, it has come to attention
that an amount of Rs.55,65,24 738/ representing |
unutilized balances of advances received from
different Grantor Agencies has not been returned to
the concerned agencies upon the closure of these
projects (as detailed [n Anneeure-2(d)). These

Upon reviewing the

49,72,36,857.64/- as on 31.03.
2023 and Rs. 42,58,03,23595/- is
'available balance as on 02.07.2024.
Thus it may be seenthalthe amou nt
of Rs. 7,16,33,621.69/ in 14,945
closed projects is settled during
the period from 31.03.2023 to|
02.07.2024 (list enclosed as
Annexure-L).

projects were officially closed during the period
spanning from April 20120 March 2023.

This non-compliance with NICSI's own Significant
Accounting Policies, which mandate the timel

) ; .
refunding of surplus amounts to the respectiwﬂf’mlecm- balance avallable along

it is informed that Projects are
closed on receipt of request from
User Department/ Coordinatars.
The details of Expenditure in




| Grantor Institutions, raises concerns about financial

management practices.

NICSI is urged to provide detailed reasons for not
returning the aforementioned advance balances
upon the closure of the projects. A ccmprehensive
explanation is essential for transparency and
accountability, addressing concerns about
acherence to established policies and ensuring the
approgriate utilization of public funds. Taking prompt
corrective actions te initizte the refund process and
align with the Significant Accounling Policies Ig
Imperative. This will not only demonstrate NICSI's
commitment to financial accountability but also
uphold the principles of good governance in handling
advances and surpluses asscciated with project
closures.

NICS| Management has not provided any response
or clarification regarding this matter,

Repeating the balances under 40 closed projects two
to three times with different closure dales.

Upon secrutiny of the ERP data provided by NICSI
regarding closed projects spanning fram April 2012
to March 2023, a notable observation has emerged.
Specifically, it has been observed that the balances
associated with 40 projects (as detailed in Annexure-
2(e) were duplicated, appearing two to three times
with varying closing dates. This redundancy in data
has led to inflated or overstated credit balances for
NICSI.

It is imperative to underscore the importance of
addressing this discrepancy promptly and
conducting a comprehensive verification process to
rectify the issue. Accuracy and reliability in financial
data are fundamental for {ransparent and credible
financial reporting by NICS|

' The corrective measures taken to eliminate these

duplications should be communicated to the audit,
demonstrating NICSI's commitment to rectifying
discrepancies and ensuring Lhe inlegrity of Its
financial records. By swiftly addressing and rectifying
this data inconsistency, NICSI will not only uphold its

 commitment to financial transparency but also fortify
' the credibility of its financial reporting practices.

with the invoices are sent to User
department. NICSI refund the
amount and interest on receipt of
request from User Department.
Sometimes, user departments re-
request for opening of projects to
meet some other specific
requirements. In view of this
amount are continued in closed
projects and are returned to user
department on the request
received fram them.

(In view of above it is requested that
the para may be dropped)

Audit has observed that balances in
40 project closed during the period
from April 2012 to March 2023 are
shown 2-3 times. In this regard it is
informed thal, the Projects are
closed on receipt of request from
User Department/ Coordinators.
The details of Expenditure in|
projects, balance available along
with the invoices are sent to User
department. However, Projects are
re-opened when User department
request again to use the balance
available in the project. Therefore,
the project is re-opened and there-
after closed again. Dus to this, the
40 number of projects were closed
2-3 times during the period from
2012102023,

In view of this it is informed that
there is no discrepancies and the
balance shown against the |ast
transaction is considered as
cutstanding against this project.

(In view of above itis requested that
the para may be dropped)
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(Part-ll

Non-recovery of Rs. 28.46 lakh paid as Advance 10
staff during the period from September-2003 tc
October-2023.( Reference Number: OBS-1151602)

Rule 323 of GFR 2017 regarding sanction of
Advances for Cantingent and Miscellaneous
purposes provides that the Head of the Office may
sanction advances to a Government Servant far
purchase of goods or services or any other special
purpose needed for the management of the office,
subjectto the following conditions:-

The amount of expenditure being higher than the
Permanent Advance available cannot be met out of it.
The purchase or other purpose cannot be mznaged
under the normal procedures, envisaging post
procurement payment system. The amount of
advance should not be more than the power
delegated to the Heed of the Office for the purpose.
The Head of the Office shall be responsible for timely
recovery or adjustment of the advance. The
adjustment bill, along with balance i any, shall be
submitted by the govermment servant within fiftesn
days of the drawl of advance failing which the
advance or balance shall be recovered fram his next
salary(ies). Contingent advances are typically
approved for specific purposes, and subsequent

'advances are only sanctioned under specific

emergency conditions after the submission of bills for
the first advance.

Upon review of the ERP, it was observed that
advances for an amount of Rs. 28.45,606/- was paid
ta 91 officers of NICSINIC during the period from
September-2003 to October- 2023 (as outlined in the
Annexure-3). Despite the passage of several years. it
was observed that some officers have not yet
submitted adjustment bills and were allowed
subsequent advances, which was a deviation from
the establisned standards of financial progriety. In the
disbursement of advances, NICS| failed to adhers fo
Government of India (GOI) rules and did not
formulate internal policies aligned with project
reguirements. Furthermore, the absence of control
registers has limited the scrutiny of the purposes for
which these advances were obtained.

Thus, the non-recavery of Re.28.46 lakh advanced to
staff between September 2003 and Qctober 2023

Proper follow-ups is being made to
adjust the staff advances which
were outstanding. It is pertinent to
mention here that in the current
period, numerous advances has
been settled. It may be seen from
the stalement that the amount
of Rs 20,36,806.00/- out of Rs.
28,45,608/- are setiled/ adjusted
during the period 31.03.2023 to
16.07.2024 list enclosed as
Annexure-M.

Further, communication/Email
regarding outstanding staff
advance is being sent to concerned
staff for settlement of their
outstanding.

'However as regards to audit

observation, the position of
outstanding staff advance will again
be reviewed and more follow up will
be done in current period for
settiement of outstanding staff
advance.

As regards to Control Register, it is
informed that NICSI is maintaining
its Accounting on the Oracle Based
ERP System. All the Register/
Reports are Maintained in ERP. It is
therefore informed that there is no
Reguirement of Maintaining
Physical Register to Control the
Advance to Staff.

it is also informed that the
subssquent Advance are
sanctioned to the staff only in very
few case for some specific different
reguirement with the approval of
Competent Authority

It may be seen from the previous
reply that NICSI is having Full Proof
System as the accounts are being
maintained In Oracle Based ERP

i,

.26 i
i




10

Para No.

(Part-l]
B)

highlights a deviation from Rule 323 of GFR 2017,

demonstrating a failure to adhere to established
financial norms and internal policies at NICSI. The
absence of control registers has further hindered the
scrutiny of the purposes for which these advances
were granted, The extended delay in submission of
adjustment bills by certain officers, coupled with the
approval of subsequent advances, has created a
significant financial irregularity.

Considering the potential challenges posed by
factors such as repatriation to NIC transfer or
retirement of the officer’s involved urgent action is
necessary to recover these advances including the
imposition of applicable penal charges to rectify thia
financial irregularity promptly. Simultaneously,
immediate measures should be implemented to
establish robust procedures aligned with regulatory
guidelines, preventing similar lapses in the future and
ensuring financial accountability. On commenting no
reply was provided by NICSI Management to the
above observation. A comprehensive explanation of
the reasons for the prolonged non-recovery of these
staff advances may plegse be furnished.

Non-providing Contractors Margin in tire Tender for
Empanelment of M/s S.K.Patodia & Associates for
maintenance of NICS! Accounts. (Reference
Number: OBS-1094802)

As per industry practices in Indian Companies. it is
commmon to explicitly outline the contractor's margin
in the contract which can enhance transparency and
build trust between the contracting parties. Knowing
how much of the payment is allocated to the
contractor's margin can help in understanding the
overall cost structure. Rovealing the caontractor
margin may impact the contractor's competitive
advantage. If the margin is a key differentiator,
contractors may be reluctant to disclose it, as it could
patentially be used by competitors during fulure
bidding processes.

DOn an examination of the File No.10(35)/2017, it was
cbserved that NICSI invited a open tender No.
NICSI/MN/ACCOUNTS/20718/10 on 28-11-2018 for
Empaneiment of Agencies for Maintenance of NICS|
Accounts. As per the Financial Bid of the Tender
(Annexure-4) bidder has to quote the monthly rates

syslem. However, as advised by
CAG team action for recovery of the
pending amount of Rs. 8,08,800/- s
being taken.

(Inview of above it is requested that
the para may be dropped)

As regards, contractors margin in
the contract/ tender, it is informed
that, it is the choice of vendor (o
meke whatever payment they may
make to their employees, depleyed
for an assignment. Rates ta be paid
to the vendor are fixed as per the
empanelment.

'As regards to 3 year contract
expired on 29.09.2022, it is
informed that the open tender was
issued 29.11.2018 and closing date
was 27.12.2018. Tender opening
date was 29.12.2018. Due to issue
of four corrigendum and mapping
errors, the tender was cancelled
and refioated with the last date of
bid i.e. 05.02.2019 and date of
opening of bid being 06.02.2019.
Few documents were sought from
Mfs S K Patodia and M/s Pipara and
Company.

Financial Bids of M/s KRA and
Compazny and M/s & SK Patcdia &




against each of the manpower
resources/professionals as per the scope and
requirement defined in the tender. The tender was
awarded to Mls S K.Patodia & Associates (CA FIRM)
for supply of 35 numbers of manpower resources at
the following rates. Accordingly, an agreement dated
04" Octaber, 2019 was entered into with the FIRM

S.No| Resource Total Monthly Total
Category | Number | rates per Monthly
of resource Rates (Rs.)
resource  (Rs.)
s required | (Excludin
g GST)
I. |Team Leader 1 2?5Q_DO_ 275000
ii. |Dy. Team 1 225000 | 225000
| eader _
Accounts i | 225000 | 225000
Manager o
Aggountants 12 60250 | 723000
| Account
Assistant 14 47500 | 685000
Total 35 2448000

As per Clause 2 of the Agreement, it was valid for a
period of 3 years in the first instance from the date of

empanelment letter i.e., 30-03-2019 and it may be |

axtended for another two years on annual basis
depending on the need of NICSI's project
requirements with mutual consent. 10 (ten) percent
hike in monthly rates based on the last month's gross
invoice value (without GST and any
deduction/penalty ctc. If any) would be admissible
per annum. On examination of the contract, the
following observations were made.

To ensure fransparency in the contract, contractor’s
margin in monthly rates of the resources would have
been incorporated in the Contract. How, there Is no-
mention in the contract regarding coniractor's
margin. The three years period of the contract was
expired on 29-09-2022. Instead of going for fresh
tender. NICS] extended the contract period upto 28-
12,2023 vide Lr.No. 10(35)/2017-NICS| dated 18-08-
2023. In the scenario of increasing the wages by 10%
from year 1o year as to how the extension of tender
beyond 3 years can be justified.

No reply was received from NICSI in respect of the
above observations

Associates were opened in FEC
meeting on 14.06.2019 at 1530 hrs.
GTVY of M/s SK Patodia &
Associates was Rs. 29,70,000
without taxes and GTV of M/s. KRA
and Cempany was Rs.31,30,000
without taxes. Rates of M/s. 5K
Fatodia & Associales were lower as
being L-1. However, finding the
ratesto be paid for 35 resources on
higher side, with the approval of
Competent Authority it was decided
that the same may be further
negotiated.

M/s. SK Patodia & Associates
ggency revised its rates to
Rs.24,48,000 plus taxes. The
contract was finalized and the same
was awarded to M/s S K Patodia on
30.09.2019 for 3 years up fto

20.09.2022.

Since the tender process was

|scrapped on 18.01.2023 due to

administrative reason and since the
same was extended further beyond
01.12.2023 to 29.12.2023 on time
o time basis, the hike of 10% was
allowed.

Further, it is informed that a fresh
tender was floated on GeM on
07.07.2023 and the bid was opensd
on 14 08.2023 and TEC documents
were forwarded to the RFP/TEC
commitiee on 14.08 2023,

As regards to extension of contract |
beyond 29.12 2023, it is informed
that the contract with M/s. SK
Patodia ended on 29.12.2023 and
the new contract materialized
through GeM between NICSI & M/s.
5K Patodia w.efl 28.12.2023, the
M/s SK Patodia are empanglled
through GeM.

(In view of above it is requested
thatthe paramay be dropped)
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Adoption of inconsistent medical re-imbursement
policy without any tie up with CGHS empanelled
hospitals which has led to the inadvertent
reimbursement of medical expenses at higher rates,
resulting in payment disparities. (Reference Number:
OBS-1102050)

The existing medical reimbursernent scheme, as
gpproved by NICSI for employees and their families,
outlines specific limits for different medical services.
Notably, reimbursement for Qutpatient Department
(OPD), pathological tests/investigations and
hospitalization is contingent upon treatment in
hospitals recognized by DGHS/CGHS. The
entitlements forwarcs, cosmetic surgery,
admissibility of medicines and emergency cases are
also defined In adhersnce to CGHS/government
guidelines.

On examination of the records and medical bills, it is
observed that employees medical bills were being
reimbursed without considering CGHS rates for the
treatment taken in CGHS approved hospital/
investigation from CGHS approved lab whereas In
case of private hospital/private lab the
reimbursement has been limited to the ratos
approved by the CGHS. Deiails of the test checked
cases are enclosed in the Annexure-5. In this regard,
it was noliced that despite the pclicy encouraging
employees to seek treastment from DGHS/CGHS
recognized hospitals, NICS! has not established tie-
ups with CGHS empznelled hospitals. Unless NICSI
is tied up with CGHS, the treatment in CGHS
recognised hospitals would be pravided at the rates
prescribed by the concerned hospital for cother
general public and these hospitals are also private
hospitals only. The policy limits reimbursement for
treatments in private haspitals to CGHS-prescribed
rates and allowing actual rates for the treatment in
CGHS recognised hospitals led discrimination.

On review of the medical expenses for the last two
years, it was observed that substantial amounts wers
incurred towards medical expenses, in 2021-22 Rs.
29,55,544/- and in 2022-23 Rs. 28,64,441/- Thaugh
considerable amounts were incurred towards
medical expenses from year to year, NICSI did not
pursue CGHS empanelled hospitals for providing
treatment to their employees at CGHS notified rates.

In this regard, it is informed that
Medical Policy followed in NICSI is
not CGHS Policy. Officers of NICSI
are not CGHS beneficiary as they
join in NICSI on Deputation after
surrendering their CGHS card in
their parent office i.e. NIG.
Therefore, NICS| is following its own
policy.

Instructions were again circulated
in NICSI| as per mail dated
24.01.2023 and it was informed to
allthe officers in NICSI that

“The claims for expenses incurred
in case of OPD shall be reimbursed
as per actual in the hospitals/
Clinics recognized by DGHS/
CGHS. In case of Private Hospitals,
the reimbursement shall be limited |
to rates approved or fixed by DGHS/
CGHS".

All the NIC3BI officials were
requested to submit their medical
claims as per the above provisions |
and reimbursement of medical
claims would be as per above
policy, NICSI officers may prefer the
treatment in CGHS/DGHS
recognized hospitals.

In view of Audit abservation and in
view of our communication dated
24.01.2023, we have started
implemanting our own policy.

Audit team has peointed out that
there is disparities in
reimbursement of medical
expenses incurred for availing
medical facilities from CGHS
recognized private hospitals or
through private hospilals not
recognized under CGHS.

Further Audit team has stated that
tie up with CGHS recognized

G63-
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Thus, the absence of tie ups with CGHS empanelled
hospitals has inadvertently led to higher
reimbursement rates. No treatments in CGHS-
approved facilities, resulting in payment disparities

On being pointed out the above, NICSI authorities
replied that Re-imbursement of Medical bills for
treatment from CGHS/DGHS recognized hospitals &
Private Hospitals are made as per Medical Policy
followed in NICSI. Thus there is need to review the
current medical policy of NICSI or action needs to be
taken to pursueftie up the CGHS/DGHS recognized
hospitals to provide treatment to the employees at
notified rates other disparities in payments would be
gontinuad,

The action taken in this regard may be intimated to
Audit.

Non-existence of proper control mechanism [n ERP
for recovery of penalties on belated submission of
Performance Bank Guearantees (PBG) (Reference
Number: OBS-11056610)

As per the Standard Terms and Conditions given
under Clause 3 (PBG) of Part-111 of Terms of
Empanelment of agencies the agencias are required
to ensurs submission of Performance Bank
Guarartee (PBG) equivalent to 3% (three percent) of
' the work order value issued by NICS| which should
remain valid for a period of 60 days bayond the date of
completion of all contractual obligations of the
supplier for that project. The Empanelled agency
shall be required to give PBG as per the following
timelines:

Time Limit for issuance of
PBG

S.no | Projecl Duration

a Up to 6 months | Within 15 days of issuance

of the PQ by the NICSI.

b Greater than g
months

Within 30 days of issuance
of the PO by the NICSI.

Inthe event of default in submission of PBG within the
stipulated time concerned agency shall be liable fora
penalty amounting to 0.1 percent of the PO value per
day delay/default with a maximum penalty capping of
PO Value.

private hospiials may be done or
CGHS medical policy of NICS! may
be raviewed.

As regards to tie up with the Private
hospitals recognised by CGHS/
DGHS, itis informed that at present
there are 28 Officers working in
NICSI on deputation from NIC who
are availing the Medical facilities. 15
officers are posted in NICSI
Headquarter and 14 officers are
posted in different state offices.
They are residing in different
different locations and it is not
feasible to tie up for them for
availing Medical Facility fram
CGHS/ DGHS recognized private
hospitals on notlfied rates.
However, regarding re-view of |
Medical Policy, it is informed that
the directions of the audit shall be
complied.

(In view of above it is requested that
the para may be dropped).

Audit has observed that NICS! had
received 3003 PBG's during the
year 2022-23. There were delay in
submission of FBG's by the
empanelled agencies; however
NICSI had processed belatad
PBG's. NICS! had also informed
audit team that NICS| had
recovered Rs.7,48,35,319/- in 695
cases during the year 2022-23
towards penally towards belated
submission of PBG's Annexure-
B(a).

NICSI takes Bank Guarantee from
gvery vendor as g sacurity of their
performance after placing work
orders to respective vandors, if any
vendors submit their PBG delay
then NICS! levied penally on it
Praper mechanism is being
followed to deduct the penalty for




On a scrutiny of the PBG reyisler, it was observed that
NICS| was in receipt of 3003 PBGs during the year
2022-23. From the register of PBGs, it was obsarvac
that there were plenty of cases of delay in submission
of PBGs by the empanelled agencies. On being
enguired the status of recovery of penalty in the cases
of belated submission of PBGs Ly empanelled
agencies, NICSI provided the data revealing that an
amount of Rs. 7 48 35319/~ was recovered in 626
cases during the year 2022-23 towards penalty for

belated submission of PBGs (as detailed in the |

Anrexure-6(z)). In this regard, it was observed that in
ERP Purchase/Work orders were not mapped with
the particulars of Bank Guarantee submitted by the
cencerned vendor. The linkage of bank guarantzes
with purchase orders is being carried out manual ly as
same were not in the workflow at the time
development of ERP system. Due to this the
correciness of recovery of penalties for the delayed
submissions could not be verified. Due 1o the
absence of proper integration in the ERP systerm,
monitoring, and verification of the correctness of
penalty recovery become challenging for NIGSI
authorities alse.

Manual processes which zre being em ployed for the
linkage of bank guarantees with purchase orders may
lead to potential discrepancies and making it difficult
‘o verify the correctness of panalty recovery, The ERP
system currently in use lacks integration with the PBG
data, particularly in mapping purchaseswork orders
with the relevant bank guarantess. Imrmediate action
needs to be taken lo implernent an automated system
within the ERP that ensures (he linkage of bank
guarantees with purchase/work orders in real-lime.

Further, Empanelled agencies are not consistently
' meeting the deadlines for submitting Performance
Bank Guarantees (PBGs) as per the prescrined
timelines which fraught with the risk of non-
performing the reguired work.

In conelusion, it is crucial for NICSI to address the
existing gaps in the control mechanism within the
ERF system for the reccvery of penalties on belated
submission of Performance Bank Buarantees
(PBGs). The reliance on manual processes for linking
bank guarantees with purchase/work orders poses &
significant risk of potential discrepancies, making il

late submission of PBG. There is not I
even asingle case, where penalty s
not deducted.

Further, Audit team has stated that
ERP Purchase Order/ Work Orders
are not mapped with particulars of
PBG's submitted by the concerned
vendor

In this regard, it is Informed that

NICSI has developed in-house ERP
system which will include mapping
of PO/ WQO's with particulars of
PBG's submitted by the vendors.
Automated system in ERP will
ensure linkage of Bank Guarantzes
with PO/WQ in real time,




challenging to verify the accuracy of penalty

recovery. The observed lack of integration in the ERP
system underscores the need for immediate action to
implement an automated system that ssamlessly
links PBG data with purchase/work orders in real-
time.

On commenting the above, no reply was provided by
NIGS| Management to the above observation.

(B) As per the standard policy of NICSI, once the
requisite funds are transferred from the user
department/agency to NICSI against the issued
Parforma Invoice (P1), a work-order will be placed on
the selected agency as per the terme and conditions
of empanelmeant and scope of wark. The empanelled
agency shall not refuse to accept the work-order of
NICS! under any pretext. The work-order can be
collected from NICSI Office or if convenient to the
agency, it can be mailed to them. The selected
agency shall start work within seven (7) working days
of the date ofthe work-order. The Empanelled agency
shall render the services strictly adhering to the dates
n the work-order. Any delay, not condoned by NICS],
on the part of agency in the performance of its
obligations shall attract penalty. The penalty shall be
charged at the rate of 0.5% of the delay=d milestone
(or item in default. as applicatle) per week of delay or
per instance of default subject to a maximum of 10%
of the work-order value. Post that NICSI will have the
option of getling the work done through alternate
sources at the cost and risk of the defaulting agency,
which will be realized from pending payments of the
empanelled agency or from SD/PBG or by raising
claims.

On a lest check of the records of NICSI, it was
obsarved that the Performance Bank Guarantees
were found issued by the 42 Empanelled agencies |
with a delay ranging from 42 days to 2807 days (as
detailed in the Annexure-6(b)) which inter alia
provides that many of the works have not been
commenced within 7 working days of issuance of the
PO/Work-order,

The delayed issuance of Performance Bank

| Guarantees by 42 Empanelled agencies ranging from

42 days to 2607 days, reveals a significant lapse in
adhering to the stipulated timelines for initiating

AT




emphasizes the importance of timely

commencement of services, with a clear directive |
that the Empanelled agency must start work within

sevenworking days of receiving the work order.

The observed delays in offtaining Performance
Bank Guarantees indicate a potential non-
compliance with the preseribed timelines raising
concerns about the agencies' commitment to
promptly executing their contractual obligations.

assigned works. The established policy of NICSI|a & b in

Timely initiation of projects is crucial for the
effective implementation of projects and meeting
the expectations of user departments/agencies.

NICSI should take proactive measures tg enforce
adherence to the policy, ensuring that Empznelled
agencies promptly provide the required
Performance Bank Guarantees and initiats work
within the stipulated time frame. Strict monitering
and enforcement of penalties, as outlined in the
policy should be applied in instances of nan-
compliance to maintain accountability and uphold

the efficiency and integrity of NICSI's project
exacution processes, By reinforcing compliance

with established timelines, NICS| can enhance the .

overall effectiveness and reliability of its
procuremenl and project management practices,

Further, the along with the comments of NICSI, the
following further information was sought from
NICSI.

8. Actual date on which works were startad in 42
cases menticnedin Annexure-6(h).

b. Whether any penalty was recovered from the
agencies concerned for the delay in carrying out
the Work-orders/Purchase orders. |f so, full
particulars thereof may please be furnisned.

C. If any hindrance/Extension of Time registers are
being maintained in respect of delay in execution of
work-orders. 1" so, the registers/irecord cancernad
may please be provided. Reasons for allowing the

empanelled agencies far execution of works with
such an abnormal delays from the date of issuance
of PO/WO,

hardware & network the
date of delivery is considered and
there is no date gof
commencement,

Actual date of start of work in
manpower and website work order
's as per period mentioned in each
order.

It is inform that 10 % penalty has
imposed on the PO's at Sr. No. 1 1,
16,16,17 & 30.

PQ’s issued lo Tata Consultancy at
Sr.No. 19-24 831 32 439 & PO's
issued to other vendors at Sr. No.
2, 3,12,13,14, 18, 29, 34, 35, 38,
37, 41, 42 there were no penalty
clause on PBG submission.

PO's at Sr. No. 33 not issued to
Deloitte as reported by auditteam,
itwas in factissued to Silver Touch
BG was submitted on time in this
Case & no penalty deducted,

No penalty was deducted for PO's
at 5r. No. 5-10 & 25,26, 27,28 as
BG issuance date is considered as |
submission of BG date at that time. ‘
¢ -Work execution s allowed as
perrequirement.

d-There was no penalty clause
applicable in these purchase
orders. Therefare the BG were
received as they were valid.
e-Prior to August 2022 penalty
was imposed on Lhe date pf
issuance of BG by respective bank
there on NICSI has started
impesing penalty on date of
submission of BG by vendor in
NICSI.

PO's at Sr. No, 1 & 2 no penalty
Clause mentioned in PO's,

PO's at Sr. No. 4,5 & 6 it is
informed that the BG were issued
within time therefore no penalty
was imposed,

PQ'sat Sr. No. 11 itis informed that
10% penalty was deductad.

(In view of above it is requested

that the para may be dropped.) |
|




d. A tost check of the records revealed thal in the
five(5) cases mentioned in the Annexure-B(c) |
though PBGs were found issued on time by the
Empanelled agencies, PBGs were received by
NICSI with a delay ranging front 267 days 1O 400
days. Reasons for allowing such an abnormal delay
in submission of PBGs may please be stated.

. Ontest check of the records, it was observed that
in respect of the 11 cases mentioned in Annexure
B(d), it was observed that the penality amount was
net found recovered from the empanelled agencies
concerned. The same may please be verified and
the recovery status may be intimated.

Neither the reply nor the information sought for was
provided by the NICSL.
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5 towards Disaster Recaver)' Services provided at
Data Centre, NIC, Hyderabad during the periad

(Part-ll | from 2010-2018. (Reference Mumber; OBS-

'B) 1143444)

In the year 2008 the Department of Industrial Policy
and Promotion (DIPP)(presently renamed as
| Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal
Trade (DPIIT)) planned to implement the eBiz
Project (a Mission Mode Project under NeGP)
which integrates several government services in a
single website to facilitate faster delivery of
licensaes, registrations and clearances for
businesses. The project was hosted in a co-location
model in Data Centers (DC) of NIC/ NICSI - one at
Laxmi Nagar Delhi (NICSI) as Main Data Centerand
the other at Hyderabad (NIC) which was 10 be used
as Data Centre as well as Disaster Recovery (DR)
Centre. Under collocation services NIGS! provides
Power cooling. Networking and perimeter security
and the user is required fo place their own servers
and systems software for hosting their application.
In this regard DIPP conveyed their intention to enter
into an agreement with NIC/NICSI for availing DC
and DR services before on boarding @ vendor for
the purpose. However, the SLA In this regard was
signed by NICSI on 22-05-2013. The eBiz project v
as awarded to M/s Infosys on 28-05-2008 in a
public-private partnership (PPP) mode. NICSI
provided 2 (two) server racks in DC Laxmi Nagar for

Non-realisation of Rs. 1.47 crore from DPIT

& Biz project was awarded to Mis
Infosys on 28.05.2008 in a Public

Audit team has observed that
DPIIT planned to implement the e-
Biz project-a Mission mode project
under NeGP Project was hosled in
a co-location module in Data
Centre of NIC/ NICS!- one at Laxmi
Nagar (Mini Data Centre) &
another at Hyderabad which was

to be usad as Data Centre as well
as Data Recovery Centre.

NICS! was to provide power
cocling, networking and perimeter
security. User depariment were
required to place their own servers
and systems software’s for hosting
theirapplications.

Private Partnership (PPP mode).
DPIT conveyed their intension Lo
enter in to an agreement with
NIC/ NICS! for DC & DR services.
SLA was signed by NICSI on
22.05.2013.

However, reply to the specific
queries as raised by Audit team
are given below-

&




hosting the project and 10 (10* 1U) Rack servers of
eBiz project were hosted at N IC Hyderabad from
August 2010.

NIC3! issued initial Profarma Invoice (PI) dated 25-
09-2009 towards collocation charges for 2 server
racks @ Rs.23,75,000 per annum per rack for the
period from 13-11-2008 to 12-11-2020 for the
sgrvers located in DC Laxmi Magar. Thereafter
these co-location charges were continued to ba
claimed from time to time. However, from the
correspondence dated 20-10-2015 with DIEE it was
naticed that though Disaster Recavery (DR) for eBiz
Services were being offered from NIC Hyderabad.
PI's could not be generated and sent to DIPP till
March-2015 due to pendency of approvals from
NIC/Diety. Fven the NICSI was unaware of the
details regarding numbers of server racks deployed
for eBiz Projec! at Hyderabad and date of activation

' of those servers till 30-december-2014, Afer

obtaining this information bills for Collocation
charges is Rs 1,68.300/- in respect ofthe 10 server
racks at NIC Hyderabad were issued on 12-03-2015
only fo collect the dues for the period from 01-09-
2010 to 31-03-2015. Subsequently, bills for DR
services were raised from time 1o time and none of
these bills were paid by DIPP. On 08-11-2018 DIPP
Communicated vide LrNo, 08-11-2018 that they
had decided to discontinue the eBiz portal w.e.f. 09-
11- 2018 and requested 1o stop billing towards
serversirack space charges from the same date.
Accordingly. Bills were claimed by the NICS up to
09-11-2018. The total billed amount towards DR
Services at NIC Hyderabad for the period from 01-
08-2010 to 09-11-2018 worked out to Rs.
1.47.77.584/- which was inclusive of Service
Tax/GST amount of Rs. 18,10.164/- (as detailed In
the Annexure 7).

Despite repeaied pursuance by NICS| for the
outstanding balances in respect of DR services at

' Hyderabad. DIPP did net turned up and in January,

2017 sought for the agreement document and
sougnt far certaln information relating to evidence
of placement of server racks for eBIZ in NIG.
Hyderabad. |n spite of providing the required
Information, DIPP continued to dispute the
payments by showing one or cther reasons, Afterso
many deliberations DPIIT vide their Memorandum

a. DPIT vide letter dated
16.08.2020 informed that the
invoices raised by NICSI towards
DR services are not payable. A
letter dated 08.03.2021 from than
MD, NICSI was sent to JS, DPIIT
requesting for release of Disaster‘
Recovery outstanding dues
{copies enclosed as Annexure-N)
In this letter it was stated that 10
Servers (10*1U) were deployed
for e-Biz project and based on the
input received from M/s Infosys
team a concessionaire it was
stated that e-Biz Servers were
hosted activated at NDC-
Hyderabad since August, 2010.

0. The DR services were started
from 01/09/2010 after request
from the user vide email dated
30/12/2014 was received by
NICSI. The original bills were
generated/ sent to all user
departments from March 2015
onwards. NICSI had issued the
first bill/invoice against DR

|Services at NDC-Hyc. and sent|

to the user on 08/04/2015 for
the pericd 01/09/10 to 31/03/15,
The Pllinvoices for DR site at
Hyderabad could not be
generated / sent to users on time
due to some approvals pending
with NIC/MeitY. After obtaining
approvals from Competent
Authorities, the Pis for the entire
period of availed DR services from
NDC-Hyd. were generzated for the
period and sent to the user in Dec
2014/Jan 2015 anwards.
Thereafter, the bills for the next
period were handed over on time.

¢. There is no agreement signed
betwsen NICS| & e-Biz (DPIIT).




| services charges the following further information

File No. P-26019/20/2017-BE-| dated 28-06- 2019 |

requested to waiver of DR services charges for the
period from 01-09-2010 to 31-03-2014 (amount of
Rs. 63,73.531/- ) & agreed to pay charges of Rs.
84,04,053/- due from 01-04-2014 o 09-11-2018
and sought justification of the claims with reference
to details or resources deployed and details of
quantum of backup stored atDRC.

On examination of the Current status 01 recovery of
these Iong outstanding dues, itwas noticed from the
126" Boarding meeting minutes (Held on 28-03-
2023) status quo is being maintained and no
progress made either in recovery otagreed balance
of Rs. 84.04,053/- orwrite off of Rs. 63,73.531/-.

Thus, the non-realization of 11.47 crore from DPIT
towards Disaster Recavery Services at NIC
Hyderabad for the eBiz Project spanning from 2010
to 2018 remains a persistent challenge. Despite
numerous attempts by NICSI to recover the
outstanding dusgs and after several rounds of
discussions and correspondences the issue s yel
to see resolution. The prolonged nature of this
outstanding payment issue underscores the need
for a concerted effort to bring about a resolution.
The DPIIT's decision to discontinue the eBiz portal
and subsequent dispute over payments has
contributed to the protracted delay In settling the
outstanding balances. Despite DPIIT's agreement
to pay Rs. 84,04,053/- as per the Memorandum
dated 28-06-2019, and sesking |ustification for the
remaining Rs. 163,73,631/-no su bstantial progress
has been made.

A proactive approach in facilitating eommunicaticn
and cooperation between NICSI and DPIIT, along
with a detailed presentation of the resources
deployed and backup storage dafa can contribute
to resolving the matter amicably. This concerted
cffort is essential ta bring closure to the long-

‘regarding outstanding payments

standing financial dispule and ensure the recovery
or approprizte resolution ofthe putstanding dues.

Further, the present status of' realisation pf DR
was sought for from NICSI.

a. DPIIT requested information on the quantum of

—— =M
d & . There were scveral
meetings/discussions held with
the department to resolve the
issue and finally, NICS| has
received an email with attached
letter/OM No. P-25019/20/2017-
BE-| (copy enclaosed as Annexure-
0) with Minutes of the Meeting
taken by AS(S) of the Department
on 20/6/2018 in his Chamber

for DR Services under e-Biz
Projectin NDC-Hyd.

The following decisions
were taken in the meeting--
Payment for co-location chargas
may be made to NICSI only from
2014-15 subject to approval by
IFW & competent authority and
NICS! reducing their charges
owing to fact that the services
were never operational and only
the space was utilized. Further
NICSI needs to justify the claims
with reference to details of
resources deployed and details of
quantum of backup stored at DRC.

f. As per eBiz letter no. 9(2) /2018~
BE-l dated B/11/2018 [copy
enclosed as Annexure-P)
regarding shut down of Data
Centre services and it has been
decided to remove the eBiz, DPIIT
Servers from Rack to NICS| Store
Room. The oguipment/servers
provided by the DPIIT are lying at
LNDC-Laxmi Nagar, NDC-Shastri
Park & NDC- Hydsrabad. DPIT
had vide letter dated 19.10.2020
(copy enclosed as Annexure-Q)
intimated that the equipment/
servers may be either utilized or
auctioned by NIC on behalf of this
department.

(In view of above it is requested
that the para may be dropped)
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Lackup stored at the Disaster Recavery Centre|
(DRC). Please stale whether the detailed
information on the backup stored at DRC was
provided to DPIT. 11 so, the details thereof may |
please be provided.

b. Though the services were being provided from
the year 2008, reasons for the delay In entering into
an agreement with DPIIT for these services may
please be provided.

¢. The agreement did not explicitly mention the
quantity of servers for coliocation services and
lacked specitics on DR services at NIC, Reasons for
net mentioning these details in the agreement,

d. Until December 2014. NICS| was unaware of
cetailed information about the servers used for DR
services at NIC, Hyderabad. The lack of
comprehensive deata was an internal oversight.
Reasons for non-maintaining the comprehensive
 dataregarding the project may please be stated,

e eBiz Portal was found to be launched on 28-01-
2013. But. DPIIT agreed to pay the dues from 01-04-
2014, What was the basis for that.

f. As the e-Biz project services at Laxmi nagar and
Shastri Bhavan were stopped on 09-11-201 8, what
was the status of equipment/servers provided by
the DPIIT.

As per the significant accounting policy of NICSI, |
the advances received by NICS| for ssles of good
| and service from different Ministries/Departments
'the amounts are utilised for the purposes of
| execution of respective projects and if there is any
balance available with NICSI at the close of the
respective project, the same is refunded to the
Grantor Institution along with the interest, ifany.
However, no condition found exisis either in the
agreements or in the bills issued to user
departments for racovery of penalty on belated
payments. NICSI pays interest on un- utilised
balances however, NICSI did rot recover any
interest on the belated payments by the user
departments. Reasons for Inclusion of such
conditions may please be statad.

Neither the reply nor the information sought for
was provided by the NICS,

o
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Para No.|
B

(Part-ll
B)

Non-compliance with rules pertaining to Leave

Travel Concession (LTC) advances resulted in

irregular payment of Rs. 47,292/ and non-
recovery of interest in applicable cases.
(Reference Number: OBS-1151535)

fs per Rule 2 of “Compendium ¢l Rulss on
Advances'-in cases where the advance is not
utilized fully but the adjustment bill is submitied in
time, interest @ 2 % (two per cent) over the interest
rate which is allowed by the Government on the
Provident Fund balances of its employees shall be
charged on the unutilized portion of advance from
the date of drawal of advance to the date of refund.

In case, adjustment bill is not submitted within the
prescribed time, the entire amount of advance may
be recoverad one lump sum immediately on expiry
of such time. In such cases also, the interest may be
charged as mentioned above on the entire amount
of advance from tne date of drawal to the date of
recovery of amount.

As per Rule 14 of CCS, LTC Rule 1888, a claim for
reimbursemert of expenditure incurred on journey
under leave travel concession shall be submitted
within three months after the completion of the
return journey, if no advance had been drawn.
Failure to do so will entail forfeiture of the claim and
no relaxation shall be permissible in thisregard.

As per Rule 15(vi) of CCS, LTC Rule 1988 where an '

advance has been drawn by 2 Government servant,
the claim for reimbursement of the expendilure
incurred on the journsy shall be submitted within
one morith of the completion of the return journey.
On a Government servant's failure o do so, he shall
be required to refund the entire amount of advance
farthwith in ene lump sum. No request for recovery
ofthe advance in instaiments shal| be entertzin.

On review of records relating to LTC claims for the
year 2022-23, following observations were made:

During the year 2022-23, total 17 LTC Advance
cases were processed out of which in 2 cases (as
shown in Annexure 8(a)), the advance was refunced
as unutilised advance after the completion of return
journey. But, na interest was charged/recovered on

| has been sent to them for recovery

As regards lo Recovery of Interest

'on un-utilized advances in respect

of Shri S.Kasi Reddy and Shri
Satyesh Kr.Sharma, it is informed
that both the officers have been
repatriated to their parent
department NIG.

The amount recoverable from
them has been calculated Rs.
142/- and Rs.1181/- are due from
Shri Satesh Kumar Sharma & Shri
5 Kasi Reddy respactively.

A letter (enclosed as Annexure-R)

ofthe said amount.

As regards to LTC availed by Shri
Surjeet Singh, GM for the block
year 2018-21, it is informed that
Shri Surjeet Singh retired on
superannuation on 29.02.2024.
The action for recovery of amount
of Rs.47,292/- has been inftiated
and a request sent to ex-Retired
GM, NICSI to return the said
amount.

As regards to entry in LTC register |
regarding date of drawl of]
advance, date of submission of
bills, amount of bill and detail of
interest recovered. It is informed
that the necessary entries madc in
LTC register (copy of register
enclosed as Annexure-5).

(In view of above it is requested
thatthe para may be dropped)
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the unutilized porlion of advance which is
contravention to the Rule 2 of “Compendium of
rules on Advances”, which states that interest
should be charged on the unutilized portion of |
advance from the date of drawal of advance fo the |
date of refund.

On scrutiny of LTC bills, it was observed that LTC
Advance for an amount of T 35.000/- was
sanctioned to Shri Surjeet Singh, GM for the Block
year 2018-21. The Officer completed his return
journey on 21-08-2022 and the claim for an amount
of | 47.292/- was submitted on 13-01-2023 {as
detailed in the Annexure 8(b)) after 4 months from
the date of completion of return journey which is
contravention of Rule 14 &15 of CCS, LTC Rule
1988 & Gaovernment of India decision (2) below
Rule 52 ot Compendium of Rule on Advance. The
existing GQl orders/rules provides for forfeiture of
the Claim as the claim was not submitted within the
prescrived time limit. However, the claim was re-
bursed in cantravention to the orders inid.

Review of LTC Register revealed that there was no
entry iro date of drawal of advance, date of
submission of bill, full amount of bill & detail of
interest recovered if any, ete. In this regard NICS|
needs to Conduct a thorough verification of the
identified cases to ascertain the extent of non-
compliance, Initiate necessary actions to recover
any excess amounts allowed, in adherence to
GOl orders, with due intimation  to the Audit and
Strengthen record-keeping practices in the LTC
Register to facilitate lransparent monitoring and |
accountability,

On being pointed out the above issuss of fon-
complying with the GOl orders in settlemant nf the
above cases, it was replied thal Power to relax of
LTC settlement vest with the MD, NICSI the
competent authority as per the Annexure-A.
Thereforeapproval of competent authority exists.

The reply of the NICSI Management is not
acceptable in view of the following;

NICBI| adheres to the LTC rules of the Government .
of India (GOI) as outlined inits policy. In line with

P
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Para No.

(Part-1l
B)

this, NICS! has identified the Competent Authority,
specifying that the Managing Director (MD) of
NICS| holds the conclusive decision-making
authority regarding disputes or relaxations
concerning casss where L7 C bills are not
submitted within 30 days of completing travel.
Hawever, the Central Civil Services (CCS) LTC
rules stipulate the forfeiture of LTC claims it bills are
nat siubmitted within the prescribed time, and no
axceptions/relaxations are permitted in this regard.
Moreover, the directives issued by the MD of NIGS!
on this matter were nol made available for
verification.

Action may be taken to verify all such cases and
interest may be recovered on the un- utilised
advances. The compliance may be intimated to
Audit.

Non inclusion of penalty clause in case of early
termination of contract to M/s Indraprastha
Service for hiring the vehicle,( Reference
Number: OBS-1154034)

NICSIwas entered into a contract through GeM with
Mis

Indraprastha Service for hiring of 62 vehicles.
As per the Service Level Agreement with the
vendor through GeM contract no. GEMCGC-
511687783629932 dated 07.03.2022 the contract
was valid for one year from 01.04.2022 to
91.03.2023. The estimaled amount of contract was
Rs.2,10,79,752/ - including all duties and (axes.

On examination of files related to Hiring of Taxi
gservices for monthly basis the following
observations were made.

As per the contract. Mfs Indraprastha Services
supplied 54 vehicles front 0 1-04-2022 to 03-04-

2022 and from 04-04-2022 to 06-04-2022 provided

|62 vehicles on 07-04-2022 provided 53 vehicles

and from 08-04-2022 onwards provided 51 vehicles
on 06-04-2022 the vendor submitted that as the fucl
prices are touching sky in view of the same his
agency was facing lot of problems in arranging the
venicles at approved rates. As such the vendor
submitted a proposalto NICS! either toincrease the

\Contract for Hiring the Venhicles
with M/s Hybrid Fleetl
Management Pvt. Lid. was from
01.12.2020 to 30.11.2021. The
same was extended aon various
occasionsupto 31.03 20272,
Fresh GeM bid no, GEM/
2021/B/1742806 dated
08.12.2021 for hiring of 62
numbers of vehicles was initiated.
GeM contract no. GEMC-
5F116B77836294932 dated
'07.03.2022 was given 10 M/s.
'Indraprastha Services for the
period fram 01.04.2022 to
31.03.2023.

M/s. Indraprastha Services started
providing vehicles from
01.04.2022. However, they have
requested for increase in rates and

@.




approved rates of contract or to remove the
restrictions for supply of 2019 onwards make
models of vehicles or to cancel the agreament with
mutual consent. On 08-04-2022 the vendaor further
requested that they are not able to provide the
vehicles and the contract may be cancelled due-to
non-fulfilment of contractual obligations. As perthe
request of the vendor on 08-04-2022. NICS]
intimated to the vendor that the contract was
lerminated by invoking the provisions of clause 11
of the contract which provides for tarmination of the
contactthrough mutual consenl.

In this, regard GOI orders on GeM procurements
provides that in case of contracts placed following
e-Bidding / RA. Performance Security /
Performance Bank Guarantes(PBG)(in format
provided on GeM) valid for 2 manths beyond the
date of completion of all contractual obligations
including warrantee obligations, will be obtained
from the successful Bidder, for ensuring due
performance of the contract, GeM recommends
quantum of Performance Security @ 2% of the
value of corract. The buyer also has the option to
select Performance Security between 2% to 10%.
While finalizing e- Bid /RA. Buyer shall indicale the
% of Performance Security required fo be
submitted by successful bidders. In case of any
extension of contract ohligation period the seller
shall be liable to suitably extend the validity of the
Performance Security, Such Performance Bank
Guarantee, in prescribed format from a scheduled
commercial bank must be submitted by Seller to
the Buyer within 15 days of award of contract on
GelM. The payments to the seller shall become due
only after receipt to Performance Bank Guarantee

by the Buyer and verification of its genuineness. |

the Seller fails or neglects to observe or perform
any of his obligations under the contract it shall be
lawful for the Buyer to forfeit either in whole or in
part the Performance Security furnished by the
Seller. If the Seller duly performs and completes the
contract in all respects the Buyer shall refund the
Performance Security to the Seller within 30 days of
completion of all contractuzl obligations by the
Seller. Narmally, this type of GeM contracts
requires to collect PBG @ 10% of the contract value
l.e. Rs. 21.08.000/~. However, in the present case
Bid documentthers was a provision for PBG @ 2%.

floated on GeM with 2z condition

removal of conditions i.e.|
providing vehicles from 2019
onwards,

With the approval of Commpetent
Authority a decision was taken that
the contract may be terminated
invoking the provision of Clause-
11, mutually accepted by both the
parties.

A fresh Bid no. Gem/ 2023/
B/2224847 dated 06.06.2022 wds

that “the order will be split
between the two bidders - Mfs
Hybrid Fleet Management Pyt Ltd.
& M/s. Indraprastha Services In
the ratio of 60:40",

The contract was awarded to M/s.
Indraprastha Services as Mi/s.
Indraprastha Services were the |2
in the GeM process aorder.

Since NICS! hasfaced problems in
hiring the vehicles, GeM bid was
floated with the requirement of
NICSI in 80:40 ratios. Accordingly,
the work order was awarded to L1
& L2 insaid ratio.

As per Bid document, PBG @2%
were asked required for duration
of 14 months. The work was
awarded to M/s. IP vide letter
dated 07.03.2022, the contract
was terminated on 10.04,2027
since the contract lapsed in just 10
days, the PBG was not obtained &
encashed,

(In view of above it is requested
thatthe para may be dropped)
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Though Lhe vendor failed to pravide his contraclual
obligations. NICS| could notlevy any penalty on the
vendor or encashed the PBG, Instead NICS!| closed
the contract with mutual consent.

Further, GeM conditions provides that. if the Seller
does not perform its obligations within the Deliver'
Period/Date mentioned in the contract, the same
would constitute the breach of the contract and the
Buyer shall have the rightto cancel or withdraw the
contract for the unsupplied portion after the expiry
of the original or re-fixed delivery date or period
stipulated in the contract. Such cance!lation of
contract on account of non - parformance by the
Seller would entitle the Buyer to forfeit the
performance security besides ather actionssuch as |
downgrading the Seller's rating or debarment from |
the GeM for specified period as decided by GeMon |
merits.

The absence of a penalty clause for early
termination restricted NICSI's ability to enforce
consequences for non-compliance, impacting the
organization's contractual protections.

On being enquired the reasons for non-inclusion of
a clause regarding penalty for early termination of
contract by vendors and non-recovery of PBG on
the fallure of the vendor In fulfiling his contractual
obligations, NICS| did not provide any reply.
Subsequently. a new tender was floated for taxi
hiring, and the contract was awarded to Hybrid
Fleet Management Pvt. Ltd & Mis Indraprastha
Service ina60:40 ratio front 1,10.2022. Despite M/s
Indraprastha Service's failure to provide services in
the previous contract year, the company was ag ain
awarded a significant portion (40%) of N IC5l's
vehicle requirements, However. M/s Indraprastha
Service did not respord to this wark order either,
resulting in the entire work being awarded to hybrid
Fleet Management Pvt. Ltd.

The decision to re-award a substantial portion cfthe
contract to M/s Indraprastha Service, despite their
prior inability to fulfil contractual obligations
requires clarification. Understanding the rationale
behind this decision is 2ssential for transparency in
vendor selection and to ensure that contracts are
awarded to vendors with a proven track record of
meeting obligations.

s
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On being pointed oul the above, NICSI authoritias
replied that as per Bid document 80:40 ratio was
asked, M/s Indraprastha Services had applied
against open bid and they were empanelled as LI,
s0 M/s Indraprastha Service were awarded the
cantract as they was not blacklisted /debarred on
the date of award of work. However, NICS1's
response does not address whether they leave
collected the mandated ePBC amount of

Hs. 14,291,000 (i.e., 2% of Rs. 12,10,80.000).
Furthermore, clarification may bz given on the
reasons for not encashing the Performance Bank
Guarantee (PBG) inthe event ofthe vendor's failure,
| A comprehensive elucidation, including justification
for not blacklisting My/s Indraprastha Services and
the repeated awarding o1 the tender to the same
vendor, is requestad.

16 Para No.f Non adjustment of long pending income tax

8 receivables to the extent of | 128.89 crore and
Sales Tax receivables of Rs. 1.20 crore.(
Reference Number: OBS- 11 67689)

(Part-Il | To ensure the accuracy of financial statements, it is
'B) essential for companies to follow proper accounting
| procedures and adjust income lax recelvables as
necessary before the completion of tax
assessments. This involves evaluating the tax
positions, considering any cha nges In tax laws, and
estimating the ultimate realization of income tax
receivables based on the most current information
available. Ifincome tax receivables are not adjusted
before the completion of 1ax gssessment, it may
lead to inaccuracies in the financial statements and
misrepresentation of the company's financial
position. Adjusting income tax receivables is a
crucial step in the financial reporling process to
ensure that the financial statements reflect the mast
‘accurate and up-to-date information..

On areview ofthe more than threa years old Income

Tax recoverable amounts related to NICSL. It was

abserved that an amount of Rs. 1,28,89,18,652/-

Was pending towards income tax/TDS recoverable

‘ for the years 2005-06 to 2019-20. Year-wise details
are appended below.

——— e ——

——— SESRS——

The refunds from the Income Tax

Department is awaited. In
connection with the outstanding
Income Tax, itis informed that-

(i) Provision for income Tax
amounting to Rs. 16.46,56,001/-
were made in the FY 2018-19 far
the amount of Income tax
recoverable for the FY from 2005
08, 2006-07, 2009-10,2010-|
11,2012-13,2013-14.

(i) Rs. 5,77,36,394/- out of Rs.
11,17,65,985/- has been refunded
by Income Tax authority for FY
2015-18.

(i)  Assessment order fnr‘
assessment year 2020-21 dated
24.07.2024 has been received. As
per Bank statement refund of Ra:
40,83,51,888/- has beer recaived
inthe NICSI Bank Account.

From the above, it may be seen
that total refund of Rs.
|4B,60,38,282!— Is received out of
the outstanding refund pointed out
by audit team oul of Rs.
128,89, 18,652/~ (copy of refund
order and bank statements
enclosed asAnnexure -T)

I

)
——



Yaar

Amournl

Recoverable NICSI in process of requesting the
== — — concerned departments to refund
‘“CC’T“;J;; Hggg;arab!a 13973 the amounts at the earliest. With
3 major outstanding amount being
ncorma Tax Recaverable 2198197 rsfu!:qdable by the Income Tgx
5005 - 2007 epartment, NICEI_ ha!s again
taken up the matter, vide its |etters
income Tax Recoverable 36630214 ‘dated 03.03.2023 & 12.12.2[}23[
2008 - 2010 (copy enclosed as Annexure-U).
Refund of Rs. 43,65,63,362/- & Rs.
Income 7 Tax Recoverable | 1959589 36,61,83,957/- for the FY 2021-22
2010-2011 & 2022-23 respectively.
Income Tax Recoverable 16327550 Assessment of NICSI is complete |
‘ 2012-2013 up to AY 2022-23.
Income Tax Recoverable | 107526476 As regards outstanding amount of
2013-2014 ' Qales Tayx, it is informed that the
Provision had baen made in NICSI
Income tax Recoverable 111765965 for Sales Tax/ VAT/ DVAT/ TDS on
2015-2016 works contract. Provisions are as |
under-Year 2018-19 Particulars -
Income Tax Recoverable 167155279 | Sales Taw/ VAT/ DVAT Rs.117.70in
2018-2017
‘ ||Elkhs.
I e Tax Re bl 513044932
e zniﬁznﬁem = | 1agaR TDS on work contract Rs, 2.34 in
Lakhs Year 2019-20
incorme Tax Recoverable ssge0050  |TDS I8 Rs:20,238/-Sales Tax/ VAT
2018-201 g is Rs. 20,7-"1”- |
Income Tax Recoverable 267242508 (In view of above it is requasted‘
2019-2020 that the para may be dropped)
TDS On Works Contract 233917

2000-2001

Total

————

1288918652

It was observed that there Is no progress in
recovery of tnese balances for the last several years |
'in nominal course these recoverable amounts
should have been adjusted on finalisation of
regpective zssessments. On completion of the
‘ assessments these balances need to be written off.

The assessment year up to which Income Tax
assessment has bDeen completed by the IT |

authorities may please be furnished.
I i A R
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While furnishing the reasons for non-adjustment/
nan-recovery of the above long pending
recoverale amounts. Justification for continuation
of these balances may please be provided.

Similarly, an amount of Rs. 1,1E,80,886/- was
pending recoverable lowards Sales Tax/TDS5 for the

years from 1897-98 to 2016-17. Year-wise details

are appended below.

Year

Amount

Recoverable

DVAT Refund Receivable
(2013-14)

Sales Tax Recoverable §7-98
Sales Tax Recoverable 98-99
Sales Tax Recoverable 99-00

Sales Tax Recoverable 2000-
2001

Sales Tax Recoverabla 2001 -
2002

Sales Tax Recoverable 2002-
2003

Sales Tax Recoverable 2003-
2004

Sales Tax Recoverable 2004-
2005

Sales Tax on Work Caontract
8% Recoverable 2001-2002

Sales Tax on Work Contract
Recoverable 2004-2005

Sales Tax On Works Coniract
4% Recoverable 2003-04

Sales Tax on Works Contract
8% Recoverable 2002-03

Sales Tax on Works Contract
Recoverable 2000-2001

52415

447500
2352225
1093926

838058

1185581

2323270

833474

1400000

832211

829

2804

75606

7000

Gair-




Sales Tax on Warks Contract ' 1000

Recoverable §9-2000
VAT Inpul Receivable 172849
TDS On Works Contract 233917
2000-2001
TDS on WCT Receivable (16- 20321
17)
Total 11980886

On being pointed out the above NICSI authorities
agreed that the pending Income Tax/TDS/Sales
TAX/VAT amounts are long recoverable and NICSI
had made provision in its account for FY. 2018-18to
EY. 2022-23 lowards those long outstanding fax
refund Further, it was informed that NICSI was in
process of reguesting the concerned department
to refund the amount at the earliest. With major
outstanding amount being refundable Incoms Tax
Department. NICS| has again taken up the matter,
through various letter dated 06-03-2023, personal
meeting and affidavit dated 24-11-2023 and recent
reminder sent on 12-12-2023 (copy enclosed).
Recently, meeting by NICSI officials for the refund
has been made with Income Tax Department. As
regards, Sales Tax amounts putstanding mare than
20 years. NICS! has assigned the task to its VAT
Consultant and would actaccordingly.

NIC S| Managerment's response appears insufficient
in justifving the situation creating provisions yesar
after year may not offer an effective remedial
solution context. Thus, it is imperative for NICSI to
address the long-standing issue adjustment of
ncome tax and sales tax receivables. The current
state of pending totalling Rs.128.89 crore inincome
tax and Rs.1.20 crore in sales tax poses accuracy of
financial statements and may misrepresent the
campany's financial. The following actions and
recommendations can be considered;

NICSI should expedite the adjustment process for
the long pending income tax receivables by
collaborating closely with the Income Tax
Department, This involves finalizing the respective
ascessments, writing off balances, and ensuring
that adjustments are made up to the most recent
financial year.




Establish a systern for regular monitoring and
reporting of income tax and sales tax receivables to
identity any discrepancies promptly. This will help in
maintaining accurate financlal records and
ensuring timely adjustments

Continue engaging with the Income Tax
Uepartment and Salas Tax authorities through
written communications, personal meetings, and |
affidavits, as demonstrated by NICSI'S efforts so far.
This proactive approach demonstrales the
commitment to resolving the issu=s and expedites
the refund process.

Regularly review and update internal policies
related io income tax and sales tax adjustments to
align them with the latest regulations. Ensure that
the company stays compliant with tax laws and is
proactive in addressing outstanding issues.

Implement a structured follow-up mechanism with
both the Income Tax Department and Salas Tax
authorities to track the progress of refund reguests.
Regular follow-ups through reminders and personal
meetings will reinforce NICSI's commitment to
resalving the matter

Maintain comprehensive documentation of all
actions taken communications made, and
agreements reached with tax authorities. This
documentation will serve as evidence of NICS|'s
efforts to rectify the long-pending recaivables.

Communicate the progress and steps taken to the
board and stakeholders. Transparency In
addressing financial concerns iz essential for
mainlaining rustand confidence.

 Treat this situation as an opportunity for continuous
improvement in financial management processes.
Learn from past challenges and implement
measures to prevent the recurrence of similar
issues inthe future.

The progress made in this regard may please be
infimated to Audit.

1. Details of RTI matters disposed off during Total 114 Cases inclusive of RTI, Appeal and CIC
FY.2023-24. cases.

2. Details of RTImattars pending ason 31-03-2024. 7 caseswhich were disposed off after 31.03.2024
(withinthe stipulated tima frame)

283
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